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Investment Case

An aceracrive market

Net zero is the internationally agreed goal for mitigating global
warming by 2050. Geopolitical uncertainty has accelerated the need
for both energy and food security. Electrolysers, when coupled with
renewable power are the only vehicle through which green
hydrogen can be produced.

A pirtfolio of products

We produce three core products. Plug & Play contains everything
needed for small scale green hydrogen production; all a customer
needs Lo do is connect water and power. For larger projects we
produce a range of stacks, which can be modularised to provide
scale to larger projects.

- Reference plam

We have been manufacturing electrolysis equipment for many years
and have deployed plant across the world. Learnings, both by ourselves
and our customers, enhance and improve the future development and
deployment of our electrolysers.

Well eapitalised

We raised £250 million in November 2021 and at our year end we had
£365 million of net cash on the balance sheet. This capital will enable -
us to invest to meet what we expect to be significant demand for our

electralysers over coming years as the race to decarbonise acceterates.

Scalabitity

Our factory at Bessemer Park, Sheffield is one of the largest
electrolyser manufacturing facilities in the world. By early 2023,
capacity will be around 700 MW and future capacity will be increased
to 1.5 GW. The remodelling at Besserner Park includes process and
equipment enhancements, all of which feed into a blueprint for future
factory openings.

Partnerships

Qur partnerships with companies such as Shell, Linde and
ScottishPower have evolved over many years. These partnerships
confirm our leading technologies and capabilities. As the green
hydrogen value chain aligns, we would expect further partnerships
to manifest.

I''M Power Sevvice

Today we provide 24/7 support from our control centre at Bessemer
Park. Collection and collation of performance information and data
enables a virtuous circle of reliability, availability and maintenance
outcomes which in turn provides value to and enhances the
relationship with our customers.

EPCihrongh [LE

_ Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC} is a vital component

of the hydrogen value chain. Through our joint venture with Linde, ITM
Linde Electrolysis GmbH (ILE), we have access to unrivalled knowledge
and skills which de-risks the design and build out of projects, in
particular, larger projects.

Qur people

People do not join ITM Power just for a job, they join because they are
passionate about our vision and they are determined to help us make
an everlasting difference to the planet. We have a highly skilled team
working at the cutting edge of technology.
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Thelcasé for REE)
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The macro plcture

The case for green hydrogen produced by electrolysis
strengthened significantly over the last year. in addition
to global initlatives and commitments to address climate
change, the role of green hydrogen to address energy
security and price volatility has moved up the global
political agenda. The events in Ukraine, and the
subsequent sanctions on Russia have created price
spikes in hydrocarbons and in fertilisers. The cost of
green hydrogen in many parts of the world is now at
parity with the cost of grey hydrogen, which together
with the Increased desire for energy security and
Independence. should accelerate the replacement of
grey hydrogen by green hydrogen, the only net zero gas,
whilst at the same time, reducing energy cost volatility.

Geopolitcal developments have resulted in a further
increase in demand for large scale electrolysis projects
to produce green hydrogen. The Board believes that
the twin drivers of achieving net zero targets and the
increasing need for energy and food security represent
endorsements of our strategy to increase production

capacity.

Scaling for the future

in November 2021, we raised £250 million to expand
our manufacturing capacity to S GW by 2024, to develop
our core products and to accelerate our technology
capabilities and to continue investment in organisational
development as we scale towards global manufacturing.
Just like the energy industry, iTM Power is going through
3 transition which Inctudes changes to our internal
processes and pracedures, which ara heing enahled hy
the recruitment of many highly skilled and experienced
people who will enhance our competencies and
capabilities across all areas of the Group.

Our ambitions today remain as strong as ever but after
careful consideration we have taken the important
decision to review our manufacturing strategy. This
has been brought into even sharper relief by current
geopolitical instability, high inflation and economic
uncertainty.

We have decided to redefine the timing of the
expansion of our capacity. While it remains our
aspiration, we recognise that given cost escalation,
supply constraints, and time delays it might not be
possible to reach S LW by the end of 2024, Capital
discipline has to be at the heart of svery invastment
decision we make and having an explicit capacity target
by a defined date could lead us to capital investment
decisions that are not right for our business.

For the same reasons, we have looked again at our plans
to bulld a second factory in the UK, at Aviation Park, and
have decided that the timing is not right to proceed
with this In the immediate future. Instead, capacity at
Bessemer Park will be rapidly expanded, with around
700 MW of capacity available by early 2023, followed
by further early expanslon of up to a total capacity of
1.5 GW, which can be achieved by around eight months
after the time the expanslon decision is made. We
believe this is a much more efficient use of capital, and

a more realistic near-term plan. The CEQ's Review,
which follows, sets this out in a little more detail.
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Statement from the Chair of the Board continued

Our products

* Our technology continues to develop. Our latest stack
platform, MEP 2.0, increases pressure, efficiency and
output. This technology will be showcased for the first
time through the 24 MW Leuna project. Unfortunately,
delivery of this project has been delayed due to a
number of factors, including supply chain constraints,
changes to Leuna’s site requirements, and both
manufacturing and testing delays. Delays are to some
extent understandable given we are delivering a
first-of-a-kind product into a commercial project.
The impact this had on our results is discussed in
more detail in the CFO’s Review.

Our product range will continue to develop and Linde
announced at its Green Hydrogen webinar in July 2022
the development of a larger system module. This has
been jointly designed and will enable five MEP 2.0 stack
skids to be integrated into a single module that can be
deployed into large projects.

We have also been awarded a contract by The
Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy
{BEIS), under its Net Zero Innovation Portfolio Low
Carbon Hydrogen Supply 2 Competition, to accelerate
the commercial deployment of our next generation
platform and its manufacture. This follows the
publication of a report highlighting the progress made
to date and describing the pathway to a final investment
decision (FID) and commercial operation of a 100 MW
scale electrolyser system powered by offshore wind

in 2025.

Financial

Qur people

‘We have continued to build our team and have been
very fortunate to have attracted highly talented
individuals in all departments. Today we employ over
430 people and have a growing apprentice scheme,
which has proven to be a great success,

Dr Graham Cooley has decided to step aside from his
position as CEO after 13 years in post, during which time
he has led the Company through very significant growth
and development. He will remain in position until a
successor is appointed, and thereafter assume a senior
strategic role in the Company, reporting to me and the
new CEQ. We wish to place on record our enormous
gratitude and respect for his leadership over the years.
We are delighted that we will continue to benefit

from his immense experience and expertise in the
hydrogen sector.

Tom Rae, the representative of ).C.B. Research, a
significant shareholder in ITM Power, resigned as a
Non-Executive Director in November 2021 following
completion of the fundraise which resulted in .C.B.
Research’s shareholding falling below the threshold
giving it the right to appoint a Non-Executive Director.
I'm sure | speak for the whole Board when | thank
Tom for his contribution during his year as a
Non-Executive Director.

| am delighted Denise Cockrem agreed to join us as a
Non-Executive Director from 25 July 2022. She combines
a strong history of knowledge and experience of
accounting with valuable experience in the renewable
energy sector. She will bring directly relevant skills to the
governance and future development of the Company.

I look forward to working with her.
Our partners .

Our strategic partnerships should enable us to capture
a material share of the global green hydrogen market
as its growth further accelerates over the coming years.
)look forward to ing shareholders on our prog
for what should be another exciting year.

As always, | would like to end by thanking all of our
stakeholders ~ staff, partners, shareholders and our
communities - for their help, support and enthusiasm
in helping us to create today’s ITM Power, a recognised
world leader in electrolysis technology and a creator of
jobs and value in the UK. Here’s to the future.

Sir Roger Bone
Chair of the Board
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the core
component
of world

governments’
energy transition
strategles.

Introduction

However, in the short term, and acrass Europe for
le, large projects are being delayed due to a lack

During 2022, hydrogen has increasingly ged as
a core component of world governments’ energy

it gies. Green hydrogen produced by
electrolysis from renewable power is pivoting from
demonstration and trial projects to intent and action
as the world seeks to achieve increasingly legislated
net zero targets.

This is a new market, with Proton Exchange Membrane
{PEM) electrolysis at the cutting edge of the solutions to
reach net zero. As such, we have continued to invest in
technology development to address a market that
demands performance and scale. In parallel, we have
sought to increase manufacturing capacity as the
technology is maturing. This dynamic has led to the need
10 manage the inherent uncertainty of rapid technology
and production scale-up.

Due, in part, to the tragedy unfolding in Ukraine,

8 are also now recognising that green
hydrogen has a vital role to play in strengthening energy
security, whilst at the same time, given the role that
methane plays in the food value chain, the need to
improve food security has also risen high on the agenda
with increasing demand for green ammania i pradira
fertitisers. Investment in renewables is also accelerating
85 governments around the world target an increasing
share of renewables in their energy mix. These factors
are combining to accelerate the demand for
electrolysers.

of FIDs. A number of the EU’s ‘important projects of
common European interest’ (IPCE(s) in the hydrogen
sector fall into this large project category and whilst EU
funding is available for such projects, until factors such
as subsidies and incantive schemes are announced,
there remalns a risk of further FID delays.

Performance

We were disappointed that the revenue from the
Leuna project was not recognised in the year, being
delayed into the next financial year. However, the
lessons learned from building this latest generation

of electrolysis equipment will ensure that our future

C and bl are enh d. Our gross
loss also widened in the year reflecting increased costs
on'committed contracts, much of which was associated
with first-of-a-kind plant or technology improvement.
We have also not yet fully realised the benefit of our
decision to stop undertaking EPC work, More widely,
the lessons learned include the need to consider carefully
introducing any technology development on the critical
path of projects, and as such we will focus in future on
selling validated products, which we see as world-leading.
The focut on recruiting staff to support delivery hos
resulted in overheads staying broadly consistent with
the prior year, with the increase in staff being deployed
either to delivery {cost of sales) or future value creation
{product development). Further details are discussed in
the CFQ's Review.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Review continued

The market for green hydrogen

The green hydrogen market has been propelled onto
centre stage of the global energy market with the
unfortunate events in Ukraine. Nations around the world
are taking action to shift away from expensive and scarce
methane as soon as possible. This is underlined by the
recent REPowerEl energy security plan which aims to
transform Europe’s energy system. The measures in the
plan set a target of 10 million tonnes per annum of
domestic renewable hydrogen production and 10 million
-tonnes per annum of imports by 2030 to replace
methane, coal and oil in hard-to-decarbonise industries
and transport sectors, The 20 million tonnes per annum
total is equivalent to 200 GW of electrolysis by 2030.

In the UK, the Government has also responded by
doubling its initial 5 GW of blue and green hydrogen
target to 10 GW of low-carbon hydrogen, of which a
minimum of 5 GW will be green hydrogen. This is good
news for the UK as it looks to bolster energy security,
energy storage and sustainability, and good news for
{T™M Power with our technology leadership in PEM
electrolysis.

The US House of Representatives has recently
approved the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 (US IRA),
3 $369 billion package dedicated to decarbonise the
United States. The bill will provide incentives for clean
energy technologies with tax incentives being the
primary mechanism, which should add long-term
certainty to clean energy markets, thereby attracting
significant investment, A tax credit for ‘qualified green

Backlog and pipeline

September September

2022 2021
MW MW % change
Work in progress' 77 43 79
Contracts backlog’ 755 an 79

1. Work in progress, conteacted bacvlog.
2. Contracts hacklog,

hydrogen’ would pay up to $3 per kilogram d 8
on the levels of life cycle emissions and staff wages.
This will have the effect of improving the viability of

a significant number of projects in the US, thereby
accelerating d d for green hydrogen products.

8

Across the world, more and more countries have
announced hydrogen strategies. According to Bloomberg
New Energy Finance, the 30 countries that have now
announced hydrogen strategies plan to build a total

of 73.8 GW of electrolysers by 2030.

The largest industrial users of grey hydrogen are the oil
refining and fertiliser sectors, accounting for upwards -
of 70 million tonrnes consumed per annum. With our

24 MW system deploying Lo Leuna Energy Park (refining),
and this system being replicated for deployment at the
Norwegian Yara Porsgrunn plant (animonia), we are at
the forefront of the move to decarbonise the most
intensive users of industrial hydrogen. These two
projects will form key reference plants for further
large-scale projects in these sectors globally.

" negotiation and preferced suppier backog.

As at 1 June 2022, we had a record backiog of 755 Mw,
ayear-on-year increase of 160%. New orders in the year
included the sale of a 2 MW electrolyser (increased
from the original 1.4 MW sale) to Sumitomo, a strategic
partner, for Tokyo Gas, our first deployment in Japan.

In October 2021, we announced that the REFHYNE Il

. consortium had been awarded a grant of €32.4 million

by CINEA (the European Climate, Infrastructure and
Environment Executive Agency) for the development of
3100 MW electrolyser to be sited at Shell’s Energy and
Chemicals Park, Rheinland and which will be used to
produce sustainable aviation fuel. REFHYNE il is the
follow-on project to the successful 10 MW REFHYNE |
project, Europe’s largest PEM hydrogen electrolyser,
which began operations in July 2022. ITMis a key
member of the 100 MW REFMYNE Il consortium, and the
project will see an engineering design phase which will
be followed by a FID expected in late 2022 with delivery
then scheduled for 2024,

In November 2021, the Green Hydrogen for Scotland
Consortium, of which we are a member, received UK
Government funding o support investment for the first
phase of development for ScottishPower’s 20 MW
Whitelee Windfarm hydrogen praduction and storage
facility. Also in November, we announced a 12 MW
electrolyser sale, however the location and customer
identity are restricted due to commercial sensitivities.

This was followed in January 2022 by our first project in
the key ammonia market, the world's largest consumer
of hydrogen, with the sale of a 24 MW efectrolyser to
Linde Engineering to be installed at the Porsgrunn site
operated by Yara, about 140 kilometres southwest of
Oslo. The site covers an area of approximately 1.5 square
kilometres and is the largest industrial site in Norway.
The Porsgrunn site produces three million tonnes of
fertiliser per year and is one of Norway's largest sources
of CO, emissions outside the oil and gas industry,
emitting around 800,000 tonnes per year. The
electrolysis plant will provide enough hydrogen to
produce 20,500 tonnes of ammonia per year, which can
be converted to between 60,000 and 80,000 tonnes of
green [lertiliser. The hydrogen required for ammonia
production is currently praduced from steam methane
reforming (SMR). Yara intends to start replacing this grey
hydrogen with green hydrogen. The 24 MW system
supplying 10,368 kilograms per day of hydrogen will
account for approximately 5% of the plant’s consumption
and serve as a feasibility study for future upscaling.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Review continued

Also in January 2022, we were pleased to announce that
our wholly-owned subsidiary, ITM Power GmbH, had
been approved for a €1.95 million (approximately

£1.6 million} award for the SINEWAVE project, as part of
the German Federal Ministry of Education and
Research’s (BMBF) hydrogen flagship project H2Giga that
focuses on technology development for series
production and industrialisation of electrolysis systems,
The project runs to March 2025 and is the first time we
have accessed German federal funding. In our trading
update in June, we announced that this project will
support the development of ITM Power Service,

an aftermarket focused customer support business
based in Germany designed to provide full product

life cycle support of deployed electrolyser systems.

All of our existing aftermarket operations, including the
Group's 24/7 UK Remote Support Centre will be merged
into one focused organisation with new headquarters in
Linden, ideally located in Hessen, which is a recognised
transit state within Germany with excelient motorway
links and local infrastructure. The facility will house spare
parts, including core PEM stack technology, to ensure
high service levels and rapid depfoyment capability

to systems in Europe. The organisation will be led

by Philip Wilsan as Technical Director and Calum
McConnell as Commercial Director, both long-term

IT™ Power staff members.

tn May 2022, RWE announced that it will be using an ITM
Power 4 MW electrolyser, made up of two of our 3MEP
Cube products, as part of a pilot project at their Lingen
facility. This pilot forms part of RWE's Growing Green
strategy announced in November 2021, which plans to
create 2 GW of green hydrogen capacity by 2030.

Production capacity strategy

As the Statement from the Chair of the Board reports,
we have decided to amend our ambitions for the timing
of our target to have 5 GW of production capacity and
have reviewed our plans to open a second UK factory at
Aviation Park.

Our ambitions are as strong as they have ever been,

the outlook for the green hydrogen economy has never
tooked better and as such these decisions have not been
taken lightly. In the case of the 5 GW target, we need to be
nimble and flexible, and we want to ensure investment
decisions are correct and right for the busi and

Available annual capacity at Bessemer Park will be

ramped up to around 700 MW over the next six months.

The factory has been reconfigured such that the final part
of the expansion, to 1.5 GW, is planned to be achieved
within the next two financial years but could be
accelerated to within eight months from the time

we take the expansion decision,

Capital investment at Bessemer Park, which is a
leasehold site, has 1otalled circa £16 million to 30 April
2022. Over the next two financial years, we expect
further investment of around £13 million, which will
take us up 10 1.5 GW of annual capacity. Many of our
manufacturing processes have been reengineered and
we will continue to introduce more automation,
particularly around the core stack product to improve
consistency and reduce waste. Finally, we are working
to identify new testing facilities to allow product
testing and future product validation work to be
ignificantly upscaled

considered fully before capital is committed.

With regard to Aviation Park, the current business
climate and cost escalation have caused us to review our
origina! plans. We believe in the near-term that extending
the totai capacity at Bessemer Park up to 1.5GWisa
better use of capital with commensurately improved
near-medium term cash flows.

Technology

Ourtechnology, roadmap is focused on increasing
efficiency, reducing cost {both operational expenditure
and capital expenditure) and expanding production
capacity of our electrolyser products. Product development
al ITM Power is continual and includes, amongst others
things, increased current density, improved membrane
materials, ultra-low catalyst loadings, in-house component
preparation and the adoption of automated assembly.

We have applied technology improvements to the next
generation of 2 MW stack modules, internally known

as MEP 2.0, which are being deployed in the 24 MW
electrolyser for the Leuna Chemical Complex in Germany
and thereafter at the Porsgrunn site operated by Yara.
This latest generation of 2 MW stack modules represents
a step change in performance with a 10% improvement
in efficiency and a 50% increase in operating pressure to
30 bar, reducing both electrolyser aperating cost and
energy consumption associated with downstream
hydrogen compression.

Recently, Linde announced the development of a larger
system module, which has been designed in partnership
with ITM Power. This will use MEP 2.0 stacks, configured
into skids of three stacks and then packaged as a
five-skid module thereby creating a 10 MW electrolyser
module. The 10 MW modules will then be deployed in
multiple batches for large projects.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Review continued

Development of our next generation platform
commenced in 2019 with the completion of a feasibility
study funded by the BEIS Hydrogen Supply Competition.
This was followed by a second phase, also funded by the
BEIS Hydrogen Supply Competition, and covered two
_streams: a Front End Engineering Design (FEED) study for
a 100 MW deployment at Phillips66 and @rsted and the
development and validation of our 5 MW stack platform.
This phase concluded during the year with visits from
project partners Phillips66, @rsted and Element Energy,
along with the UK Energy Minister and BEIS officials, to
Bessemer Park when we presented our findings and
showecased the first test station and prototype stack.

Shortiy after the year end, we announced the award
of a contract by BEIS, under its Net Zero Innovation
Portfolio Low Carbon Hydrogen Supply 2 Competition,
to accelerate the commercial deployment of our next
generation platform and its manufacture. The award
for the project was for £9.3 million.

The development and testing programme for our next
generation platform includes both component level and
full-scate evaluation and will remain ongoing as part of
our technology roadmap and continuous improvement
of our product suite. This platform is larger than our
state-of-the-art MEP system and it will undergo rigorous
testing in representative conditions to'validate the
performance through real-world conditions, ensuring
the technology is ready for large-scale commercialisation.

Motive

In March, a strategic partnership agreement was made
with Vitol for wholly-owned subsidiary {TM Motive
Limited (now Motive Fuels Limited), trading as Motive,
to become a 50/50 joint venture between ITM Power
and Vitol. .

Vitol is a leader.in the energy sector with a presence
across the spectrum: from oil through to gas, power,
renewables and carbon. Vitot will invest up to

£30 miliion, which will be matched by a similar
investment fram ITM Power. Motive owns all UK public
hydrogen refuelling stations constructed by {tTM Power.
It was set up as a Group division in 2020 and became a
separate legal entity in May 2021. It operates with its
own board, comprising three directors from {TM Power
and three from Vitol.

As part of the transaction, Motive has entered into a
framework agreement with ITM Power, under which
Motive appoints ITM Power as its preferred supplier for
up to 240 MW of electrolysis equipment to support
Motive with the development and roll-out of new green
hydrogen refuelling stations. Motive has also appointed
Vitol as its preferred supplier for up to 240 MW of
electricity demand, which will provide green power to
the network of new refuelling stations.

Vitol shares Motive’s belief that the market for hydrogen
in transport is on the cusp of rapid expansion, supported
by government incgntives to accelerate transportation
decarbonisation. This partnership will help facilitate the
rapid scaling up of production, distribution and demand
stimulation for hydrogen to transportation. Vitol is
aligned with Motive’s strategy to target the building of
farge refuelling stations for heavy duty vehicles, such as
trucks and buses. Over the past 18 months, Motive has
been working to develop deep relationships with a small
number of blue-chip heavy goods users in the UK and
aims to develop standard 4 MW sites around the UK.

Outlook

We are on the verge of a major energy and industrial
step-change. | describe it as the fourth industriat
revolution, one of interconnectivity and automation,
powered by Net Zero, and ITM Power is playing a key
role in supporting this revolution.

1t has been a privilege to lead ITM Power through its
transition from an R&D business to a world leading
electrolyser manufacturing company. No CEO can
remain in place indefinitely and now, as we seek to
become a global manufacturing powerhouse, is a good
time for me to step aside and hand over to someone
with more experience in this area.

The whole team at ITM Power has been a pleasure to
work with and | fook forward to working with the new
CEO and continuing my involvement with the Group.

Or Graham Cooley
Chief Executive Officer
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another busy
year for ITM
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Bessemer Park/

startmg to pick—!
up in the second
lgralf of t}ile year.

introduction

FY22 was another busy year for (TM Power, with
manufacturing ramp up at Bessemer Park starting
to pick up in the second half of the financial year.
We also continued to work very closely with all
strategic partners, especially our route to market
for larger projects, Linde Engineering,

In November 2021, we completed a successful equity
fundraise of net £243 million which was well supported
and underpinned our strategy to scale manufacturing
capacity, aligned with demand, in the medium term.

in the near term, the fundra|se has euabled us to
Invest in accell ical d and

Further information about the Board's consideration of
the Motive joint venture is available in Our Stakeholders
and Section 172(1) Statement on page 21.

Finally, we have continued to make significant
investment in both the core technology and In the
manufacturing site, Bessemer Park, as well as our
people, during FY22 to support our future growth
ambitions and retaln our position as one of the world’s
leading PEM electrolyser manufacturers.

Key financials
A summary of the Group’s key financials is set out in the
table below:

organisational capablhtv, start to ramp up pr ds
capability, to enhance our lead times and competitive
positioning. This in turn revealed pressure points within
the supply chain and Bessemer Park manufacturing

processes, which whilst in the process of being
has led to revenue recognition for certain projects, and
most notably the 24 MW Leuna project, being deterred
beyond the year end.

Shortly before the year end, in fate March 2022,

we also announced that we had concluded a
partnarship agreement with Vitol for cur whully: uwned
subsidiary ITM Motive Limited (now Motive Fuels
timited), trading as Motive, to become a 50/50 joint
venture owned between ITM Power and Vitol. Vitol will
invest up to £30 million in the venture, which will be
matched by a similar investment from ITM Power, This
will allow us to focus on executing our current contracts
and developing care asa f: er,
ready for growth as demand is realised, From now on,
the Group will account for its 50% share of profits or
losses from Motive, as it does with its 50% share of ILE.

2022 zcn 2020

Yearto30Aprl  _ _im a____fm_

Revenue 5.6 4.3 3.3
o Gross loss (23. 5) (6.5) (5 8)

Pre-tax loss o {46. 7) {(27.6) (29 5)

Adjusted EBITDA! (39.8) (21.4) (18.1)

Property, plant and

equipment plus

intangible assets - 16.8 87

Inventnry 2.3 3.9 3.3

Work-in-progress

(Wip) 7.9 25 11

Net cash 365.9 176.1 39.9

Net assets 395.0 197.4 55.8

1, Agjusted EBITDA y messure, The caculati

Bsinchuced below
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Chief Financlal Officer’s Review continued

Non-financial key performance Indicators
We also use the following non-financial performance
indicators to consider our performance over time:

Year to 30 April 2022 200 2020
MW in backlog 680 290 43
MWinWIP 75 43 14
MW output’ Not Not

11 recorded recorded
1. MWoutput Yoy metric year asthe

Financial performance

Revenue

The principal ways in which we generate revenue and
income are through product sales, consulting contracts
(FEED and feasibility studies}, maintenance contracts and
grant funding.

Revenues of £5.6 million (FY21: £4.3 million) were
generated in the year. Product revenue of £2.0 million
{FY21: £1.7 million} related to delivery of two electrolyser
products in Australia, as well as the progression of our
REFHYNE ! project for Shell. Consultancy revenue of

£2.9 million {FY21: £2.1 million} predominantly stemmed
from the design and proof of concept project commissioned
by BEIS for the next generation stack platform.

Fuel sates during the year were £229,000 (FY21: £153,000)
with the comparative period reflecting the effects of last
year’s lockdowns. Following the announced Motive joint
venture with Vitol, the entity will be equity accounted
for going forward. :

We had expected to be able to recognise the revenue
from the sale, via Linde, to Leuna of 24 MW of electrolyser
modules, but revenue is now expected to be recognised

in FY23, This defay was attributable to scale-up challenges -

presented by the deployment of our MEP 2.0 technology,
coupled with some local supply chain constraints.

In collaboration with Linde, the delivery method for the
modules was amended. As such, under accounting
standard IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
the product will remain in WIP until later in the product
delivery cycle, when the product is transferred to

the customer.

The Group generated a gross loss of £23.5 million
{FY21: £6.5 million loss). Gross loss was adversely
affected by cost overruns on the REFHYNE ) and Leuna
projects. REFHYNE | is a project where we carried out,
all of the EPC, a role that is now carried out by tinde
Engineering. The Leuna project is the first to use the
latest MEP 2.0 generation technology. The lessons
learned from both these first-of-a-kind projects have
led to a sharper focus on validation timing, costings,

The loss before tax was £46.7 million (FY21: £27.6 million}
and basic and diluted loss per share of 8.1p (FY21: loss of
5.5p per share).

Cash bumn

Cash burn' increased to £53.3 million (FY21: £37.7 million).
This was principally impacted by £7.0 million of product
development associated with MEP 2.0 and GEP 1.0, 3
£25.8 million increase in WIP and inventory build, and
£4.1 million for additional production equipment for

the Bessemer Park factory.

nd cash

1 uscs the y )
burn to better reflect undertying performance. Cash bumn ks a non-statutory
measure the directots use tomonitor the Group, and b calculated by

the effccts of any cquity fund rakse after
costs. Isa primary sines
provide 3 f trading ‘ i to
81D, b hl A «
provide a key iteepresents

a that 5 refl the pe
resulting from moverents In revenue. gross margin and the cash costs of

3 out bel
(see atso Hote 6 for more information).

and testing capability which we expect to imp
as production of MEP 2.0 ramps up.

Losses

The adjusted EBITDA loss' was £39.8 million

(FY21: £21.4 miltion). This was impacted by various
factors: the foss at the gross margin levet referred to
above, as well as costs associated with production ramp
up at Bessemer Park and the overhead increase, mostly
as a result of recruitment of skills during the year, with an
emphasis on manufacturing and delivery resource.

Financial position: positioned for the future

Current assets increased to £423.6 million

(FY21: £205.5 million). This was principally as a

result of the fundraise of £250 million in November
2021, which resutted in year-end cash of £365.9 million
{FY21: £176.1 million), and an increase in inventories to
£32.2 million (FY21: £6.4 million) as the Group stocked
up on raw materials to deliver its order pipefine and
saw WIP increase ahead of the delivery of the Leuna
and other projects.

Trade and other receivables were £25.5 million
{FY21: £23.0 million) including £10.3 million

{FY21: £4.9 million) of prepayments to suppliers for
fong-lead time items required on the Group’s build
projects. Trade and other payables increased to
£34.3 million {FY21: £12.9 million), driven by an
increase of £10.5 million in deferred sales income
principally from the teuna project.

Fixed assets increased to £34.5 million R
(FY21: £23.6 million) reflecting a £2.1 million rise
in property, plant and equipment and £5.8 million
of additional intangible assets, with the rest

2012 2021
£000 £000
Loss from operations (44,736)  {26,657)
Add back: from i
Depreciation 2,340 2,321
Impairment - 1,713
Amortisation 849 274
Loss on disposal - 173
Fair value loss on loan notes 344 -
Share-based payment charge
(Note 25} 1,429 798
Adjusted EBITDA (39,774) (21,377)
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Chief Financial Officer’s Review continued

Capitalised development costs increased
significantly during the year, reflecting the Group’s
focus on launching updated or new core products:
the MEP 2.0 and the GEP 1.0. In FY22, the Group
capitalised £6.8 million of additi development

Events after the balance sheet date

After the balance sheét date, the Group announced that
ITM Power had been awarded a contract by BEIS, under
its Net Zero Innovation Portfolio Low Carbon Hydrogen
Supply 2 Competition to accelerate the commercial

costs (FY21: £1.5 million} resulting in total lised
development and know-how costs at year end of
£9.1 million (FY21: £3.2 million).

The Group also recognised an increase in both

" payables and provisions. Payables rose to £34.3 million
{FY21: £12.9 million), reflecting an increase in trade
payables of £2.5 million as the Group improved payment
terms with suppliers, and an increase in deferred income,
with sales contracts paid on milestones, reflecting in
particular money on projects in flight, including Leuna.

Provisions increased in the year to £21.8 million

(FY21: £12.3 million). Provisions for contract losses

rose to £12.5 million, (FY21: £4.8 million). This was

due to continuing support for REFHYNE | through site
acceptance testing, and the Leuna project with an
increased cost of parts and increased labour expectations
to fulfil the contract. Additions to warranty provisions

in the year of £2.2 million (2021: £0.2m) reflect both
contract progress in the year and recognition that
first-of-a-kind plant requires additional support in the
field. We retain our fong-term expectation that warranty
costs will reduce below 3% of sales price for standard
product, repeat sales. '

ploy of our next g platform and its
manufacture. The award for the project is for £9.3 million
and follows initial designs developed through previous
BEIS funding competitions. The award is expected to be
spread over a three-year period and is also expected
to be back-end loaded. :

In addition, at the time of the trading update in June,
we announced the development of ITM Power Service,
an aftermarket focused customer support business
based in Germany designed to provide full product life
cycle support of deployed electrolyser systems, All
existing aftermarket operations, including the Group’s
24/7 UK Remote Support Centre, will be merged into
one focused organisation with new headquarters in
Linden in Germany.

In September 2022, we reviewed our plans to open a
second UK factory at Aviation Park, given the current
business climate and general cost escalation. Qur
ambitions remain as strong as ever, but we need to be
nimble and flexible, and we want to ensure investment
decisions are correct and right for the business and
considered fully before capital is committed. In the
near-term extending the total capacity at Bessemer
Park up to 1.5 GW is a better use of capital with

€O ately improved d term

cash flows. :

In September 2022 Dr Graham Cooley decided to step
aside from his position as CEO of the Company after 13 |
years in post. The Company has commenced a process
to select a new CEO. Dr Cooley will remain in position
until a successor is appointed, and thereafter assume

a senior strategic role in the Company, reporting to

the Chairman and the new CEO.

Qutlook and current trading

We start the new financial year in a strong financial
position and, whilst there are many operational changes
being made within the Group, we expect good sales
momentum, with further investment into our people,
our processes and our assets. We also see the economic
case for green hydrogen projects increasing, with the
macro picture expected only to improve.

In summary we provide the following guidance for FY23:
—Product revenue in the range of £23-28 million
~MW delivered in the range 48-65 MW
- Adjusted EBITDA loss of £45-50 million
- Capital expenditure of £30-40 million, with a focus
on development costs
~Working capital of £40-60 million
~ Cash burn of £110-135 million

We have a contracted backiog of 77 MW which

we expect to increase in the coming months as more
projects reach their FID and become contracted. That
said, with lead times stretching within many supply
markets in FY22 as a result of macroeconomic conditions,
the focus in the next financial year will be on delivering
what is already contracted, with 60% to 80% of the MW in
contracted work in progress expected to be recognised
in FY23. We will also continue to utilise working capital
to build products to stock, with 50 MW to 100 MW of
core stack modules being built for products to be
recognised in future years. .

Continued investment in capability and capacity will

- see losses increase in the near term, with an improved

position in the medium term. The cash on our balance
sheet will enable us to grow capacity, initiafly through
£10 million to £15 million further investment in Bessemer
Park. Longer term, we will invest to increase capacity
towards 5 GW to enable us to address the large

demand we see in the future.

Andy Allen
Chief Financial Officer
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Our Market

“Governments need to take rapid

actions to lower the barriers that are
holding low-carbon hydrogen back
from faster growth, which will be
important if the world is to have a
chance of reaching net zero emissions
by 2050."

Fatih Bira!
|EA Executive Director

To deliver on rapidly approaching net zero targets, the
world needs to act fast, especially where the reduction
of fossil fuels is concerned.

The continuing crisis in Ukraine has brought into fresh focus
the pressing need to move as quickly as possible away
from methane - which the United Nations Economic
Commission for Europe states as having a 100-year
global warming potential 28 to 34 times that of CO,.

Hydrogen produced using methane as a feedstock plays
a pivotal rale in all oil refining and ammonia production.
Combined, these two carbon intensive industries lay claim
to almost 70 million tonnes of industrial hydrogen per
annum, according to the International Energy Agency (IEA).

Global hydrogen demand by sector in the Net Zero
Scenario, 2020-2030
225

This stark figure lays bare the reality of how fragile our
food and energy security really are, given both are entirely
dependent on grey, steam methane reformed hydrogen.

In response to the need to decarbonise, some have
turned 1o blue hydrogen, where the CO, arising from
its production {from hydrocarbons) is captured at the
production facility and stored separately. However, blue
hydrogen projects have been exposed as not being cost
competitive, and that is before carbon pricing and
carbon capture and storage {CCS) costs are added.

in fact, blue hydrogen projects “are high risk and likely
to become stranded assets” as soon as the end of this
decade, while potentially adding to Europe’s gas crisis,
according to the Institute for Energy Economics and
Financial Analysis (IEEFA).

Governments around the world are experiencing the
real-life impact that being beholden to carbon intensive
natural gas undermines energy security. A scalable,
sustainable, and fit for purpose alternative lies instead
in turning renewable electrons into the only net zero
molecule - green hydrogen.

200

0
3
T

Hydrogen sits increasingly at the heart of government
strategy. While it could be argued that this has been the
case for some time, the hydrogen value chain has thus
far been dysfunctional. However, over recent months,
there has been a step change in coordination and
cooperation, which is critical to joining up the value
chain. This is laying the vital bedrock needed Lo build

¥ Refining MIndustry W Transponn  ® Power
Ammonia - fuel ®Synfucls ® Buildings
® Grid injection
Source: IEA, Global hydrogen demand by sector Inthe Net Zero Scenarlo, 2020.
10 “

M A, Darke hrepe-fh g /i
hydrogen-demand by-sector-in-the-net-ero-scenario-2020-2030

a green hydrogen economy.
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Our Market continued

UK market

In August 2021, we welcomed Kwasi Kwarteng, Secretary
of State for Business, Energy and Industriat Strategy, to
officially open our Sheffield-based factory, currently one
of the world’s largest electrolyser production facilitiies.
Ouring his visit, Mr Kwarteng announced the first-ever
UK Hydrogen Strategy, direct from our factory.

Due to the subsequent conflict in Ukraine and the
knock-on effect on methane pricing, the UK Government
has doubled its 2030 hydrogen production target to

10 GW. Crucially, green hydrogen will comprise a
minimum of 5 GW of this target. With government backing
and mounting evidence against pursuing blue hydrogen
projects, it's no exaggeration to say the future is green.

A 2 =
Kwas! Kwarteng, Secretary of State for Business, Energy, and industrial
Strategy, with Or Graham Caoley, CEQ of ITM Power :

European market

In March 2022, the European Union announced its new
energy security plan — REPowerEU, This plan builds on
the 2020 EU Hydrogen Roadmap (2 x 40 GW plan), as
well as the 2021 Fit for 55 decarbonisation plan. The
new increased target is for circa 20 million tonnes per
annum by 2030, which will require nearly 200 MW of
electrolysis a year. This, coupled with the Delegated Acts,
incentivises early deployment and puts makers of
electrolysis equipment at the forefront of Europe’s

shift to a low-carbon economy.

REPowerEU
PHASE QUT DEPENDENCY
ON RUSSIAN FOSSH, FUELS

SAME
ENERGY

SMART INVESTMENT
an:

permitting and ibnovation

Global market

2021 was a record year in policy action and low-carbon
hydrogen production, with governments around the
world adopting hydrogen strategies. There are currently
more than 75 green hydrogen plans from countries
realising that they need to change, and change quickly.

There has been a number of reports mapping out future
scenarios, the most well-known of which is the IEA
report = Net Zero by 2050 - which states that 322 million
tonnes of electrolytic hydrogen is needed hy 2050.

To put it another way, that’s 3,585 GW of electrolysis.

Since our factory was opened in 2021, we have hosted
a number of delegates from governments around the
world, keen to discover more about both green
hydrogen and our electrolysers, This has included His
Excellency Dr Mohamed Shaker, Egypt’s Minister of
Electricity and Renewable Energy, ahead of the
COP27 conference in Egypt later this year.

His Excellency Dr Mohamed Shaker, Egypt’s Minister of Electricity
and Renewable Energy, touring our Sheffteld factory

Net Zero

by 2050 3,585 GW of electrolysis needed

200 MW

of electrolysis needed per year for REPowerEU
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Our Strategy

Our vision

Overview Governance

o

Continual technology Scalable manufacturing Strong partners and Develop I'TM Power Service Expertknowledge
development relationships
What this means What this means ‘What this means ‘What this means ‘What this means.

We'understand that the overriding
cost contributor to hydrogen is

We recognise that we need
appropriate capacity to scale the
busi di d increases. This

not the capl
a customer project, but more

includes maximising Bessemer Park
h d

We have identified a number of

We understand our commitment to

impact,

our d t stop at the:

We recruit the best talent wi
seeking to retain key s|
" d devel

in October 2019, we announced

v gates or
We offer after sales support

own processes, fully controlling the

We strive fora world that is free 3 and | ‘milion e inclodi )
.o....._ w.ﬁ__n_h -._unn_wncmwn% H_mnn.una w._u_ Itisimportant that we maintain a d toimprove | funerising, e aintenan ncu%.ﬂmhﬂwawwham Mﬁﬁﬁdrﬁﬂﬁhmﬂﬂw -
Sm :w,s ‘and wheré everyons competitive advantage s_,u..__”,% operations and dellvery. Linde of £38 mifion, together withthe | packages, s well as 24/7 control unlque and special to us.
around the world can breathe oducts 1 25 deRal formation of a joint venture to deliver | room monitoring services, giving
clean air, products as well as defining a renewatile hydrogen to large:scale | customers peace of mind that they
technology roadmap for the future. Industrial praj or 3 are fully supported the

Our mission In November 2020, we announced | ffe cycte of the product.

. th Snam, one of We continue to develop recycling and
Our three-pronged mission he world’s leading energy refresh services for our products to
RS oot i s Lot infrastructure opeatars. support ours, and our customers,
has to offer, inspiring our Other partners include Shell, Vita), | environmental, social and governance
customers to implement @rsted, and Sumitomo, (ESG) ambitions, maximising the
change, and using our value of d
collective experience and In the period Achicvements In the period Inthe period Achlevements in the period
knowledge to direct global ~Continuous development and - Upgrade to power supply at - New partnership with Vitol to - Developed support model with — Around 200 new employees In the
policy to drive change. improvement of MEP 2.0, which Bessemer Park co-invest into Motive Optimal for Australia last 18 months

Strategic pillars

‘We will achieve this through

our five strategic pillars, set out

here, whichare:

- Delivered by our people

- Enabled by our business
model

- Measured through our KPIs

Isa first-of-a-kind product and
s belng deployed at Leuna

- Showcased prototype of our
next generation platform in
Septémber 2021

~Moving many core stack
processes In-house

- Sale to Yara of 2 MW efectrolyser
system through Linde Engineering
-Shell Refhyne Il contract signed

- Appointment of Martin Clay as
Operations Director and Chris
Yewdall as Projects Director

- Academy programme faunched

v

~ Further efforts to achleve
international cerification for
our products

~ Adoption of Linde Gas standard
requirements

~ Fullintegration with the larger

scale solutions via Linde Engineering
~Grant win in May 2022 to support
commercial deployment of our
next generation platform
~Design 2.0 of Plug and Play
containers designed and
ntroduced to the market

y

~Further automation

~Redesign of elements of Bessemer
Park to improve production flow

v

~Funding from BEIS for our next
generation platform in May 2022

~Further business development

4

- Further
to deliver new technology, new
territories and new factories

~Appointment of Tim Calver
as Commerclal Oirector to
strengthen relationships

v

~Rebrand of (TM Power GmbH
10 ITM Power Service

~Signed a new lease on a support
hub, which will hold after sales
spares and staff in Europe

~Campletion of the Support hub
In Europe

~Revenue streams to be built with
long-term contracts

~ Appointment of Denise Cockrem

. a2 Non-Executive Director in
July 2022

- Apprenticeship programme growth

- Appointment of Tim Calver as
Commercial Director

- Equality, diversity and inclusion
(EDI) programme
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Our Business Model

Our unique position

History module will be able to be

ITM Power PLC was deployed into Iarge projects,

admitted to the AIM

market of the London Development and testing

Stock Exchange in 2004, of our next generation
platform remains ongolng.

Track record The stack architecture

We have been deploying has multiple competitive

electrolysers with long-term | advantages Including

partners for over a decade
and continue to break new
grouid. tn January 2021,
we received an order for

.the world’s then largest
PEM electrolyser system
of 24 MW from Linde. In
October 2021, with Linde,
we announced the
deployment of 100 MW of
electrolyser modules at
Sheli’'s Rheinland refinery,
following the start-up of
an initial 10 MW facllity at
the sites.

Technology

MEP-2.0 operates under
higher pressure, a higher
current density and is
more efficient than

its predecessor.

The joint develop with

lower capital costs and a
smaller system footprint.
These advantages will
enhance the stack’s ability
to operate under flexible
conditions when coupled
to renewable energy
sources, producing green
hydrogen at low cost.

Partnerships

Our position with ILE and
Linde puts us in a powerful
position to respond to
large and extra-large
demands, using three
years of shared experience
1o address the requirements
of customers.

Capaclty

We recognise that
customers need to invest
In bility and as such

Linde of a larger system

modute will see five MEP 2.0
skids formed into 2 10 MW
module. The larger system

we have built a factory in
Sheffield with a capaclty
planned to reach 1.5 GW
per annum.

* Find outmore about

our products here:
https://itm-power.com/
products

How we
create value

Creating value

Through our products,
which respond to the
need for a worlid thatis
free of fossll fuels, we will
create value for
shareholders, customers
and wider stakeholders,

Helping the world reach

net zero by 2050

- Our electrolysers,
powered by renewable
energy, produce green
hydrogen - a clean,
-zero-emissions fuel

Champloning sustainable

power and gulding policy

~Helping develop
regulations and
standards - e.g. BSI
Committee PVE/3/8, I1SO
Technical Committee
197, and British
Compressed Gases
Association {(BCGA)
Code of Practice 41

Supporting our
community through the
1TM Nurture social

~Replacing grey hydrogen

programme

In the industriat sector
-~ currently 70 million
tonnes per annum
globally

=Supportng local
charities championed by
employees ~ £15,604
contributed in FY22

~Sharing knowledge
and understanding -
including in schools
and universities, as
well as launching
our apprenticeship
programme for 2022
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Our Stakeholders and Section i72(1) Statement

Our business model informs and drives discussions for
both executives and the Board. It informs the resources
and relationships required to execute our plan for growth.

We are driven by innovation and continuous
improvement. Engaging with and learning from
workforce, customer and other stakeholder feedback is
an integral part of what we do and how we develop the
business. We actively seek feedback to enable us to
make improvements and changes to our products

and processes.

To help the world reach net zero by 2050, we have to act
beyond our own supply chain. We therefore participate
actively in industry bodies that champion sustainable
power and guide policy, as well as working with schools
and universities to help inspire the next generation
about green hydrogen.

Statement from the Board
During the year, the Board acted in good faith
to promote the long-term success of ITM Power.

In accordance with the directors’ duties set out in
section 172 of the UK Companies Act 2006 {the
Companies Act), the Board supervises the operation and
development of ITM Power to maximise its equity value
over the long term, without regard to the individual
interests of any shareholder.

One of our Non-Executive Directors, lirgen Nowicki, is
appointed by a major shareholder of ITM Power (Linde).
However, each of the Directors understands his or her
responsibility under the Companies Act to act fairly as
between members of the Company. We acknowledge
that all of our decisions may affect ITM Power’s
shareholders through their impact on the future success
of the business and confirm our due regard in this
respect.

We recognise that to deliver our strategy in a sustainable
way, we must consider the commercial, social and
environmental impacts of our business. During the year,
we have monitored, assessed and challenged ITM
Power’s progress against the annual business plan and
targets. Targets include both financial and non-financial
metrics, including ESG metrics.

When taking decisions of strategic importance, we
endeavour to balance the interests of our stakeholders
in ways that are compatible with ITM Power’s long-term,
sustainable growth. The Board gains stakeholder
perspectives to inform its decision making through
direct engagement where feasible, but the number and
distribution of ITM Power’s stakeholders means that
stakeholder engagement often takes place at an
operational level. Where this is the case, the Board
receives insights on stakeholder views through

ication with senior and
regular reporting.

The key stakeholder groups we have identified are those
that have significant interactions with our business
model and that we impact in the course of our business
operations. The relevance of each stakeholder group
may vary depending on the particular decision being

_taken. The Board has Lo balance different, and
sometimes competing, perspectives meaning it is not
always possible to satisfy everyone’s desired outcome
or achieve a positive outcome for all stakehalders.

Ensuring our business operates responsibly is
fundamental to our long-term success. The Board
oversees a corporate governance framework that
enables the right people to take the right decisions at
the right time.

On the next two pages, we have provided

further details of how the Board approached two key
strategic decisions during the year: the capital raise in
November 2021 and the Motive joint venture with Vitol.
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Our Stakeholders and Section 172(1) Statement continued

You can read more about key aspects of section 172 considerations as follows:

Section 172 factor

Relevant disclosures

The likely consequences of any
decision in the long term

- Our vision and mission on page 17
- Our Strategy and Our Business Madel on pages 17 to 18
—CEO’s Review and CFO’s Review on pages 8 to 14

The interests of the C s
employees

- Stakehold FEYY : Workforce on page 22
- Sustainable Energy, Engineered Sustainably: Our workforce on pages 28
029

. —Principle 3 at hitps://itm-power.com/investors/corporate-governance

- https.//itm-power.com/careers
- ESG Report 2022: Our social impact at https://itm-power.com/investors/
financial-reports

The need to foster business
relationships with suppliers,
customers and others

- Stakeholder engagement: Customers and potential customers on page 22
~Principle 3 at https://itm-power.com/investors/corporate-governance
- Business Partner Code of Conduct at https://itm-power.com/sustainability

The impact of the Company's
operations on the community and
the environment

- Stakeholder engag it: Local co on page 23

- Sustainable Energy, Engineered Sustainably: Climate change on pages 26
to27

- Principle 3 at https://itm-power.com/investors/corporate-governance

- ESG Report 2022: Our environmental impact and Our social impact at
https://itm-power.com/investors/financial-reports

The desirability of the Company
maintaining a reputation for high
standards of business conduct

- Sustainable Energy, Engineered Sustainably: Business ethics on page 29

- Code of Ethics at https://itm-power.com/sustainability

— Principle 8 at https://itm-power.com/investors/corporate-governance

—ESG Report 2022: Qur governance at https://itm-power.com/investors/
financial-reports

The need to act fairly as between
members of the Company

- Stakeholder engagement: Investors on page 21

—How the Board approached two key strategic decisions during the year on
pages 20 and 21

- Principle 2 at https://itm-power.com/investors/corporate-governance

Capital raise

cant accelerstion in dem

Consideration of section 172 impacts: key stakeholder groups relevant to and affected by the decision
investors

GRY and

ng round to

ther an apen offer wouid be possibie to aliow retall sharehiniders 16 partic:pate. Bitim;
vaas not possitie due lo the g of the transacnon,

nd corporaie de
upport and tr
Sirategic partners
gic parinerships, particularly with Linde, provige s with the EPC expertise necessary to deliver large
scale projects in overseas markets. As well as being a strategic partney, Linda is also our argast sharehoider,
and subscrbed for £26 radton of shares 25 part of the ca

Customers and potential customers
Capitat was raised with & view 1o sip: antly scaling up and eypanding cur sperations (5 take advaniage
of forecast exponentat demand growih in the global elect; This would build on the customer
ticnshins we have across ruitigie giohal markeis. We are alss invesnng 10 dnve down manufaciuring costs,
g to offer cost-cfective hydrogen solitions at scafe,

Suppliers
We afiocai

Group Metal PGM;) tupply

ed
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Our Stakeholders and Section 172(1) Statement continued

Motive
Context
ve the market for wdroge
incentives 10 accelerate tanspnrtation dacarbonisat
4 buw‘n and demand swmulat

nsport is on the cuss of r3pid expansion, supgoried by government
facilnate the rapid scaling

for hydrogen o tea as identified as

for Motive. Both ITM Power and Vilel wi
d red supnh
ils preferrad supp r:‘o.' U {0 260 MW of alectrs

Consideration of section 172 impacts: key stakeholder groups relevant to and affected by the decision
Investors
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Investors
Investors provide the equity capital for our business.

They hold management and the Board to account,
on operational/commerdial performance, financiat
performance and key environmental, social and
governance (ESG) matters.

How we engage:

~Led by the CEO, supported by the Investor Relations
team - available to meet current and potential
shareholders

—Board kept appraised of the views of analysts by the
CEO (an update at every regular Board meeting)
and CFO

- Shareholder communication coordinated by the
Investor Relations team with the Company Secretary,

the Company’s nominated advisor (NOMAD), Investec,

and corporate communications consultants, Tavistock
Communications

—Regular meetings with and presentations to fund
managers, retail brokers and analysts

- Price sensitive information shared through London
Stock Exchange’s Regulatory News Service

—Shareholders can attend our Annual General Meeting
{AGM) and any Extraordinary Genera! Meeting (EGM),
which Board members attend

~Report to institutional shareholders twice a year
through roadshows aligned with the full and half year
reports and webinars to coincide with the release of
trading updates

Action taken:

- To accommodate restrictions and preferences as a
result of COVID-19, we provided virtual access to our
2021 AGM and EGM

- We conducted online investor events in response to
COVID-19 and intend to continue this as it enabled
much broader engagement

- We have engaged with some of the larger investors
who have dedicated ESG teams to aid their
understanding of us and obtain their views on our
approach to ESG

Further reading:

- See the Remuneration Report on page 56 for details
of how the Remuneration Committee responded to
feedback about the 2021 Remuneration Report
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Our Stakeholders and Section 172(1) Statement continued

‘Workforce

Our workforce makes, sells and supports our products.
It also develops our products to maintain our market-
leading edge.

Itincludes employees, contractors and consultants.

How we engage:

~Workforce informed of matters affecting it directly and
on the various factors affecting the performance of
the Group through formal and informal meetings

~Work with nominated employee representatives
to ensure appropriate consultation and information
flows on proposed changes to terms and conditions

- Open-door teadership culture where directors and
senior managers welcome feedback and the
opportunity to discuss business improvement

~ Specific emplovee groups set up to address particular
areas, such as the Health and Safety Committee and
Women in ITM Power

- Conduclt engagement and wellbeing surveys, the
results of which are shared with the 8oard

- ising ding contrib through
peer-to-peer nominations and support from the CEO

- Regular reporting of key workforce performance
indicators to the Board

Overview  Strategle Report  Governance  Fi

Action taken:

—Remit of the ITM Academy agreed

- Regutar town hall meetings with employees providing
further opportunities for the workforce to ask
questions and to celebrate success

- Reviewed and benchmarked employee remuneration
10 ensure we are competitive in the market and now a
Real Living Wage employer

- Developing the collection and analysis of data about
our workforce to improve our engagement and

ding, such as employee turnover and leaver
reasons; ED! information

=Ran mental health workshops to build awareness in,
and signpost support for, our workforce *

- Launched our values, which guide how we work and
align with our vision and mission; they underpin our
recruitment processes, shape our leadership and
development programmes and form part of our
performance and development review process

4

Further reading:

- See more information about what we do for our
waorkforce in Sustainable Energy, Engineered
Sustainably on pages 28 to 29

- See our values on page 28

- See our ESG Report 2022 for more information about
working at ITM Power

under

Strategic partners

We have identified a number of strategic partners to
scale our impact, industrial reach, and market
penetration,

tnclude Linde, Shell, Snam and Vitol, among others.

How we engage:

— Regular meetings with our strategic partners’ senior
managers

- Formal meetings of joint venture boards: ILE with
Linde, and Motive with Vito!

~Input from Linde and Snam through the Strategic

Customners and potential custorers
Customers buy our products, directly or indirectly.

Potential customers offer a pipeline of opportunities
to sell our products.

How we engage:

- Assigned a key contact {ongoing support) and a project
manager (specific project delivery)

- Email feedback reporting system lor customers

~ Support centre in Sheffield and a 24/7 support service

- Motive customers also benefit from an app providing
locations and availability of refuelling stations

Advisory Col and Tecl 8y t
Committee, which report to the Board
~Secondments of staff from strategic partners to ITM
Power
- Jirrgen Nowicki
Non-Executive Director

d as the Lind i i

Action taken:

—Entered into a joint venture with Vitol in relation to
Motive

—Two sales conferences conducted with Linde

=~ Comm ions about our and industry
news issued to a significant database of contacts

~Information provided via our website

- Parlicipate in webinars and presentations and in many
industry events every year

- Our joint ventures, ILE and Motive, also have their own
websites and key account managers assigned to them

~Updates on customer projects provided to the Board

Action taken:
— Customer feedback is built into our lessons learnt
process within our quality system .
- Hosted a regional roadshow on the COP26 Science and
ion day, with dees including business
leaders and industry figures

Further reading:
—See our website for information about:
- Our electrolysers and how they work:
https://itm-power.com/products
- Markets we serve:
hitps://itm-power.com/markets
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Our Stakeholders and Section 172(1) Statement continued

Suppliers

Suppliers provide us with a wide range of commodities
and services such as PGMs, components, power supply
units, capital equipment, r bl itdi

energy, buildings,
information technology, telecommunications and
professional advice.

How we engage:
~Seek to blish and maintain long-term

with our suppliers

—Work closely with our sugpliers in the deployment of
all projects and provide them with assistance to
improve their adherence o our standards of quality
and ethics

- Due diligence, approval and control programme for
suppliers

~Require suppliers to comply with our Business Partner
Code of Conduct, which covers:
— Business integrity
~ Health, safety and security
- Environmental and social performance
- Human rights and modern slavery
~Non-discrimination, grievance p. and

{freedom of association

- Bribery, corruption and money laundering
—International trade law
- Protecting confidential and personal information
- Speaking up

—Committed to sourcing our products and services
locally where possible

Action taken:

—Enhanced supplier categorisation exercise, considering
aspects such as materiality and risk

- Enhanced stock and supply chain reporting to support
active supply chain management

- Strengthened supplier due diligence processes

- Assessed critical suppliers against ESG criteria and
developed action plans to address any improvements
i ified, and c d of nan-critical
suppliers

- Commenced creation of supplier performance
procedure and scorecard to monitor, measure and
define actions with suppliers

Further reading:
- See our Business Partner Code of Conduct on our
website at https://itm-power.com/sustainability

Regulators and industry bodies
Regulators set standards l(;r our products and industry.
Industry bodies work to develop our industry’s future.
Provide grants for some projects.

How we engage:

—Participate widely in industry bodies

—Work with key committee and standards groups in the
UK, EU and other countries

- Contribute to consultations in the UK and EU through
direct responses and contributions to working groups

- Work with partners through our membership of key
industry associations in a number of territories

-~ Work ctosely with arganisations such as the European
Union’s Fuel Cells and Hydrogen Joint Undertaking
(FCH JU), Innovate UK and BEIS as funders of our
.grant-funded projects

Action taken:

= Hosted a regional roadshow on the COP26 Science and
tnnovation day, with attendees including academics
and industry figures

—Won €1.95 million award for the SINEWAVE project, as
part of the German Federal Ministry of Education and
Research’s (BMBF) hydrogen flagship project, H2Giga

Local communities

We operate within local communities and seek to be
a positive influence around environment, education
and health, together with EDI.

How we engage:

- Social engagement programme, ITM Nurture,
monitored by the ESG Committee, which also provides
suggestions for and input into its future development

- Charity Committee, an employee-led forum, gives our
employees the opportunity to have a positive impact
on the community around us in Sheffield through
engagement with local charities

- TM Academy responsible for delivering our ITM
Nurture programme commitments around Science,
Technology, Engineering and Maths (STEM) activity,
ensuring we are supporting education in the local area
through promoting STEM careers and sustainabilily

—Regular reporting of key ESG initiatives, including those
with our local communities, provided to the ESG
Committee and the Board

Action taken:

—Launched our ESG strategy: Sustainable Energy,
Engineered Sustainably

~ Published our first ESG Report, reflecting the ESG
ambitions set out in our ESG strategy

—Hosted a regional roadshow on the COP26 Science
and Innovation day, with attendees including

, local government

Further reading:
~See our ESG Report 2022 for more information about
our social impact
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Sustainable 'Energv,vEngineered Sustainably.

Our approach

In 2021, we faunched our new

ESG strategy: Sustainable Energy,
Engineered Sustainably. This is our
commitment to protect people and
the planet — through both what we
do as a business and how we do it.
The strategy has two parts.
‘Sustainable Energy addresses our
core business purpose, which is to
help the world reach net zero
through the power of green

v Engi d Sustai

gen. engl Y
covers our ambition to defiver on
this purpose in a sustainable way
that addresses the most materlal
€5G issues for our business.

Our first ESG Report was published
in April 2021, covering the 2020
calendar year. Qur second ESG
Report covers the period from

1 January 2021 to 30 April 2022,
while future ESG Reports will afign
to our financial reporting cycle. Qur
E5G Report sets out progress on our
ESG ambitions and strategy. We
have included some highlights here
but invite you to read our full ESG
Report, which is availahle on our
website: https://itm-power.com/
Investors/financial-reports, We
have also included some additional
disclosures here that sit more
comfortably within our Annual
Report.

Our £5G Committee leads the ¢
development of the Group's ESG
strategy, policies and programmes.
More information about our
governance structures ls available in
the Corporate Governance Report,
which starts on page 44.

Areas of focus and activities during the year

Area hts during the year Further reading
Materlality —~Conducted our first organisati id fatity to identify which ESG Issues are ESG Report 2022: Our material
mast important to aur business performance and where we can have the greatest impact issues on page 7, avallable on our
through what we do website at https://itm-power.com/
—Engaged a range of internal and external stakeholders to feed into the iali i financi ports
- d 3 UKAS-; dited envi ntal system to the specification: ESG Report 2022: Our environmental
outiined In the International Standard iSQ 14001:2015 ~ impact on pages 13 to 16, available
- tnitial assessment of our carbon footprint undertaken to help us establish a basefine from on our website at https:/itm-power,
which to set targets . com/investors/financial-reports
f lised our waste { process and inchided it within our internal Business
A 8 System; appointed a single waste broker to manage all on-site waste
Soclat -t hed a series of workshops around our values ESG Report 2022: Our soclal impact

=~ Re-launched and developed our Intranet platform for engaging with employees

~ Achieved 150 14001:2015 and ISO 45001:2018 accreditation for our health and safety
management system

= Launched ITM Academy, the home for learning and devetopment across {TM Power

~Conducted an employee survey to establish our workforce profile

~Introduced new supplier gualification processes, including a focus on wider social matters as
detalled in our Business Partner Cade of Conduct such as environmental, heaith and safety,
human rights and corruption

= Developed our PGM supply chain policy

~Community engagement through ITM Nurture focused on inspiring careers in STEM in
_future generations:

on pages 17 to 23, available on our
website at https://itm-power.com/
investors/financial-reports

Business Partner Code of Conduct and
PGM Supply Chain Policy Statement

on our website at hitps://itm-power.
com/sustainability

- duced ESG-linked elements to the variable remuneration for our Executive Directors

~Launched a revised suite of responsible business policies for our employees, contractors and
workers d by other i who work on our behalf, including: Code of Ethics,
Antl-Fraud and Bribery Policy, Speak Up Policy, Conflict Palicy, Hospitality and Gifts Policy

~Created a new risk and assurance function with ibility for risk 8 and
internalaudit

E£SG Report 2022: Our governance
on pages 24 to 28, available on our
website at https://itm-power.com/
investors/financial-reports

Corporate Governance Report from
page 44

Remuneration Report from page 55
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ble Energy,

UN ble Devel

Goals {SDGs)

We have identified the four SDGs
where we can have the greatest
effect as a business, and the specific
targets aligned to these goals that
are most relevant to us and our-
activities:

p AFFORDABLEAND
CLEAN ENERGY,

Affordable and
Clean Energy-

We aim to cut the commercial cost
of electrolysers over the next three
years and thereby facilitate the
widespread adoption of green
hydrogen.

This will directly contribute to
ensuring access to affordable,
rellable, sustainable, and modern
energy for all, addressing target 7.2:
to substantiafly increase the share of
renewable energy in the global
energy mix.

T RN BT Y ST 845 T
1

- INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE

SRR

Industry, Innovation
and Infrastructure

By helping to decarbonise industrial
processes through green hydrogen,
our electrolysers support SOG 9 and,
particularly, target 9.4: to upgrade
infrastructure and retrofit industries
to make them sustainable, with
Increased resource use efficiency
and greater adoption of clean and
environmentally sound technologies
and Industrial processes.

AND COMMUNITIES

i

Sustainable Cities
and Communities

Through Mgtive, our joint venture
with Vito!, we own hydrogen
refuelling stations, which provide
zero emissions fuel for mass transit
systems. This contributes towards
target 11.2: by 2030, to provide

Responsible '
Consumption
and Production

By helping to replace hydrogen
produced directly from fossil fuels
with green, emission-free hydrogen,
our electrolysers support target
12.2: by 2030, to achieve the

access to safe,

and sustainable transport systems
for all.

S B and
efficient use of naturai resources.

Our Issues

While more information about our
material Issues is provided in our
ESG Report, we have identified
some core material issues on which
we provide some additional
information in this Annual Report:
- Climate change

- Our workforce

—Business ethlcs
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Climate change

To achieve net zero global carbon emissions by 2050,
the world needs to transition away from fassil fuels and
towards emission-free fuels, such as green hydrogen.
Offering engineering solutions that contribute to a more
i L inabl and reduce global
reliance on fossil fuels is at the core of our mission.

While our preducts can be part of the solution, we
recognise our own contribution to carbon emissions.
We are working 1o establish a specific climate strategy
to guide our actions and carbon reduction ambitions.
As we continue to develop this strategy, we recognise the

importance of disclosure and have provided:

- Arn overview of our current appruach'ln line with the
recommendations set out by Task Force on Climate-
refated Financial Disclosures (TCFD)

- Our carbon footprint calculation

e

Further reading: .

- Corporate Governance Report from page 44
~Principal Risks and Uncertainties from page 30
~Our Market from page 15

~GHG emissions on page 27.

. .
.
‘
[
Reporting element
(aligned to TCFO) Summary of our approach .
Governance The Board provides overall leadership and ind d ight. It is primarily responsible for our strategic plan, risk management,
systems of internal control and corporate governance. It retains control of key decisions.
The Board has delegated authority to the £3G Committee for the development of the Group’s ESG gy, policies and progi and
‘associated matters,
[o] hip and e for lated risks and sustainability ¢ i are embedded within our business.
Strategy Risks in the short term:
- As we scale up our business to respond to the demand for green hydrogen, our impact on the environment will increase and we may
not be able to mitigate this
Risks in the medium and long term:
~increased severity and frequency of extreme weather events such as cyclones and floods may disrupt or limit our ability to manufacture
our products
= Changing weather and precipitation patterns may impact the cost and/or availability of materials
Regulation related 1o greenh gas (GHG) may increase costs across our value chain
- Regulation related 1o water stress or water scarcity may disrupt or restrict our production capability
- Lack of availabllity of clean water may restrict the effectiveness of our product
Opportunities in the short, medium and long term:
. ~The increased focus on, and ion of, green hydrogen provides a significant opportunity for our business
-~ PEM electrolysers use tess water than steam methane reformers {SMRs), which are currently the main source of industrial hydrogen
~Electrolysls is the only fuel that doesn't deplete oxygen in producing fuel - green hydrogen is the only oxygen and water balanced fuel
— Reduction, reuse and recycling of ¢ within our Y presents an opportunity to reduce our impact on the environment
While it is difficult to accurately estimate the financial impact of any climate-related disruption to our manufacturing operations, a short
interruption to our production capabilities due to extreme weather events could have a significant impact on our business in the future.
Such weather events could also have a significant impact on our supply chain, which could result in supply restrictions and/or increased
) cOosts.
Risk management The process for identifying, assessing and responding to climate-refated risks is integrated into our risk management processes.
Metrics and targets During the year, we undertook an initial assessment of our Scope 1, 2 and 3 GHG emissions for the purp of ishing a baseline

from which to set climate targets and emissions reduction approach.
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*
Carbon footprint i Carbon footprint (tCO;c) - Year ended 30 April 2022
The calculation of our carbon footprint follows the Scope 1 emissions B 249
methodology set out by the GHG Protocol for corporate BE - CrBsSIon
accounting and the output can be found in the table Scope 2 {location-based) 754
opposite. As we are not required to comply with the Scope 2 (market-based) 203
requirements of Part 7A of Schedule 7 of The Large and Scope 3 103,843
‘Medium-sized Compariii I{ ounts ant
gt pariies and G °“‘i‘ (Accou ts and Total {location-based) 104,846
Reports) R 2008 {as
disclosure of GHG emissions, we have not provided Total (market-based) 104,295
-afl the information required under the regulations. 1. Ourfootprint - - heemissions boundHry.
2. Entities Included in the (oatprint are ) folows; 1M v ru: 184 Power [rsding) Umited: o Power, Inc.; T wmmw M baer Py L4 ond Molive Fues Limitet
30 ou of relovant surces, for Compa BE1S; the Emissions
: " b £, 5 Ce Stntes n,nmunn Asemy,
4, Scoped 3 our W e
5. Scope 2 embsi it i,
6. s:oun 3 cate futied in this calrulation inchi and yervices, f ergy-related activities, wosie, busil 1 upstrean: leased ussets, use of soid goods and Investments, Nutes on the
ore s foliows:
@ Purch fo: sssion e A
b. Fuel 8E152021 & o g % Esions ag from purchased elsciricity ond well4o-tank emisions from fuels.
I3 1 convession A G Ging 10 mass of 5 Y i
. 9. Businass trovel: ined fram our birst praviders, BEIS 2021 conversion factors weleusculovmuenaeluloevsonalraumd tar.
e E o place of h y 0 ployee suivey. y with B [ usedto
intensa 4 ' i v
1. Upstream: BEIS 2021 & used tog e of motert! toaperateleosed msets.
se of i i 8y it 0
- for thelr # s usad to caleulate I i
b leculk and dstriy i GmbH wos coflactsd ana convertea i 15ing foctors,
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Our workforce Our values

The passion, talent and hard work of
our workforce contributes to our
culture and growth. To support our
workforce, we strive to be a

responsible, sustainable and ethical

employer where our values are
central to all aspects of workforce
‘management,

Qur values

During the year we launched our
values, They were developed to
guide how we work and align with -
our vision and mission, They are the
foundation of our business and
shape our approach to recruitment,
teadership and development.

Zof(nbae

We

lare

.we e

We are

Teracions

We seek

Joy

We share a.common vision and
recognise that we ail have a part to
play in the ITM Power journey. We

. support each other and work

together for this common purpaose.
We trust each other, are open and
honest, and are committed to our
collective success. We celebrate
our achievements with each other.
We work as one team, seeking
opportunities to be collaborative,

We care for each other, our
customers, our suppliers; our
environment and future
generations. We have pride in what
we do. We treat people with dignity
and respect, we are a supportive
team that values others. We do
things safely.

, ‘Weare curlous and bold, we think

big. We seek to constantly improve

in all we do, We develop and evolve.

We have a growth mindset which
encourages learning,

We don't give up easily. We work'to
find solutions to problems or difficult
situations, We support each other,
and work together to overcome
challenges. We are driven and
determined. We make decisions
based on facts and insights, even if
those decisions are tough: We are
not {rightened of change. We take
accountability for our actions and
tearn from our mistakes.

Joyis a flash of emotion, found in
small gestures and In different ways
for each and every one of us. By
seeking joy, we appreciate those
special moments that contribute
towards our happlness and help
develop friendships with our
colleagues and partners. We
recognise that acts of kindness, fun ~
or laughter go a long way to help
provide a balance to our busy and
sometimes stressfut lives. Whilst we
are serious about our work, we don't
always have to be serious, we look
for ways to seek joy even when
tdmes are challenging.
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le Energy, €

Leaming and development

We actively encourage learning and development. The
ITM Academy is the hub for learning and development at
fTM Power and includes a structured induction

Financlat

Recruitment and benefits
We seek to recruit and retain the best employees in our

Equity, diversity and inclusion
We are an equal opportunities employer. We make

sector and recognise the importance of employ
retention. We offer a range of employee beneﬁxs

about reci training and *
other employment matters soIeN on the grounds of
t, expertise and conduct.

programme as well as technical, management and d to attract support long: ability, achi
feadership (ramlng It has developed a clear p and p aworking envi that
of pr ional and -based deve! creates strong employ with a wellbeing

areas. We recognise we are at the forefront of a new
technology market with vast knowledge of that
technology within our workforce and so the ITM
Academy aims to become a global centre of excellence
for teaining our workforce and the partners who work
with us.

We aim to ensure the highest levels of technical
competence and encourage the improvement of this
knowledge by supporting our workforce through training
courses and qualifications, ranging from single day
courses up to Master's degree-tevel qualifications and
accredited development programmes. We are also
proud to have a number of apprenﬁ:es and industrial

g 3 part of our
workforce, with a range of new apprendceshlp
programmes to be introduced In the future, Our plans
for the future also include the development of a
graduate scheme, with the preparatory work being
undertaken in the short to medium term.

Engagement

Oetalls of how we engage with our workforce are
ided in § Workforce on

page 22.

fn the next year, we are introducing a bi-annual
engagement and wellbeing survey. Action plans will be
¢reated from this, which will be developed with our
managers and a new employee forum: ITM Voices.

tocus. We are a Real Living Wage employer.

We have granted share awards under our tong Term  *
Incentive Plan to all employees and, in the UK, offer a
buy-as-you-earn Share Incentive Plan (SiP), which
enables staff to buy shares on a tax-efficient basis and
receive matching shares from the Company. Around 55%
of eligible employees participate in the SIP.

We don’t discriminate on the basis of gender, gender
identity, sexual orientation, marital status, race, colour,
ethnicity, national origin, cultural heritage, religion, age,
social background, mental or physical ability or disabilif

Business ethics

We are ited to maintaining appropris

for all our business activities:

- We have a Code of Ethics that sets out how we do business

- Our handbook sets ourt the conduct expected of our
workforce and includes guidance for key issues

- We have a Bustness Partner Code of Conduct and have

or any other reason not related to job performance or
prohibited by law. More than this, we recognise the
collective benefit of having diverse teams, enriching the
working lives of our workforce and better serving our
global client base,

We encourage recruitment, training, career

Benefits vary according to the country of
but typically atso include childcare vouchers, a cvc'e

! andp »n on the basis of aptitude
and abﬂ:tv, wnxhout regard to disability. We are also
dto ployees who become disabled

purchase scheme, and an empl

programme. that are toall
no matter where they are employed, are participation In
our Long Term Incentive Plan, access to our Employee
Assistance Programme and an additional day’s annual
leave on their birthday.

We do not recognise any unions in the UK and only have
one employee outside the UK covered by a collective
bargaining agreement.

8

during the course of their employment. We endeavour

to make reasonable adjustments to the duties and

working environment to support any employee suffering

a disablement during their employment, including
providing retraining as necessary.

We will launch our EDI strategy and implementation plan
in the next year, with key priorities focusing on
encouraging greater gender diversity within our business
and particularly in STEM related areas.

Mare information on our approach to equity, diversity
and inclusion, including key indicators, is provided in our
£SG Report 2022 Our social lmpacL avallable onour
website at
reports.

psy// P ial-

p d supplier accredi and due diligence
processes

—Our ESG Committee considers business ethics as part
of its wider consideration of ESG matters

More information about how we ensure we have an
appropriate culture and an ethical approach is provided
in the introduction from the Chair of the Board to the
Corporate Governance Report on page 38.

All employees and, where appropriate, contractors,
whether full-time or part-time, are required to
undertake a variety of tralning including, among other
topics, covering our Code of Ethics, our approach to
avoiding fraud and bribery and data protection.

‘We have reviewed the extent to which money

laundering presents a risk to our business and the

policies and procedures we need to address any risk. We

have concluded we do not require a separate ant-money

laundering policy as our Code of Ethics requires us to:

— Do the right thing, for the right reason

- Hold ourselves to a higher standard

~ Observe regulations and legislation in all countries of
operation

Nevertheless, in the coming year we intend to provide
training to key personnel to raise awareness of money
{aundering offences and what to do if anyone has a concern,
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Principal Risks.and Uncertainties

Our approach to risk
The Board is uitimately responsible for ensuring there
fs 3 robust and effective framework In place for the
Group’s risk management activities, which aims to
underpin better decision making and embed a drive to
continually improve our performance. Through a
refocused risk management approach, and utilising the
three lines of defence model, our capability to assess
rfsks is continually lmprovmg, such that our strategle,
and ging risks are identified and
managed effectively.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Board has identitfed those risks which are deemed
principat to its business due to thelr potential severity
and link to the Group’s strategy, markets and operations,
which are set out below. This is not intended to be an
exhaustive list. Additional risks not presently known to
management, or risks currently deemed to be less
material/strategically important, may also have the
potential to cause an adverse impact on our business.

Risk radar

Key

€ shorl Term suategic <2 yeors
© Medium Term Strategic2-S years
@ Longer Torm Emerging >S vears

Assodated Princpst Risks
@ Managing markel growth/scule vp
@ Morer compotitveness

Q) input casts, supply chainand
business continulty

@ 17 srotection
© Financiat isks

Likelhood reference

Key
€ Managing mortet growthscals up
© Morket competitiveness

nput costs, supply chain Bnc business
continuity

O #orotection

2
Minor Moderate

tmpact narrative

‘,ps SG ac:wnns a:-.d !‘.es er‘gagnc. £
m “ d

-
.(-f Suf E5G straiegy, as, welz ns \h=- MEBSULE!
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Risk Link to strategy Risk impact and description Mitigation Change

(1] Scalable manufacturing Since the market for green hydrogen is still evolving, it is difficult to predict the size and  ITM Power is at the forefront of the green hydrogen seclor and has

Managmg Stror)g pal:mers and growth r.?te of the market with certainty. However, the publicly HHDOI{HCEd rapid in place ambih’gus pla»:\s 1o ensure i't re‘mains aleading p!ayer inthe a
relationships acceteration of numerous governmental green hydrogen targets, leading to an market, as the increasing acceleration in the sector continues to

market growth/ Expert knowledge expansion of our target markets and business, will place additional demands on our 2030 and beyond.

scale up . technical, sales, engineering and logistics systems. The Group's success depends also ~

on its strategic partnerships and other arrangements with third parties. If any of our
current strategic partners were to terminate any of their agreements with the Group,
or if other sub-contractors were to fail to perform to expected standards, it could have
a negative impact on the devel 't and commerciali 1 of the Group’s products
and the operation of its business.

The Group faces risks associated with its current dependence on a single -
manufacturing facility. Although our plans include the intention to develop new
manufacturing facilities, until additional facilities are deployed the Group will remain
highly dependent on the factory at Bessemer Park,

We rely on individuals across our organisation with key knowledge, skills and
experience gained over a number of years working within ITM Power. Losing such key
individuals could disrupt the operational activities of the business in the short to
medium term.

To support our growth strategy, ITM Power has entered into
contractually binding strategic partnerships to cover key aspects
of its business including supply chain, technical design and
development and EPC services for large industrial projects. in
conjunction with these, the Group is also building its own business
development relationships globally. .

We also continue to undertake homologation exercises with Linde
Engineering and Linde Gas to ensure its products are applicable to
the widest possible markets to mitigate the risk of traction in
fimited geographies,

Our systems are also being prepared for scale, with a new
enterprise resource planning (ERP) system currently being
implemented across the business to support our product’s life
cycle management and after sales service offering. Our strong
recruitment and ITM Academy team, ensure we are able to
resource and develop key talent to help drive the Group forward.
The Board has a succession plan.

We also keep our disaster recovery plans under constant review,
which, combined with comprehensive insurance and the
monitoring of actuat and projected volumes of our Bessemer
Park factory, ensures we understand the critical path for adding
increased manufacturing capacity to both our Bessemer Park
factory and any new sites.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Risk Link to strategy Risk Impact and description Mitigation Change
(2] Continua! technology There is a risk that we fail to deliver products that are competitive in terms of ITM Power has created a technology centre, containing world 9
Marliet development performance, cost or delivery. class facilities, which enables us to undertake extensive testing

.. Strong partners and of core components of our products, as we seek to provide the
competitiveness relationships As we are developing new technologies it is very likely that unforeseen difficulties and solutions and meet the challenge of the global net zero targets

1Develop ITM Power
Service

obstacles to development will arise which may result in the product not performing as
expected (especially when first introduced), failure of products to perform, damage to
our reputation, delayed or lost revente, product returns, diverted development
resources and increased development, service and warranty costs and potential
product liability claims.

This risk could also result in not realising the cost benefits anticipated or not being
capable of realisation at all. Where the development can be realised, there is no
guarantee that the development will be completed in the time periods which the
Group currently anticipates.

The Group currently faces and will continue to face competition from other developers
and manufacturers of electrolyser products and technologies; as well as developers
and manufacturers of existing power technologies and other alternative power
technologies. If we are unable to compete effectively against our competitors, this will
impact its ability to gain market share or market acceptance for its products.

being announced.

We also continue to enhance our processes and procedures to
Support systematic and routine validations of current and new
technology being developed. This is supported through extensive
data collection from our control room, which gives us a live
connection to products both under testing and those operating
in the field.

Our vertically integrated technology approach allows product
evolution carry overs and provides us with the capability to
rapidly adapt to changing market needs. We also undertake vatue
engineering exercises to reduce product complexity, increase
performance and durability in the field, as well as reduce cost.

As the market matures and the size of required systems becomes
larger, working with our strategic partners provides us with a
competitive edge when tendering for green hydrogen projects. We
also seek to create parinerships, frameworks and preferred
supplier status with key customers wherever possible, creating
additional channels to market. Qur partnership with Linde also
allows for early engagement with prospective customers, as we
seek to provide the best solution for their needs.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Risk

Link to strategy

Risk impact and description

Mitigation

Change

©

Input costs,
supply chain
and business
continuity

Scalable manufacturing
Strong partners and
relationships

Continual

Due to a combination of post COVID-19 recovery and global geo-political instability
{including the crisis in Ukraine and subsequent sanctions on Russia), global supply
chains have been severely disrupted on a never-before-seen scale, driving up costs of

development

key ials and reducing availability in the process.

In addition, our pace of growth also poses risks with our existing supply chain, to
supplier capability, quality, scalability, and working capital management.

We rely on third-party suppliers to provide raw materials and components for its
products, including electrical, stainless steel and some PGMs, that are critical to the
manufacturing process. In some cases, this is through a single supplier.

There are also specific risks around the price vblaﬁli\y of precious metals used within

the Group’s core technology. This could lead to costs of projects being underestimated.

Furthermore, there is a risk that the ability to deliver expected yields from recycling
differ to those expected, which may lead to cost variation on project and product life
cycle.

A new or existing supplier’s failure to provide materials or components in-a timely
manner, or to provide materials and components that meet the Group’s quality,
quantity or cost requirements, or the Group’s inability to obtain substitute sources for
these materials and components in a imely manner or on acceptable terms, may harm
its ability to manufacture products cost-effectively or at all and may damage our
reputation and could also result in penalties for the Group under its customer
contracts, .

An IT system failure or non-availability, cyber-attack or breach of system security could
disrupt our operations, cause the loss of, destruction of, or unauthorised access to
sensitive, confidential or personal data or information or expose us to regulatory
investigation, litigation or contractual penalties. If any of these events took place, it
could have a negative impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations,
prospects and reputation.

We are in the pracess of evaluating a sourcing strategy for each
of our key components, with approaches differing by component
type. Where we rely on a single supplier, we seek to enter into
appropriate contracts wilh these suppliers or a future strategy 1o
source different product portfolios with different suppliers where
appropriate. For other materials, we employ a multi-sourcing
strategy. The Group continues to review opportunities to bring
processes in-house to address potential intellectual properly (IP),
quality and security of supply risks.

We also have an appropriately resourced procurement
department, which is based on a category structure to build
appropriate local and specialist k ledge and an und ding
of key markets. A strategic supplier development and performance
management infrastructure is also in construction, to maintain the
quality and security of supply of key raw materials,

Timely and accurate forecasting models and approaches have afso
been adopted to provide better visibility of volume requirements
over time and to drive action plans ahead of requirement for
supply chain readiness. . )

The Group seeks 1o mitigate exposure to precious metal risk
through operating back-to-back contracts, having continued
dialogue with suppliers and managing larger transactions on a
no-risk basis where possible.

The Group undertakes regular reviews, testing and invests in
robust and effective security policies, controls and technologies to
protect commercial and sensitive data and to ensure the overall

system protection in place remains appropriate and proportionate.

This also includes a continual review of the fatest threats and
trends in information security and governance to ensure our
protection is always current and effective.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Risk

Link to strategy

Risk impact and description

Mitigation

Change

4]
IP protection

Continual technology
development
Strong partners and

"relationships

The Group depends on its IP and failure to protect that IP could reduce its ability to
prevent others from using its technology and therefore adversely affect our future
growth and success.

PEM electrolysis systems as a whole cannot be patented or otherwise legally protected
because some of the technologies underpinning their operation are based on other
praven and mature technologies and are generally know-how based. Also, while itis
the case that various components and processes developed by the Group have been or
are assessed to have the potential to be patented, we only pursue patents when lhev
are expected to be of high value, because patent ications inciude risks 8
from publication of detailed component and process descriptions.

The Group has entered into agreements with customers and partners, including its
joint.venture with Linde, that involve shared IP rights and an increased risk to us of the
disclosure of trade secrets and proprietary technology. Any developments made under
these agreements will be available for future commercial use by all parties to the
agreement, which may make it more difficult for us to control third-party usage and
protect its shared IP in the future.

Itis also the case that there is a potential risk for the Group in its losing certain
freedoms to operate due to the complexity and growth of PEM electrolysis technology.

We rely on a combination of patent, trade secret, trademark and
copyright laws to protect its IP and seeks legal and other third-
party specialist advice where appropriate.

The choice of tertitories and jurisdictions the Group serves
includes an evaluation of inherent IP risk. Freedom-to-operate
(FTO) searches are also undertaken where it is deemed
appropriate.

We have an agreed IP management policy and seek to protect
our propnetayy IP through contracts lndudmg, when possible,

[ and i ’ rights agr with
our cuslomers and employees. If necessary or desirable; we may
seek licences under the patents or other IP rights of others.

Secure file sharing practices are also employed to provide technical
mitigation and we have an ongoing training plan for staff to
support this aim.

®
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Risk Link to strategy Risk impact and description Mitigation Change
8 B
(5] . Scalable facturing In addition to the p ial financial impact as detailed within the other principal risks Through a number of successful shareholder fundraises, ITM
. . . and uncertainties, specific financial risks also exist. Power has a strong and healthy balance sheet with £336 million
Financial risks funds available to it at year end.

As a result of the cost and time required for our research and development activities,
we have not yet achieved profitability, and it may fail to do so in the future. To increase
revenues and achieve profitability, we must successfully execute its growth strategy,
which includes, among other things, leveraging strategic partnerships to secure a
global competitive advantage and building capacity ahead of anticipated demand,

Furthermore, the length and variability of the sales cycles for our products makes it
difficult to accurately forecast the timing and amount of specific sales and
corresponding revenue recognition, Due to the complexity and capital value of the
projects in which our products and technologies are used, the evaluation process can
result in a sales cycle of several months or mare, and, after evaluations, a potential
customer may not purchase our product at all.

As the Group sells its products internationally, general economic conditions in the
countries in which the Group seeks to operate could have an adverse effect on Group
earnings from aperations in those countries.

Qur plans include investment in our product development as well as scaling up our
manufacturing capabilities, leading to cash outflows. These are fikely to increase
through building products to stock before positive cash flow is generated from sales. If
we fail to generate planned positive cash flows, we may require further funding.

A comprehensive monthly governance process is in place to
monitor key risks versus our financial targets and develop actions
to effectively mitigate against them,

Foreign exchange transaction risk is managed through a Treasury
Policy, hedging for all committed transactions and a range of
forecasted transactions, thereby mitigating Lhe effects on UK
import costs.
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Going Concern

The Directors have prepared a cash flow forecast for

the period ending 30 September 2023, This forecast
indicates that the Group and parent company would
expect to remain cash positive without the requirement
for further fundraising based on delivering the existing
pipeline, for a period of at least 12 months from the date
of approval of these financial statements.

By the end of the period analysed, the Group will stifl
hold significant cash reserves. This should give the
business sufficient funds to trade for the next 12 months
if the busi conti with its medium-term
business plan.

The business remains in a development phase, and
continues in a cash outflow position, using funding
generated from previous fundraises, As such, this cash
flow forecast has also been stress-tested. As a worst-
case scenario, if all payments had to continue as forecast
while receipts were not received at all, the business
would remain cash positive for the full 12 months from

the date of app | of these fi ts.

The accounts have therefore been prepared on a going
concern basis.

The Sirategic Report set out on pages 4 1o 36 was
roved by the Board on 16 Septermher 2622 ang
signed on ils behaif by

Andy Affen
inancizi Officer
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Introduction from the Chair of the Board

My fellow Board .
members and I
firmly believe that
excellent corporate
governance 1s

vital to creating

a sustainable,
growing business.

Dear shareholder

| am pleased to present our Governance Report for the
year. My fellow Board members and | firmly believe that
excellent corporate governance is vital to creating a
sustainable, growing business. We aim for our
governance to be bestin class in the AIM Top 50.

As Chair of the Board, it is my responsibility to ensure
the effective working of the Board through a sound
governance framework that supports and enables the
Board. | am supported in this work by my fellow Board
members and the Company Secretary, who work to
ensure ITM Power is managed for the long-term benefit
of all shareholders, having regard to other stakeholders’
interests where appropriate.

Our governance (ramework is summarised on page 44,

The Board has chosen to apply The Quoted Companies
Alliance Corporate Governance Code 2018 (QCA Code).
We have set out a summary of ITM Power’s application
of each of the 10 principles of the QCA Code on the
following pages, with links to where you can find further
information in this Annual Report and on our website.

We have historically published our statement of compliance
with the QCA Code on our website in the first quarter of the
calendar year. We will from now on publish the relevant
information in our Annual Report and on our website at
the same time as the Annual Report is published.

Culture
It is important to ensure our culture is and

survey shortly after the end of the financial year and will
use this to inform discussions on culture going forward.
The intention is to run this at regular intervals so we can
monitor our culture and how it is changing over time,

Our values

We launched our values during the year. These guide
how we work and align with our vision and mission.
They underpin our recruitment processes, shape our
leadership and development programmes and form part
of our performance and development review process.

Doing the right thing

Qur Code of Ethics was introduced last year. This sets out
how we do business and we have produced supporting
guidance for our workforce. We choose to operate with
honesty and integrity in all we do. We do the right thing
for the right reason throughout our work.

We provide mechanisms for our workforce to speak up
when they see evidence of possible wrongdoing, fraud
or unethical behaviour. We listen to concerns that are
raised; we investigate and where possible we provide an
explanation of the outcome; and we protect and support
people who do the right thing. While the speak up
mechanisms have previously been completely internal to
ITM Power, we now also provide a third-party independent
whistleblowing service in the event someone feels
unable to speak to anyone internally. Training in the
Code of Ethics is now available for all employees. There
were no whistleblowing matters raised during the year.

is ing a series of key performance

supports our strategy and business model. It is integral
to our development together as one ITM Power. As a
rapidly growing business, this has been an area of
particular focus this year. We ran our first engagement

indicators to meastire how our Code of Ethics is
embedded and applied.

Leadership

Visible leadership is key to our values, ethics and culture.
Our leaders set expectations for behaviour and
demonstrate these expectations through their own
behaviour, This approach i§ based on an open,
collaborative team culture. The culture is promoted
through an open-door policy for access to senior
managers and leaders, a flat structure, and close team
working. Understanding more about how our culture is
perceived by managers and employees is addressed
through engagement surveys.

Sir Roger Bone
Chair of the Board
14 September 2022

hl:iay-:‘s_ajé; 1 first
Yhivays act in decordance with iaws and regulations
o g L e b1 gt
Aldwaysactwitlintegrity to deliver eviellence,
One teamm: alroays commitied. to work well together,
Mbvays respecifid,
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Summary of Application of the QCA Code

Principle Application and key actions during the year Further reading Principle Application and key actions during the year Further reading
1. ~Qur vision, mission, strategy and business mode! — Our vision and mission on page 17 4, —We maintain a risk register and risk managementis - Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Establish a strategy respond 10 a growing demand and need for net —Our Strategy and Our Business Embed effective risk overseen by the Audit Committee from page 30
and business model zero carbon emissions Model on pages 17 to 18 management, - We have a framework of internal financial controls, - Audit Committee Report from
which promote —We have a product offering that is scalable considering both overseen by the Board, the Audit Committee and page 51
long-term value for ~Our competitive advantage is the efficient opportunities and the Executive Committee ~See also principle 8
shareholders ture and supply of best-in-class PEM threats, throughout = Our framework of non-financial controls is
electralysers the organisation overseen by the Board
- We work strategically with partners to scale our - We have quality and HSE management systems
impact, industrial reach and market penetration in place
2. ~The CEO and CFO brief the Board on the views of - Stakeholder engagement: - Our Code of Ethics and handbook set out the
Seek to understand major shareholders Investors on page 21 ethical and conduct expectations of our workforce
and meet —We communicate with shareholders through - Remuneration Report on page S6 — During the vesr, we crested a Risk and Assurance
shareholder needs meetings, presentations, online events, - htips:/itm-power.com/investors/ function with respansibifity for risk rmanagement
and expectations announcements and general meetings shareholder-documents - and internal audit
~We completed a fundraise of £250 million in 5. —All the Board members have the same duties, ~Roles and responsibilities on the

Noverber 2021
- We engaged with sharehotders to discuss their
concerns and reasons hehind the 28.70% vote

against the approval of our Rermungration Report
and plic our respons: On our wishsite .
3. . =The ESG C supports our cor —Stakeholders and Section 172(1)

Take into account
wider stakeholder
and social
responsibilities and
their implications
for tong-term
success

to be a sustainable business

~We have identified our key stakeholders and
ensure appropriate engagement with them takes
place: workforce, strategic partners, customers
and potential customers, suppliers, regulators and
industry bodies, and local communities

Statement from page 19
— Sustainable Energy, Engineered
Sustainably from page 24
~ESG Report 2022 at https://
itm-power.comfinvestors/
financial-reports

Maintain the board
as awell-
functioning,
balanced team led
by the chair

including to act in the best interests of the
Company as a whole, but they have different roles,
which contribute to the effective operation of
the Board
- We created a separate, stand-along rofe for the
Company Secretary and recruited a govarnance
csiondl into the rele

Board on page 45
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Summary of Application of the QCA Code continued

Principle

Application and key actions during the year

Further reading

Principle

Application and key actions during the year

Further reading

6.

Ensure that
between them the
directors have the
necessary
up-to-date
experience, skills
and capabilities

- Board members have an appropriate batance of
skills, experience, personal qualitiesand
capabilities to support our strategy and business
modet

—~The Board committed to achieving 33% female
Board bership at the earliest ible date
and toincreasing the ethnic diversity of its
members

- An induction programme is provided for new
Board members

~The NOMAD, Company Secretary, Ernst & Young
LLP (remuneration consultants}, Good Business
(ESG consultants) and other advisors are available
to the Board

—Board biographies on pages 41 to
42

- Batance on the Board on page 43

~Induction and training on page 45

9.

Maintain
governance
structures and
processes that are
fit for purpose and
support good
decision-making by
the board

—The Board retains control of key decisions

- Certain matters are delegated to Committees

-~ The CEO manages the day-to-day business with
the Executive Commitlee

—Decisions are made in accordance with
delegated authorities

- Governance framework on page
44

—Roles and responsibilities on the
Board on page 45

7

Evaluate board
performance based
on clear and
relevant objectives,
seeking continuous
improvement

- —We conduct a periodic evaluation (every 18-24

months) of the Board’s performance

~The outcomes from the evaluation process are
reported in the next annual report

- We conducted an avaluation it early 2022

- Board evaluation on page 47

8.

Promote a
corporate culture
thatis based on
ethical values and
behaviours

—Our Code of Ethics sets out how we do business

—We provide mechanisms for our workforce to
speak up .

- Visible leadership is key

- We are an equal opportunities employer

—We are clear about our expectations of
our workforce

— During the vear. we launched the values that
aude how we work to drive forward our visien
and nuzsion

= Our vision and mission on page 17

- Our values on page 28

- Sustainable Energy, Engineered
Sustainably: Business ethics on
page 29

- ESG Report 2022 at https://
itm-power.com/investors/
financial-reports

—Code of Ethics at https://
itm-power.com/sustainability

10.

Communicate how
the company is
governed and is
performing by
maintaining a
dialogue with
shareholders and
other relevant
stakeholders

- Stakeholders and Section 172(1)

- We engage with shareholders and S

— We publish the outcome of all general meeting
votes through London Stock Exchange’s Regulatory
News Service

Statement from page 19
-See also principles 2 and 3
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Key
(® Audit Commirtee

(E) €56 Comminee

(V) Nomination Committee

(R) Remuneration Commiittee

(5) strategic Advisory Comminee

(¥ rechaology Management Committee
@ crairof the Committee

Sir Roger Bone Dr Graham Cooley Andy Allen Dr Simon Bourne Or Rachel Smith

Chair of the Board CEO CFO Chief Technology Officer Services Director

Appointed to the Board: June 2014 Appointed to the Board: lune 2009 Appointed to the Board: May 2018 Appointed to the Board: November 2009 A d to the Board: Sep! 2015

Independent: Yes Independent: No Independent: No Independent: No Independent: No

®0 : OO ® ®0

Key skills/experience: Key skills/experience: Key skills/experience: Key skills/experience: Key skilis/experience:

—Senior leadership of international and —Power sector ~ Chartered accountant ~ Design and development of electrolysers - Material and electrochemical cells
manufacturing/industrial isations -~Under of financial markets — Extensive experience auditing ~ PhD regarding hydropbhilic polymers - Environmental science

—Broad range of financial experience - Leading growth businesses manufacturing companies - Energy conservation

—Risk management —PhD in physics —Understanding of financial markets - EngD regarding carbon fibre composites

- Significant service within UK Government -MBA

—Fellow of the Institution of Engineering - Fellow of the Institute of Metals, Minerals
Designers and Mining

~Fellow of the Energy Institute
- Fellow of The Institution of Engineering
and Technology

Previous appointments include:

~Boeing UK - President

—Foreign & Colonial Investment Trust plc—
Senior tndependent Director

—Nationa! Centre for Universities and
Business (NCUB) - Non-Executive Director
and trustee

—Honorary Ambassador for British business

~British Ambassador to Brazil and Sweden

~Royal United Services Institute — trustee

Previous appointments include:

~ National Power plc - Business
Development Manager

- International Power plc — Business
Development Manager

- Sensortec Ltd - CEO

- Metalysis Ltd - founding CEQ

- Antenova Ltd - founding CEO

Previous appointments include:
= None

Pr pp :
— Sonatest PLC - Project Engineer
- Ministry of Defence - Researcher

Previous appointments include:
~ Research Scientist

Key external commitments:

~Chairman of Over-C Limited

- Joint Chairman of Motive (nominated
by ITM Power)

Key external commitments:

~Member of the UK Hydrogen Advisory
Council

- Non-Executive Director of Renewable UK
Association

Key external commitments:
- None

Key external commitments:
~None .

Key external commitments:
- None
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Denise Cockrem
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board: July 2022
Independent: Yes

Martin Green
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board: September 2019
Independent: Yes

Jiirgen Nowicki
Non-Executive Director

Katherine Roe
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board: ber 2019

Independent: No

Appointed to the Board: May 2020
Independent: Yes

® ©0 oMo

Key skills/experience: Key skills/experience: Key skills/experience: Key skills/experience:

— Chartered accountant - Battery, fuel cell and hydrogen - Engineering sector - Energy sector
technologies = Accountant -Finance

- Financial planning and analysis ~
—Performance reporting and forecasting
—Financial controls

—Internal audit and risk management
~Strategic planning

—Regulatory compliance

- Senior leadership of international and
manufacturing/industrial organisations

- Broad range of financial experience

- Risk management

- Business-to-business customer and supply
chain management

- Strategy development and implementation

- Scaling growth businesses

- Mergers and acquisitions experience

- Internal audit .

- Understanding of financial markets

- Risk management

- Business-to-business customer and supply
chain management

- Senior leadership of internationa!
organisations

- Strategic pfanning

- Capital markets

- Risk management

- Senior leadership of intérnational
organisations

—Remuneration

- Marketing/PR

- Corporate development

- Strategic planning

—ESG expertise

Previous appointments include:

—Good Energy Group plc - Chief Financial
Officer

—RSA tnsurance Group — UK and Western
Europe Finance Director, Deputy UK

. Finance Director, Group Director of
Financial Planning and Analysis, Group
Financial Controller .

- Direct Line - Finance Director of Direct
Line Retail Division :

~Royal Bank of Scotland - Head of Finance,
Corporate Banking and Financial Markets

Previous appointments incfude:

- Johnson Matthey plc — various positions
over 30 years, latterly as group strategy
director

Previous appointments include:

= Linde Gas North America— CFO

~Linde Group — Head of Finance and Control

- Linde Engineering - Senior Vice President,
Commercial

Previous appointments include:

—Morgan Stanley - investment banking

- Panmure Gordon - Director within
investment banking, headed the energy
team

- Wentworth Resources plc - CFO

Key external commitments:

—Benefact Group and Ecclesiastical
tnsurance Office plc — Group Chief
Financial Officer .

—Maclntyre Academies Trust - independent
Member

Key external commitments:
—The Henry Royce Institute for Advanced
Materials - Non-Executive Director

‘| —Leydenlar Technologies BV - Non-

Executive Director
— Anaphite Limited ~ Non-Executive Director

Key external commitments:
- Linde plc - Executive Vice President,
Managing Director of Linde Engineering

Key external commitments:

- Wentworth Resources plc - CEO |

- Longboard Energy plc — Non-Executive
Director and Audit Commitiee Chair

Key
(® awdit comrintee
€56 Comminea
(N) Nomination Commirtee
Remuneration Committee
% Steateglc Advisoey Committee
technology Management Committee
@ chalr of the Committee

Board members that stepped down during
the year:
—Tom Rae resigned effective

16 November 2021
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Balance on the Board

The Board is satisfied that its members possess an appropriate balance of skills, experience, personal qualities, and
capabilities. It has identified the skills and experience below as being of key importance to support our future plans.
It has also identified supporting skills and experience where it feels it is appropriate to rely on the support of specialists
within senior management and external advisors, including technology/IT, marketing/PR, lobbying/political/regulatory
and legal. The Board is pleased to have improved the balance and diversity on the Board since the publication of the
last Annual Report.

Directors’ skills and experience

Women on the Board

3of9

(2 of 9 at the time of the 2021 AGM)

independent Directors on the Board
{including the Chair of the Board)

40f9

(3 of 9 at the time of the 2021 AGM}

T

B Core capability .
B Supplemental capability

1. Of our A it/Fi peti 2, ORly two were b ¥ Lhe Audit C ng the year. Whike having a broad range of financial
P 3 i do pecitic audit or s tise. The addition of Denise Cockrem with effect trom 25 July 2022, has enhanced
this experience on the Board and, in particutar, on the Audit Committee.

tive/No; utive Directors on the Board Age profile of the Boord K
1

B ||l ‘ ]
®Executive 4 |Uptoal 1
B Non-Executive' 5 | ma1-50 3

=51 -65 4
1. Including the Chait of the Board.

# Over 65 1

Tenure profile of the Board: Executive’

Tenure profile of the Board: Non-Execmjve'

| 1]

Non-
Executive Executive’
|<1year 1 Ethnicity
W1 -3years 3
#3-6years 1 9 f 9
n6-9years 1 by O
»>9 years 2 White p

1. Asatl4Scptember 2022, .
2. Including the Chalr of the Board.
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Corporate
Governance Report

In this report we provide more detail
regarding how we apply the
principles of the QCA Code.

Governance framework
Our governance framework is
summarised here:

e

Further reading:

—Board activities during the year on
page 46

—Board Committees from page 47

- Audit Committee Report from
page 51

~Sustainable Energy, Engineered
Sustainably from page 24

—Remuneration Report from
page S5

Overview i [’

Stakeholders

@ Licence 1ooperate @ Delegation @) Accountability and reporting

performance and works to ensure
that ITM Power PLC and its wider
business group {the Group) is
managed for the long-term benefit
of all shareholders.

Primarily responsible for our
strategic plan, risk management,
systems of imternal control and
corporate governance to ensure
the long-term success of the
Group.

Retalns control of key decisions,
including: strategic decisions,

@ Delegation @ Reporting and recommendations

N Board . Audit Committee
Provides overall leadership, Primary responsibilities are to: monitor the integrity of the Group's financial statements and financial announcements; monitor the quality and
independent oversight of effectiveness of internal controls and risk management systems; review arrangements for speaking up, detecting fraud and managing bribery risks;

monitor internal audit or alternative arrangements; and manage the external auditor relationship.

ESG Committee
Leads the development of the Group’s ESG strategy, policies and programmes. Responsible for the Group's short- and long-term ESG objectives and
reporting of key metrics. Oversees compliance with relevant laws and regulations, including principles of good corporate governance and ethical
behaviour.

Nomination Committee
Leads the process for Board app and succession ing, including considering
the composition of the Board and its future requirements.

Remuneration Committee
Determines the remuneration palicy for the Chair of the Board and Executive Directors, aiming to support the strategy and long-term success of the
Company. Sets the performance conditions for awards granted under the terms of the ITM Power PLC Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP). Approves the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, including grants of LTIP awards.

annuat and long-term b
plans, changes to our principal
activities, materiaf contracts,
mergers, acquisitions and

Strategic Advisory Committee
Advises the Board on key business development matters.

_

The Executive Directors together with other senior management meet regularly to consider b

The CEO manages the day-to-day business with the Executive Committee.

technology devel project performance,

the financial performance of the Group and other management issues.

O Values @ Strategy @ Delegation @ Accountability and reporting

W
disposals. kS
2 Technol C
y

[} Primary responsibifities are to: review the Group’s product por tfofic and development plans; review the suitability of the portolio, manufacturing

capacity and planned devel 1o satisfy antici d market di p ; review requirements to meet the Group’s technology goal to be
best-in-class.
O Values @ Strategy @ Delegation @) Accountability and reporting
T T T Execuﬂveéommlﬁee ) T oo ”:-7 T . -

Our people
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Board activities during the year
The key areas of focus for the Board's activities and topics discussed during the year were as follows:

Strategic/governance pillar Discussion toples

—PGM strategy
—Technalogy. research and development

Strategic: continual technology |
development

« Praduction updates
—Performance forecasts

Strategic: scalable manufacturing

—Motive joint venture with Vitol

- £250 million capital fundraise

- Procurement strategy and key procurement contracts

~— Marketing and communications strategy

- Employee engagement, including the creation and cascade of shared
objectives

Strategic: strong partners and
relationships

Strategic: develop ITM Power

- Significant customer projects
Service )

- Recruitment of key personnel including Operations Director and Projects
Director

Strategic: expert knowledge

Governance: financial - Budget approval

~The Group’s banking facilities

— Approval of full year results and Annual Report for FY21

— Approval of half year results for the six months ended 31 October 2021
- Views of investors and analysts

— Approvals of capital spend above the threshold set by the Board

- Workforce performance indicators including senior management and
wider recruitment, analysis of workforce composition

~Health and safety performance

- Updates on ESG action plan progress

Gavernance: operations

— Approval of the notice of AGM

~Training on AIM and Market Abuse Regulation rules and obligations

-~ QCA Code compliance

~Board evaluation

- Review of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee and
appointment of Katherine Roe to the Nomination Committee

- Group risks

Governance: best in class

Strategic Technology
Audit ESG Nomination Remuneration Advisory Management
Board' C € C C 3 C

Chair of the Board
Sir Roger Bone 5(S) 6(6) nfa 2(2) nfa n/a n/a
Executive Directors
Graham Cooley 5(5) nfa 2{2) 2{2) n/a nfa n/a
Andy Allen . 5(5) nfa nfa nfa n/a nfa nfa .
Simon 8ourne 5(5) nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa 3(3)
Rache! Smith 5{5) n/fa 2(2) nfa n/a 2(2) nfa
Non-Executive
Directors
Martin Green 4(s) 6(6) nfa n/a 4(4) 2(2) n/a
Jirgen Nowicki 4(s} nfa . nfa n/a nfa 2(2) 3(3)
Tom Rae’ 1(2) nfa nfa n/a n/a 1(1) 3(3)
Katherine Roe 5(5) nfa 2(2) 1(1) 4(4) n/a nfa
1 numbel inthe period Board or Com .. is In bracks
2. i ber 2021,
3. A aumber of d hoc held during the year to consider astheyarose.
4 i loined i ber 2021,

. Cosma Panzacchi, a representative of Snam, was atse a membet of the Strategh Advisory Committee, but not the 8oard, He attended two meetings during the
year and was efigible to attend two meetings.

6. Marco Chlesa, a representative of Snam, Is alsoa member of the Technology Management Committee, but not the Board. He attended three meetings during
the year and was cligible toattend three meetings. N

7. Dentse Ce i

from 25 July the vear.

id rot attend any
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Corporate Governance Repart continued

Board evaluation :
To ensure its continued effectiveness, the Board undertakes a periodic evaluation of its performance and that of its

Committees. !t is committed to doing so every 18 to 24 months.

The last evaluation was undertaken in January 2022. The Chair of the Board led the process, with the support of the
Company Secretary. A questionnaire was issued and the Chair of the Board then conducted an interview with each
A :

Board

of key matters was performed, covering Board responsibilities, composition

of the Board, engagement and input, strategy, information flows and meeting administration, performance
monitoring, delegations, stakeholders and risk. The Board considered the outcomes and developed an action
plan to address any improvements identified, which will be implemented during FY23.

It is expected the Company will conduct an externally facilitated process in due course.

2022 Board evaluation findings and actions

Board iti Ci i remit ducti Governance

Findings Consider future Technology Induction processes Authorities and
experience Management curtailed during the delegations are in
requirements on the Commiittee could be COVID-19 pandemic place and understood
Board refocused to support but are not keptina

future needs better single, easily referable
repository
Actions taken - Devetop a'skills - Review the remit of —-Develop a more ~-Consolidate

matrix recording
current skills and
experience to help
identify potentiat
gaps

—Recruit a NED with
slrong BCCOUﬂﬁHB
experience

the Technology
Management
Comnittee to
ensure it addresses
our future needs

formal induction
programme for
NEDs (see Induction
and training on page
45)

authorities and
delegationsin a
, single repository

Board Committees

There are six Committees of the Board. The work of the
Audit and Remuneration Committees is discussed in the
Audit Committee Report and the Remuneration Report
respectively. The remit of each Committee is
summarised below, with some additional detail provided
about areas of focus during the year.

Audit Committee

Key duties and responsibilities

—Monitors the integrity of the Group’s financial
statements and financial announcements

~Monitors the quality and effectiveness of internal
controls and risk management systems

—Reviews arrangements for speaking up, detecting fraud
and managing bribery risks

—Monitors internal audit or alternative arrangements

—Manages the external auditor relationship

Areas of focus during the year

~Full year results and Annual Report for £Y21

— Half year results for the six months ended 31 October
2021

—Externat auditor: 2021 audit plan, effectiveness,
independence, reappointment

—Risk management: risk register review, deep dives on
key risks, creation of risk management function

—Internal audit: reviews of key controls and monitoring
actions arising therefrom, creation of internal audit
function

~Review of anti-fraud and bribery controls, including
speak-up arrangements and the approach to
hospitality, gifts and potential conflicts

Members

- Martin Green (Chair)

- Sir Roger Bone

—Denise Cockrem effective 25 July 2022

Supported by {by invitation)

-CEO

~ CFO, Group Financial Controlier and other members of
the Finance team

—Risk and Assurance function — risk management and
internal audit .

~Other senior management including the Company
Secretary

- External Auditor —Grant Thornton UK LLP

]

Read more:

~ Audit Committee Report from page 51

- Anti-fraud and bribery policy on our website at
https://itm-power.com/sustainability
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Corporate Governance Report continued

ESG Committee

Key duties and responsibilities

~Leads the development of the Group’s ESG strategy,
policies and programmes

—Responsible for the Group’s short- and long-term ESG
objectives and reporting of key metrics

—Qversees compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, including principles of good governance

Areas of focus during the year

—ESG strategy, actions and objectives

- ESG Report

Members

~Katherine Roe (Chair) 4
~Graham Cooley )

—Rachel Smith

Supported by (by invitation)

—Senior management including the Company Secretary,
Head of HR and Head of Investor Relations

~Good Business, a consultancy with more than two
.decades’ sustainability experience

e

Read more:

~Sustainable Energy, Engineered Sustainably from
page 24 - .

—ESG Report 2022 at
https://itm-power.com/investors/financial-reports

Nomination Committee

Key duties and responsibilities

- Leads the process for Board appointments and
succession planning, including considering the
composition of the Board and its future requirements

Areas of focus during the year

- Succession planning for members of the Executive
Committee and the Chair of the Board

- Skills and experience needed on the Board in the
future

- Recruitment of an additional NED

—Reviewed its terms of reference and recommended
changes to the Board

~Framework agreed for Committee activities

Members

- Sir Roger Bone {Chair)

—Graham Cooley

- Katherine Roe effective 6 December 2021

Supported by (by invitation)

- Russell Reynolds Associates, an executive search and
leadership firm

- Company Secretary

Committee membership
Recognising the importance of independent oversight of
Board i the ination C i
recommended to the Board that Katherine Roe be
invited to join the ination C i asa

The Nomination Committee reviewed the succession
plans for the members of the Executive Committee and
the Chair of the Board during the year. It considered and
agreed the plans for succession in an emergency

from 6 December 2021. The Board and Katherine

supported this recommendation and Katherine joined

the Nomination Committee.

Succession planning

We believe maintaining a well-balanced 8oard with the

right mix of skills and experience is important to ensure

our future success. This needs regular review 1o ensure:

~ The skills and experience on the Board are the right
ones to oversee and guide the delivery of our current
and future strategy

~There is a plan to respond 1o any vacancy that may
arise -~ whether anticipated or unexpected

To support this, and as an action from the Board
evalualion process, a matrix was developed toidentify
the skills and experience needed to support our future
plans. The Nomination Committee reviewed the matrix
in light of the skills and experience on the Board, within
the Group and avaifable externally. It concluded that the
Board was batanced with a good mix of skills and
experience, with appropriate support from specialists
within senior management and external advisors. it
nevertheless identified some areas for consideration in
any future recruitment activity, Feedback received as
part of the Board evaluation process was also taken into
consideration in developing the matrix and identifying
future requirements. An overview of the skills and
experience identified through this process is provided on
page 43.

as well as over the mid term and long term.

NED recruitment

With the departure of Tom Rae from the Board, the
Nomination Committee considered the future needs of
the Board. It consulted other members of the Board for
their input and concluded it would be appropriate to
appoint a further independent NED. A tender process
was conducled to identify an external firm to support
the recruitment process and Russell Reynolds Associates
was chosen.

A candidate specification was drawn up with Russell
Reynolds Associates, feeding in the input from other
members of the Board. It was agreed there should be a
focus on appointing someone with strong accounting
and broader financial skills and experience as well as
considering the Board’s commitment to increasing its
gender and ethnic diversity. From the initial list of
potential candidates identified by Russell Reynolds
Associates, a shortlist was identified for interview by

bers of the Nomination C ittee. They were
assessed objectively against the candidate specification
and further shortlisted for interview by the CEO and
CFO. The feedback from all the interviews was
considered and, from a strong field, a preferred
candidate identified.
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Corporate Governance Report continued

Denise Cockrem was-appointed to the Board with effect
from 25 Juty 2022 and was also appointed as a member
of the Audit Committee. Denise brings to the Board a
wealth of accounting and financial experience,
encompassing financial planning and analysis,
performance reporting and forecasting, financial
controls, internal audit and risk management, from her
current role as Chief Financial Officer of Ecclesiastical
Insurance Office plc and previous finance roles in Good
Energy Group plc, RSA Insurance Group, Direct Line =
Retail Division and Royal Bank of Scotland. The
Nomination Committee considered the other
commitments of Denise and is satisfied they will not
impair her ability to serve as an effective member of the
Board and Audit Committee.

Russell Reynolds Associates provides no other services
to ITM Power, but has been retained by Motive to
support the search for new members of the senior
management team. It is a founding member of the UK's
Standard Voluntary Code of Conduct for Executive
Search Firms and is one of the firms accredited under
the Enhanced Code for its leading wark on promoting
board diversity.

Remuneration Committee

Key duties and responsibilities

~ Determines the remuneration policy for the Chair of
the Board and Executive Directors, aiming to support
the strategy and long-term success of the Company

- Sets the performance conditions for awards granted
under the terms of the LTIP

- Approves the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors, including grants of LTIP awards.

Areas of focus during the year

- Bonus pay outs for the Executive Directors for FY21

- Benchmarking Executive Directors’ remuneration and
revising salaries

- Setting performance targets for the annual bonus and
for LTIP awards granted in the year

—Remuneration Report for FY21

- LTIP grants to Executive Directors

- Remuneration consultant review

- Review of leaver treatments under the Company’s
share plans

Members
—Katherine Roe {Chair}
—Martin Green

Supported by {by invitation)

=Chair of the Board

—-CeQand CFO .

- Other senior management including the
Company Secretary

~Ernst & Young LLP provides independent advice
to the Remuneration Committee

o
Read more:
—Remuneration Report on page 55

Strategic Advisory Committee

Key duties and responsibilities

— Advises the Board on key business development
matters

Areas of focus during the year
- Anti-trust considerations

'~ ITM Power strategy and market environment

— Competitor landscape and positioning

Members

—Martin Green {Chair)

- Jirgen Nowicki

- Comsa Panzacchi to 1 July 2022/Piero Ercoli from
1 July 2022 [Snam representative)

—Rachel Smith

Supported by (by invitation)

~CEQ, CTO and other senior management .

—Linde, ILE and Snam provide market intelligence and
competitor analysis to the Strategic Advisory
Committee

—Company Secretary '

e

Read more: | .

- Our Strategy and Our Business Model on pages 17
to 18

- Qur Market from page 15

- Markets we serve: hitps://itm-power.com/markets
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ol Ce

Key duties and responsibilities v

~Reviews the Group’s product portfolio and
development plans

- Reviews the suitability of the portfolio, manufacturing
capacity and planned developments to satisfy
anticipated market developments

— Reviews requirements to meet the Group's technology
goal to be best-in-class

Areas of focus during the year

—Product and innovation roadmap

—Research and development focus areas

- Standardisation and homologation requirements
~Focus areas for value engineering

Members

- jiirgen Nowicki (Chair}

—Simon Bourne

~Marco Chiesa {Snam representative)

t Finandial

Supported by (by invitation)
- Senior management representing research and
devel and product teams

~ILE and Snam:
- Provide information to the Technology Management
Committee about how ITM Power’s technology
compares to competitor technologies

Where to find additional disclosures

Disclosure

Location

How we seek to engage
shareholders

Stakeholders and Section 172 Statement from page 19

Outcomes of votes at general
meetings

Reaulat.

y News 1ents on our website:
https://itm-power.com/investors/news

—Recommend enh its, product
and product homologation requirements emerging
in the market

= Company Secretary

Read more:

- Our Business Model on page 18

—Our electrolysers and how they work:
hitps://itm-power.com/products

Response to significant proportion
of votes against a resolution at any
general meeting

Shareholder documents, under Notices and circutars, on our website:
https://itm-power.com/investors/shareholder-documents

Historical annual reports

Financial and ESG reports on our website:
hitps://itm-power.com/investors/financial-reports

. Notices of general meetings

Shareholder documents, under Notices and circulars, on our website:
https://itm-pe stors/shareholder-documents

P
.com/ine

Articles of Association

Shareholder documents, under Articles of Association, on our website:
https://itm-power.com/investors/shareholder-documents

Admission documents

Shareholder documents, under Admission documents, on our website:
https://itm-power.com/investors/shareholder-documents

Information required to comply
with AIM Rule 26

AIM Rule 26 on our website: X
hitps://itm-power.com/investors/aim-rule-26
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Audit Committee Report

Introduction from the
Chair of the Audit Committee

Our focus during
the year was on
supporting the
Board’s approv
of the financial
statements and
overseeing the
services provided
by the external
auditor in relation
to those financial
statements.

Dear shareholder

As Chair of the Audit Commiittee, | am pleased to present
the Audit Committee’s report for FY22, This report is
intended to explain how the Committee has met its
responsibilities throughout the year.

C tings and support

We were grateful for the support of the Nomination
Committee in identifying Denise Cockrem to join the
Board and the Audit Committee in July 2022. Denise’s
expertise in accounting and finance will further enhance
our experience and support our work.

The Audit Comnittee’s full membership is provided on
page 47 along with details of those that supported the
Audit Commiltee during the year.

Attendance at scheduled meetings during the year is
provided on page 46.

N\

Areas of focus during the yeor

Our focus during the year was on supporting the Board's
approval of the financial statements and overseeing the
services provided by the external auditor in relation to
those financial statements. The Audit Committee also,
perfarmed certain risk management and internal audit
functions. We also reviewed the anti-fraud and bribery
controls, including speak-up arrangements and the
approach to hospitality, gifts and potential conflicts.

Given the increasing scale, diversity and complexity of
ITM Power, we. identified the importance of enhancing
the risk management processes within the organisation.
We also agreed with management the time was right to
create an internal audit function. It was agreed a new
Risk and Assurance function would be created, with
responsibility for risk 8 1t and internal audit.
More information is provided later in the Audit
Committee Report.

Availability to shareholders .
| am available to shareholders to answer any questions
on the work of the Audit Committee.

Martin Green
Chair of the Audit Committee
14 September 2022




Annual Report for FY22
The Audit Committee reviewed the Annual Reporl and
ided feedback. It considered whether ITM Power’s

52 [TM Power PLC Annual Report 2022 Overview
Audit Committee Report continued ‘
C of the Audit C Accounting _
In line with best-practice, the Board is satisfied that all area Key financial impact(s) Audit Committee considerotions
s of the Audit C ittee are ind d — - " n
Stock No material difference The Audit Committee considered and approved a change

Denise Cockrem has a particular expertise in accounting
and finance, as demonstrated through her career. Her
current role as Chief Financial Officer of Ecclesiastical
Insurance Office plc and previous finance roles in Good
Energy Group plc, RSA Insurance Group, Direct Line -
Retail Division and Royal Bank of Scotiand have enabled
her to develop skills and experience encompassing
financial planning and analysis, performance reporting
and forecasting, financial controls, internal audit and risk
management.

Both Martin Green and Sir Roger Bone are considered to
have a broad range of financial experience. Martin
previously had responsibility for the financial
performance of a portfolio of Johnson Matthey
businesses, while Sir Roger previously acted as a
Non-Executive Director, Senior Independent Director
and member of the Audit Committee of the F&C
investment Trust, which has a portfolio of over £4 billion,

Significant ting jud, and

The Audit Committee considered the significant
accounting judgements and estimates ahead of each
market announcement regarding ITM Power’s results.
The areas in which the Audit Committee was required
to exercise significant judgement during the year were:

obsolescence

in stock obsolescence accounting to better reflect the
status of stock. We now review on a part-by-part basis
whether or not there is demand for a stock item (for
example, in our products, for product development, or
for maintenance purposes). Where there is no forecast

Depreciation

Losses reduced by £0.5 million

demand, the item is provided for in full.

On the rec ion of 8 it, the Audit

Committee considered the nature of the equipment

being bought {especially for Bessemer Park) and the

maturity of products and agreed a revised approach

that would allow for a longer economic life of deployed
. capital items.

Contract
accounting
and provisions

Provisions for contract loss

increased in year from £4.82 miillion
to £12.5 million (see Note 22 to the
Cc i d Financial s)

The Audit C considered mar s
forecasting of costs to complete projects. It agreed
with management’s approach of basing provisions

on the best estimates of management aligned with
information known at the time to ensure the forecast
cost to completion is appropriate. It reviewed and
challenged miar ’s estil during the year.
Any expected losses are recognised immediately
through profit and loss.

position, strategic approach and.performance during
the year were portrayed fairly and in a balanced way
throughout the Annual Report and aligned wilh the
financial statements. The Audit Committee had regard
to the findings and judgements of the external auditors.

External audit

The Audit Committee has responsibility and oversight of
the Group’s relationship with its external auditor, Grant
Thornton UK LLP, and for assessing the effectiveness of
the external audit process. Grant Thornton UK LLP was
appointed as the external auditor in 2017 and the lead
audit partner is David White.

The Audit Committee agreed the approach and scope
of the audit work to be undertaken by Grant Thornton
UK LLP for the financial year. It also reviewed Grant
Thornton UK LLP’s terms of engagement and the fees
payable in respect of audit and non-audit services to
ensure they are appropriate and reflect performance.
Oetails of the amounts paid to the external auditor
are provided in Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Grant Thornlon UK LLP provided Lhe Audit Committee
with regular reports on the status of the audit, its
assessment of the agreed areas of audit focus and
findings, and conclusions to date.

The Audit Committee reviewed the experience and
expertise of the audit team, the fulfilment of the agreed
audit plan and any variations to it, feedback from ITM
Power’s management and the contents of the external
audit report. .
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The Audit C confirmed its faction with the

effectiveness of the external auditor.

Audit quality review

During the year, an Audit Quality Review Team (AQRT)
from the Financial Reporting Council undertook an
inspection of Grant Thornton UK LLP’s audit of the
financial statements for FY21. As part of that process,
the Chair of the Audit Committee spoke with the AQRT
to share the Audit Commitiee’s perspective on the
quality of Grant Thornton UK LLP’s audit. On completion
of the review, the Audit Committee received the AQRT's
final report on its inspection and the Chair of the Audit
Committee discussed it with the audit partner. The
report gave the Audit Committee no concerns over the
quality, objectivity or independence of the audit.

External auditor independence

The continued independence of the external auditor is
important for an effective audit. The Audit Committee
has a policy regarding Lhe use of the external auditor for
non-audit services. The external auditor may only be
engaged for non-audit services exceptionally and only
with the approval of the Audit Committee. The external
auditor may not undertake any work that may
compromise its independence or is otherwise prohibited
by any law or regulation.

Financial

The Audit Committee received a statement of
independence from Grant Thornton UK LLP in

Reappointment of the external auditor
The Audit Committee has responsibility for making

September 2022 confirming that, in its professional
judgement, it is independent and has complied with the
relevant ethical requis s regarding independence

in the provision of its services. The report described
Grant Thornton UK LLP’s arrangements to identify,
manage and safeguard against conflicts of interest.

The Audit Committee reviewed the scope of the
non-audit services undertaken by Grant Thornton UK
LLP during the year, to ensure there was no impairment
of judgement or objectivity, and monitored the
non-audit work performed to ensure it remained within
the agreed policy guidelines. it also considered the
extent of non-audit services provided to ITM Power.
Non-audit fees paid to Grant Thornton UK LLP were for
interim agreed upon procedures/review work and
assurance work for the capital fundraise, both of which
it was appropriate for the external auditor to undertake
given its knowtedge of the Group and the need for
independent assurance. They represented 51%
{£180,000) of the total audit and non-audit fees

paid (£350,000). The Audit Committee determined,
based on its evaluation, that the external auditor

was independent.

arec d 1 to the Board regarding the
reappointment of the external auditor. As part of its
review process, the Audit Committee typically considers
auditor rotation at least every five years, unless the
annual performance review identifies a reason to

rotate earlier.

Based on its continued satisfaction with the audit work
performed to date and Grant Thornton UK LLP's continued
independence, the Audit Committee has recommended
to the Board, and the Board has approved, that Grant
Thornton UK LLP be proposed for reappointment by
shareholders as [TM Power’s external auditor at the
2022 AGM. :

Internal audit

In accordance with its terms of reference, the Audit

G i has co d \ly whether there is
aneed for an internal audit function. During the year, it
agreed with management that the growth of ITM Power,
and the scale, diversity and complexity of its activities,
warranted the creation of an internal audit function.
AHead of Risk and Assurance was appointed to lead the risk
management and internal audit functions with preparatory
plans for their impk ion being developed.

The Audit Committee therefore undertook certain
assurance activities around critical risks and key controls
during the year, in the absence of an internal audit function.
This included pi ions from r gement at Audit
Committee meetings, and in-depth reviews with
management outside Audit Committee meetings.

The outcomes of the reviews were discussed al

Audit Committee meetings and, where appropriate,
recommendations were made to management,

was then

of those rec
monitored.

A handover of responsibilities from the Audit Committee

to the internal audit function will take place during the

next financial year. The Audit Commiltee’s role will then

be to:

—Monitor and review the effectiveness of the internal
audit function

~— Approve the appointment and removal of the head of
the internal audit function

- Consider and approve the remit of the internal audit
function and ensure it has adequate resources and
appropriate access to information

—Ensure the internal audit function has adequate
standing and is free from management or other
restrictions

- Review and approve the annual internal audit plan-

~Review promptly all reports from the internal auditors

—Review and monitor management’s responsiveness to
the findings and recommendations of the internat
auditors

Internal control and risk management

Akey role of the Audit Committee is to monitor the
effectiveness of the internal financial controls and the
internal controls and risk management systems.

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit

Comnmittee, considers that the internal controls in ptace
are appropriate for our size, complexity and risk profile.
Given our rapid growth, this remains under active review.
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Internal financial controls

We have an established framework of internal financial
controls, the effectiveness of which is periodically
reviewed by each of the Board and the Executive
Committee, as well as the Audit Committee. There are
procedures in place for budgeting and forecasting; for
monitoring and reporting business performance against
those budgets and forecasts; and for projecting
expected performance over the financial year.

Responsibilities are separate and defined:

—The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving
our overall strategy, corporate objectives, financial
strategy, the annual budget, and capital fundraising.
it receives periodic financial reports, tracking budget
and forecasts.

-The Audit Committee reviews key financial controls
throughout the year. It has responsibility for
manitoring the integrity of the financial reporting of
the Company and for ensuring internal financial
controls are sufficiently robust and appropriate.

~The Executive Committee retains day-to-day
responsibility for financial performance and has
internal financial reporting processes in place.

-The Group’s Financial Controller oversees budgeting,
cash flow forecasts and financial statements and the
operation of the Group’s financial systems, working
with ITM Power’s auditors. Internal controls and
financial systems transformation are the responsibility
of other members of the Finance team.,

Non-financial controls

We recognise that maintaining sound controls and
discipline are critical to managing the risks to our
strategy. The Board has ultimate responsibility for the
Group's system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. .

The CFO has day-to-day responsibility for ensuring
internal controls remain appropriate. He reports to the
Executive Commiltee on operational changes required.

Day-to-day activities are closely managed by the
Executive Directors. There is detailed monthly reporting
of performance against our corporate objectives, project
schedules, budget, risks and expected performance, and
operational needs. These are key to the success of the
internal management and control system.

We cor_\tinue to increase our commercial operations,
including investing in new manufacturing facilities.

We also continue to make appropriate senior
appointments to support our business plan and address
the resulting operational needs and risks.

Risk management .
The Audit Committee is also required under its terms of
reference to conduct an annual formal review into risk
management and review the effectiveness of risk
management systems. In the absence of a separate risk
management function, it has performed certain risk
management activities. These included detailed reviews
of the most significant risks and oversight of the risk
register as well as input into and approval of risk
disclosures included in the Annual Report.

;

Recommendations were made to management where
considered appropriate and developments were
monitored.

Ouring the year, it agreed with management that ITM
Power had reached a stage of development where it was
appropriate to create a risk management function. A
Head of Risk and Assurance was appointed to lead the
risk management and internal audit functions with
preparatory plans for their implementation being
developed.

A handover of responsibilities from the Audit Committee

to the risk management function will take place during

the next financial year. The Audit Committee’s role will

then be to:

—Review the effectiveness of the risk management
systems .

- Conduct a formal review into risk management

~Review and approve the statements included in the
Annual Report regarding risk

Speaking up

The Audit G ittee is ible for r
arrangements for employees and third parties to raise
concerns, in ¢ e, about possib doingin
financial reporting or other matters.

There are established ways to raise concerns. These
include options to contact a line manager, the Legal
Compliance Manager, the Risk and Assurance team or
the Company Secretary. As of June 2022, we also offer a
service via a third party, Safecall, through which
confidential, anonymous reporting is available,

When someone speaks up, an initial assessmentis
carried out to determine the scope of any investigation.
Where appropriate, a full investigation is instigated. If
appropriate, subject matter experts are used to support
the investigation. In particularly serious cases, the
matter may be escalated to the Chair of the Audit
Committee, the Chair of the Board, or our external
auditor.

Anyone who raises an honest concern, even if they turn
out to be mistaken, is protected from retaliation and
detrimental treatment.

The Audit Committee receives and considers reports
from management and, in future, Safecall regarding
concerns raised and provides the Board with key
information for its consideration as appropriate. There
were no whistleblowing matters raised during the year.

Where to find additional disclosures

Disclosure Location

Attendance at Meeting atlendance table in the
Audit Committee Corporate Governance Report
meetings on page 46

External auditor’s Independent Auditor’s Report
report to the Members of 1M Power

PLC on pages 72 to 77

Note 7 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Fees paid to the
external auditor
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Remuneration Report

Introduction from the
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

The focus of the
Remuneration
Committee during
the year was

on setting the
appropriate
remuneration
levels for the
Executive
Directors.

.

Dear shareholder

As Chair of the Remuneration Committee, | am pleased
1o present the Remuneration Report for FY22. This
report is intended to explain how the Remuneration
Committee has met its responsibilities throughout the
year and to provide information about the remuneration
received by Directors.

As a company admitted to trading on AIM, our directors’
remuneration report does not have to comply with the
requirements of Schedule 8 of The Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 {as amended). Nevertheless, we have
aligned our remuneration reporting with these
requirements as far as possible, but we may not provide

Remuneration principles

The overarching principles we apply in our approach to

remuneration are:

—To ensure overall remuneration is set at a competitive
level against our peer group enabling us to attract and
retain high-calibre employees with the required skills
to execute our strategy.

~Take into account all factors to:

— Ensure executive remuneration is aligned to the
Group’s purpose and values, clearly linked to the
successful detivery of the Group's long-term strategy,
and that enable the use of discretion to override
formulaic outcomes and 1o adjust sums or awards
under appropriate specified circumstances.

- Attract, retain and motivate the executive

of the Group without inappropriate

all the information required under the regul

C b and support

The Remuneration Committee’s full membership is
provided on page 49 along with details of those that
supported the Remuneration Commitlee during the
year.

e at scheduled 1
provided on page 46.

ings during the year is

financial burden on the Group.

- Consider the requirements for clarity, transparency,
risk mitigation, predictability, proportionality and
alignment to culture.

Performance during the year

The Remuneration Committee’s decisions for the year

were made against the following backdrop:

— Revenues that were lower than expected for the year.
The Group had expected to be able to recognise the
revenue from the sale, via Linde to Leuna, of 24 MW of
electrolyser products, but this was delayed.

— Cost overruns on both the REFHYNE | and Leuna
projects adversely affected gross margin. This, along
wilh additional investments to enable production ramp
up at Bessemer Park, led to an increased loss before
tax.

— Cash burn that increased compared to the prior year.
This reflected increased product development spend,
an increase in inventory build and additional
production equipment to support the production ramp
up at Bessemer Park.

Full details are provided in the CFO’s Review on page 12.
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Areas of focus during the year .

The focus of the Remuneration Committee during the
year was on setting the appropriate remuneration levels
for the Executive Directors. This included reviewing their
base salaries as well as setting award levels and
performance targets for the annual bonus and awards
granted under the terms of the LTIP. The CEO and Chair
of the Board also reviewed the fees paid to the
Non-Executive Directors,

Following a benchmarking exercise conducted in June
2021, the Remuneration Committee decided to increase
the base salaries of the Executive Directors. A similar
benchmarking exercise was conducted in june 2022,
which the Remuneration Committee fed into its
considerations of remuneration packages for the
Executive Directors. Taking into account the significant
increases 1o base salary implemented for Executive
Directors from 1 July 2021, the performance of the
business and the approach taken to pay rises in the
wider workforce, the Remuneration Committee decided
not to increase salaries in the summer of 2022, More
informatian is provided later in the Remuneration
Report.

t Financial

The Remuneration Report for FY21 was put toan
advisory vote at our 2021 AGM. Following the 28.70%
vote against its approval, as well as shareholder feedback
received, we engaged with shareholders to discuss their
concerns. The majority of the concerns related to the
increases to Executive Director base salaries and the

.exceptional incentive awards granted during the year.

The Remuneration Committee noted the feedback from
shareholders and r ded to those shareholders who
raised concerns with further details regarding the
approach taken. It confirmed it did not expect to grant
further exceptional incentive awards in recogaition of
future fundraising exercises. It will continue to consult
with shareholders and take their views into account. The
views of our shareholders will continue to be an
important factor in informing the decisions of the
Remuneration Committee and the Remuneration
Committee will balance these views against the need to
retain and motivate the current executive team, who
have been instrumental in the Company’s performance
to date.

Annual bonus outcomes

The Remuneration Committee carefully reviewed the
formulaic outcome of the annual bonus and then
whether the formulaic outcome was aligned to the
underlying strength of results, the execution of strategic
priorities, pay practices and outcomes for the wider
workforce, and the returns to investors during the year.
Overall, it was concluded that it was appropriate to
recognise the achievements of the Executive Directors
and so the Remuneration Committee made no
adjustment to the formulaic outcome, which equated
to a pay out of 16% of the maximum opportunity. More
detail of the R ion C ittee’s is
provided on page 63.

Availability to shareholders

1 am available to shareholders to answer any questions
on the work of the Remuneration Committee. On behalf
of the Remuneration Committee, | would like to place on
record our appreciation to our shareholders for their
constructive input throughout the year.

Katherine Roe
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
14 September 2022
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Overview of the Executive Director remuneration policy

Remuneration Purpose and link to Maximum Per
element our strategy . Operation opportunity framework 2021/22 2022/23
Fixed pay
Base salary To ensure we can Paid monthly in arrears by bank transfer. No maximum. Anumber of factors Executive Directors No proposed changes.
recruit and retain iel : are considered when received pay rises with
high-calibre Norecavery prawgans anply to base salary. setting base salary effect from 1 July 2021
executives. levels, including taking their base
market rates, - salaries to:
benchmarking to Graham Cooley -
peers, individual £420,000
Director’s experience,  Andy Allen — £300,000
responsibilities and Simon Bourne -
performance. £300,000
Rachel Smith - £230,000
Pension . Toattractand retain  Monthly payments into a defined contribution or similar pension scheme or, in agreed A contribution into Not applicable. Graham Cooley - cash Graham Cooley - no
provisions talent through the circumstances, a cash allowance in fieu of pension contributions. the Group's defined allowance in lieu of proposed changes.
prowslz?n of No recovery provisions apply to pensions. contributien pension pension. Other Executive
anfachve 3 a(rangemen\ ne Other Executive Directors - from
retirement benefits. higher than that. Directors— 1July 2022, contributions
' offered to the wider contributions to their to their pensions
workforce. pensi ivalent to ivalent to 7% of
No maximum for any 5% of base salary base salary (before any
cash allowance. {before any salary salary exchange).
- exchange).
Benefits To assist in May include private medical insurance, sick pay, a fully expensed car (or equivalent Not applicable. .Not applicable. No Executive Directors  No proposed changes.
attracting and cash allowance), disability and life assurance cover. Some benefils may be provided in received taxable
the case of relocation, such as removal expenses and, in the case of international benefits.

retaining employees
in a cost-effective
way.

relocation, might also include items such as cost of accommodation, children’s
schooling, home leave, tax equalisation and professional advice,

The tax payable (grossed up) on any business expenses captured as taxable benefits
may also be reimbursed.

No recovery provisions apply 10 benefits.
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Remuneration Purpose and link to Maximum Performance Implementation
element aur strategy Operation opportunity framework 2021/22 2022/23
Variable pay N
Annual bonus To incentivise An annual bonus scheme with measures and performance targets set by the Capped at 100% of Specific annual Executive Directors No change to 2021/22
Executive Directors Remuneration Committee. base salary for the targets based onclear  received the following award levels.
to gerhver 5.";3'93'5 Paid in cash. Pay out determined after the end of the financial year following the CF.[O a';d 60?" of base agf’ m'easulr:blle 2"";“5 Dagmfms_: Executive Directors |
ana financia Remuneration Committee’s assessment of performance relative to targets and salary for other objectives tha raham Cooley xecutive Directors have
success. objectives A : Executive Directors. underpin, and are key  £67,200 the following bonus
i to the achievement (16% of base salary) opportunities, as a
Annuat bonus payments do not form part of pensionable earnings and are non- of, the Group’s Andy Allen - £28,800 percentage of salary:
contractual. strategy. (9.6% of base salary) Graham Cooley - 100%
The Remuneration Committee retains discretion in exceptionat circumstances to Simon Bourne ~ Andy Allen - 60%
adjust the targets and/or set different measures and alter weightings if certain events £28,800 Simon Bou'me -60%
occur that cause it to determine they are no longer appropriate. The Remuneration (9.6% of bafﬂ salary) Rachel Smith - 60%
Committee will ensure any revisions to targets are not materially less difficult to Rachel Smith ~ £22,080
satisfy. . (9.6% of base salary)
" All payments are at the ultimate discretion of the Remuneration Committee and it
retains an overriding ability to ensure that overall bonus payments are appropriate
and reflect corporate performance. -
e To align the Any awards granted are subject to a three-year vesting period and stretching Capped at 100% of Specific targets based Al Executive Directors AllExecutive Directors
fong-term interests performance targets. base salary plus an on clear, stretching were granted anaward  are expected to be
of Sha'em":f“n Z"d All vesting is at the ultimate discretion of the Remuneration Committee and the gr‘::'f} to Cf"’;' ional a't‘? ":?as"{f‘b:e gq""’al;""‘ to ll(."?’z‘:f gm"i‘;';fez?lao“:::ax_m o
management a Remuneration Committee retains an overriding ability to ensure that vesting reflects ployer's National objectives tha ase salary, upliftedto  equ imu
reward its view of corporate performance over the set period Insurance underpin, and are key  reflect the payment by of 100% of base salary,
achievement of ) Contributions, which to the achievement - the recipient of uplifted to reflect the
stretching long-term  The Remuneration Committee retains discretion in exceptional circumstances to are passed on to the of, the Group’s Employer’s ! pay by the recipi
targets. adjust the targets and/or set different measures and alter weightings if certain events participant as long-term strategy. Insurance of Employer’s National
occur that cause it to determine they are no longer appropriate. The Remuneration permitted under Contributions. nsurance Contributions.
Committee will ensure any revisions to targets are not materially less difficult to UK legislation.

_salisly.

Malus and clawback provisions apply in cases of material financial misstatement,
conduct that results (or is reasonably fikely to result) in significant reputational damage
to the Company, negligence or misconduct, or fraud.
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Overview of the Chair of the Board and Non-Executive Director remuneration policy:

Remuneration Purpose and link to Maximum Performance Implementation
element our strategy Operation X opportunity framewaork 2021/22 2022/23
Fees To ensure we can Paid monthly in arrears by bank transfer. Fee increases for The Remuneration Chair of the Board: No proposed changes.
atlrac} and retain Fees for the Chair of the Board are determined by the Remuneration Committee. NEDs will not Commiltee considers  £150,000.
ex}penenced and Fees for other NEDs are determined by the CEQ and Chair of the Board. normally exceed a nurqberof factors, NED base fee: £51,000.
skilled Non- - average hase including market
Executive Directors Any Director representing a shareholder on the Board is paid by the shareholder, salary increases rates, benchmarking ~ Additional fee for
able to advise and not the Group. : across the Group.  to peers and the chairing the Audit, ESG,
assist with time i ation or
establishing and expected. Strategic Advisory
monitoring the Committees: £10,000
strategic objectives. per Commiitlee chaired.
Tom Rae and Jurgen
Nowicki received no
fees.
Expenses Not applicable. Reasonable expenses are reimbursed. Not applicable. Not applicable. Not applicable. Not applicable.

The tax payable (grdssed up) on any business expenses captured as taxable benefits may

also be reimbursed.

Expenses incurred for advice in respect of UK tax returns for non-UK NEDs may be

reimbursed.

Share ownership
guidelines/
requirements

To build and
maintain a
shareholding to
align their interests
with those of
shareholders.

NEDs are encouraged to build and maintain a shareholding.

Not applicable,

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.
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Annual report on remuneration

Remuneration outcomes for FY22

The following pages set out details of the remuneration
received by Directors for FY22. Prior year figures have
also been shown. The Remuneration Report has not
been audited.

The Directors’ remuneration in the year was awarded in
line with the remuneration policy.

Single total figure of remuneration for each Director

Basesalary Penslon-related Annual Long-term Totat fixed Total variable
Year ended and fees benefits bonus incentive awards Total remuneration remuneration
30 April (€} (2] (€} (€) (£} (€) {€)
Executive Directors
Graham Cooley, CEQ ) 2022 376,639 28,000 67,200 3,938,000 4,409,839 404,639 4,005,200
2021 285,053* 28,000 248,861 2,600,000* 3,161,914 313,053 2,848,861
Andy Allen, CFO 2022 275,988 13,799 28,800 1,312,669 1,631,256 289,787 1,341,469
2021 149,188° 7,459° 82,640 866,666* 1,105,953 156,647 949,306
Simon Bourne, CTO 2022 288,393 14,420 28,800 2,297,169 2,628,782 302,813 2,325,969
2021 222,438’ 11,122 145,127 1,516,666 1,895,353 233,560 1,661,793
Rachel Smith, Services Director 2022 216,439 10,822 22,080 1,640,839 1,890,180 227,261 1,662,919
) 2021 149,182° 7,459 82,540 1,083,332° 1,322,513 156,641 1,165,872
Non-Executive Directors
Sir Roger Bone, Chair 2022 139,167 - - - 139,167 139,167 -
2021 82,500 - = ~ 82,500 82,500 -
Martin Green 2022 68,333 - - - 68,333 68,333 -
2021 53,333 - - - 53,333 53,333 -
Jirrgen Nowicki' 2022 - - - - - - -
2021 - - - - - - -
Tom Rae"’ 2022 - - - - - - -
2021 - - - - - - -
Katherine Roe . 2022 68,333 - - - 68,333 68,333 -
2021 52,814 - - - 52,814 52,814 -
1 nominated Direct ive no Company.
2. Tom Rae was appointed effective 3 December 2020 and resigned effective 16 November 2021
3 priot d have been the basts of vested In the year

. Base salary
instead of awards isedin the year {more detallis p

have been restated to refiect
vided in th
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The annuat boaus for FY23 will operate on similar terms to the prior year. The performance target categories (and
associated weightings) are: financial (50%), technology and operational {20%), business development (20%) and ESG
{10%). The performance targets are measurable, challenging and subject to rigorous review by the Remuneration
Committee. Subject to commercial sensitivity, we intend to provide an overview of the Remuneration Committee’s
assessment of performance against the underlying targets in next year’s report.

Assessment of performance for FY22 bonus

Category Metric r Target  Performance assessment Pay out
Financial Sales 15% £31.97m  Revenue was £5.6 million and so this target 0%
was not met.
Gross margin 15% £1.78m  Asthe Group made a loss, this target was 0%
not met.
Overheads 10% £24.34m  Atarget of £24.34 million net overheads was 0%
set at the beginning of the year. We changed
the way we recharged overheads during the
year. The Remuneration Committee therefore
measured the net overheads on the same basis
on which recharges were being calculated at
the start of the year, and on which basis the
target had been set. This target was not met.
Cash burn 10% £39.07m  Acash burn target of £39.07 million was set. 0%
As cash burn was £53.3 million, this target
was not met.
Strategy Production, 15% See Targets associated with the following were not 3%
supply chain, performance  met:
product and assessment  —Securing new factory space
markets -~ tmpl 1ting additional
~Securing certain accreditations for products
outside the UK and Europe

Work to address supply chain risks connected
to key components within our products was
partially completed in the year.

Category Metric Weighting Target

Performance assessment

Pay out

See
performance
assessment

ESG ESG, health

and safety

15%

The ESG Committee provided a qualitative
review of ESG performance during the year.
Good progress was made on embedding ESG
activities and implementing structures to
support future work. Our website was
improved significantly during the year,
improving our communication with
stakeholders including investors, and

our first ESG Report was well-received.

We achieved IS0 9001, 1SO 45001 and

1S 14001 accreditation during the year, but
work continues to embed a behavioural
approach to health and safety.

10%

Business Order intake 20% 223 MW

development

Atarget was set to generate orders that would
drive sales in the next financial year. This target
was partially met.

3%

Total

Total 16%
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Long-term incentive awards

1TM Power PLC Share Option Plan: EMiand Unapproved {SOP)

The SOP was introduced in 2010. Options were granted under the SOP as follows:

—EMI options granted under the SOP vested in three equa! instalments on the first, second and third anniversaries
of the date of grant and may be exercised up ta the tenth anniversary of the date of granl

—Unapproved options granted under the SOP before 2019 vested in three equal instalments on lhe first, second
and third anniversaries of the date of grant and may be exercised up to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant

—Unapproved options granted under the SOP in 2019 vest on the third anniversary of the date of granl and may be
exercised up to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant

There are no performance conditions for EMI options or unapproved options granted under the SOP.

No consideration is payable for the grant of awards under the SOP. The exercise price is the mid-market price of shares
on AIM at the close of trading on the day before the grant of options.

No further awards wilt be granted under this plan.

The long-term incentive award value shown in the Single total figure of remuneration for each Director relates to the
value of awards granted under the terms of the SOP that vested in the year. The stated value is calculated based on the
number of shares that vested multiplied by the mid-market closing price for a share on the date of vesting. As explained
inthe note to the table, the value for FY21 has been restated. The FY21 value is now based on the options that vested
during the year, rather than the value of options that were exercised during the year. The values in the table for both
FY21 and FY22 reflect (i) the value of one third'of the total share award granted in 2018, when our share price was
significantly lower {around 30 pence per share), and (i) the fact that the options were not subject to performance
conditions.

Details of outstanding options granted under the SOP are provided in the Statement of directors’ shareholding and share

interests on’page 66.

(3114
The LTIP was introduced in 2020, when use of the SOP was discontinued. Vesting of awards occurs on the third
anniversary of the date of grant, subject to i ploy and satisf; 1 of performance conditions.

Performance conditions are set by the Remuneration Committee and awards granted to the wider workforce are
subject to the same performance conditions as those applied to the Executive Directors. The performance conditions
set stretching targets to drive future performance, aligned with our long-term strategy.

The Remuneration Committee may, in its discretion, adjust downwards the extent to which an award shall vest
(including to zero) where overall Company performance over the duration of the performance period has not been
deemed to be satisfaclory.

Shares granted to Executive Directors under the terms of the LTIP are subject to a two-year holding period from the
vesting date to the fifth anniversary of the date of granl. The holding period does not apply 10 the wider workforce.

Executive Directors were granted a LTIP award of 100% of base salary during the year plus an upfift to cover Employer’s
National Insurance Contributions, which are passed on to the participant as permitted under UK legislation. No
consideration is payable for the grant of awards under the LTIP, which are structured as nominal cost options meaning
the exercise price is £0.05 per share. The number of shares awarded was calculated using a share price of £3.94, being
the volume weighted average price for the last five days of trading prior to the date of grant.
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Awards granted during the year are subject to the following stretching performance conditions over a performance
period from 1 May 2021 to 30 April 2024:

% of LTIP to stretching performance conditions. The share price used to determine the number of shares awarded will be set
award al the time of the grant and will take into account, among other things, recent share price performance.
subjectto
Per perf Description of Details of outstanding options granted under the LTIP are provided in the Statement of directors’ shareholding and
di dit performance share interests on page 66.

Total 60  Company TSR compared to Index®
Shareholder TSR 9% of this part of the award that vests Notes to the single figure table for Non-Executive Directors
Return (TSR] . B Fees
over th; ) Less than lnde: AL 0 The fees paid to Non-Executive Directors were reviewed during 2021. Following the review, it was considered '
performance Equal to Index* TSR 25 appropriate to increase the base fee to afign with the lower quartile of the market. The Chair of the Board’s fee was
period Between Index* TSR and Index” Pro rata between 25 and 100 0n a also increased to reflect his role chairing the board of directors of Motive. The additional fee paid for chairing the

TSR plus 15 percentage points straight-line basis Board Committees was not adjusted. No changes were made to fees when they were reviewed by the Chair of

£qual to Index* TSR plus 15 the Board and the CEO in the summer of 2022.

percentage points 100 X .

T The indev of companics known 25 the AIMI S0, Fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors with effect from 1 July 2021 were:
MSCIESG rating 20  AAArating. Role Current foes
at the end of the ~
performance Chair of the Board . £150.000
period Base fee independent Non-Executive Director £51,000
Cumulative 10 Subject to commercial sensmvuy, we intend to provide an overview of the Shareholder nominated Non-Execulive Direclor -
revenue over the ation C of performance against the underlying | Chairof a Audit, ESG, Remuneration and Strategic Advisory Committees £10,000
zg:if::;mance targets after the performance period has ended. Committee Nomination and Technology Management Committees -
Cumulative gross 10 Subjectto commercnal sensitivity, we intend to provide an overview of the Payments to past Directors
margin over the ion C 's of performance against the underlying Thv P 1 Directors during th
performance targets after the performance period has ended. ere were no payments to past Directors during the year.
period P for loss of office

It is expected that awards will be granted to Executive Directors in FY23 on the same basis as in prior years.
This means they are expected to be granted an award equivalent to a maximum of 100% of base salary, uplified
to reflect the payment by the recipient of Employer’s National Insurance Contributions. The awards will be subject

There were no payments for loss of office during the year.
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Directors’ share awards and long-term incentive awards

Shares under option

Shares under option

Name Plan name Award date at01/05/21 Granted Exercised Lapsed at 30/04/22 ‘Exercise price Vesting date Expiry date
Graham Cooley, CEO sop 14/08/18 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 £0.30 4:14/08/19 14/08/28
‘h: 14/08/20
- h: 14/08/21
sopt 24/10/19 307,500 - - - 307,500 £0.48 24/10/22 24/10/29
LTIP 22/10/20 100,912 - = - 100,912 £0.05 22/10/23 22/10/30
e 13/11/20 88,298 - = - 88,298 £0.05 13/11/22 13/11/30
LTip 16/12/21 - 121,310 - - 121,310 £0.05 16/12/24 16/12/31
Total 3,496,710 121,310 - - 3,618,020
Andy Allen, CFO sopt 14/08/18 666,667 - - - 666,667 £0.30 %:14/08/20 14/08/28
'h:14/08/21
sop! 24/10/19 47,250 - - = 47,250 £0.48 T 24/10/22 24/10/29
LTiP 22/10/20 52,478 = - e 52,478 £0.05 - 22/10/23 22/10/30
Lne 13/11/20 45,919 - - = 45,919 £0.05 13/11/22 13/11/30
e 16/12/21 - 86,650 - - 86,650 €0.05 16/12/24 16/12/31
Total 812,314 86,650 - - 898,964
Simon Bourne, CTO SOP* 14/08/18 1,166,667 - - - 1,166,667 £0.30 % 14/08/20 14/08/28
: ‘fy: 14/08/21
sop! 24/10/19 159,750 = - = 159,750 £0.48 24/10/22 24/10/29
Lre 22/10/20 77,530 - - -~ 77,530 £0.05 22/10/23 22/10/30
(1 13/11/20 67,839 - - - 67,839 £0.05 13/11/22 13/11/30
TP 16/12/21 - 86,650 - - 86,650 £0.05 16/12/24 16/12/31
Total 1,471,786 86,650 - - 1,558,436
Rachel Smith, Services Director Sop! 14/08/18 833,334 - - - 833334 €030 '5:14/08/20 14/08/28
:14/08/21
sop! 24/10/19 72,000 - - - 72,000 £0.48 24/10/22 24/10/29
LTIP 22/10/20 52,415 - - - 52415 £0.05 24/10/22 22/10/30
LTiP 13/11/20 45,863 - - - 45,863 £0.05 22/10/23 13/11/30
LTIP 16/12/21 - 66,431 - = 66,431 £0.05 13/11/22 16/12/31
Total 1,003,612 66,431 - - 1,070,043 16/12/24
1. S0P here are adopted in 2010, when our i . Unfike rd hy f the LTIP, they t subject
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Directors’ interests in shares of the Company

Currently, new issue shares are used to satisfy options granted under the terms of the SOP and the LTIP when they
are exercised.

Shares Options  Shareholding
be:::":""' h"::"‘: ent 2s : Executive Directors’ service contracts
ed a not percentage of . N " . . " N .
30 Apri1 2022 exerclsed  base salary’ Each Executive Director has a signed service contract that terminates on 12 months’ notice.
Executive Directors The Directors’ service contracts are available to view at the Company’s registered office and prior to each AGM at the
Graham Cooley, CEO 770,586? 3,000,000 672% | venue for the meeting.
Andy Allen, CFO 67,610’ 666,667 286%
Simon Bourne, CTO 93,9717 1,166,667 448% The contracts contain restrictive covenants for periods of up to six months post-employment relating to non-
Rachel Smith, Services Director 464,5467 833,334 427% compenhon and non-sohcntazzn of the Group’s cu:lomers suppliers and emp!m:ees and mdehnue!\:‘wnh resp;lc]t to
Non-Executive Directors |he Dlmcmr;n':]o:;‘w;a::;r:s;n; th::tr)g":h:eg '.:::I(de for the Group to own any intellectual property rights created by
Sir Roger Bone, Chair 286,236 N/A N/A ploy!
"i‘a"i" Green 64,319 N/A N/A | Each Executive Director’s service contract includes a right for the Group to terminate the agreement and make a
Jirgen Nowicki . - N/A N/A | payment of base salary in lieu of the notice period. There are no contractual rights to additional compensation
Tom Rae? N/A N/A N/A at termination.
Katherine Roe 12,659 N/A N/A
Advisors to the Committee

1. Base satary is a3 a1 30 Aprit 2022. Shares are valued as foflows: During the year, the Remuneration Committee was supported by Ernst & Young LLP. Ernst & Young LLP received fees

:g:;;n:rl.:::m bc.mﬂmuyw".;a arevalued at the pr:f:::mlgu(hcywcmuquﬂed o thedateof . o of £26,000 in connection with its advice to the Remuneration Committee. Ernst & Ycung LLP also provided legal

or L v they are i iclally and valued at the share price advice to the Group regarding the operation of its share plans. The R ation C reviewed Ernst & Young
onthe date cise,

2 Includes shares :::m the BAYE, Each Executive Directar pardcipates Inthe BAYE, Asat 30 Anrl) 2022, ach o them hekd 852 shares they had purchased and 852 | - LLP's performance during the year and agreed to retain Ernst & Young LLP as its advisor.

matching sh: y the Company. trust unil a request is recelved to withdsaw them or

1ticipant leaves the Group's e . Matching shai forfeited toaves or wi T g i i i

sdamin‘:.hnmevearsolLhemaxcm:‘:gya"r:nbcm ,‘m’.}’,é., :‘:::;.:',:“m,']mm“.,wmmﬂm ° The Remuneration Committee also receives advice from the Company Secretary.
3. Tom Rae resigned effective 16 Novernber 2021,
4. Denlse Cockrem was appointed effective 25 July 2021, Where to find additional disclosures
Dilution Disclosure Location
SOP and LTIP awards can be satisfied using new issue shares, shares held in treasury or market purchase shares. The Attend. Y] ation Ci Meeting attendance table in the Corporate Governance
Remuneration Committee reviews the dilution position of the Company prior lo granting share awards. Report on page 46

Detailed assumptions used in calculating the fair value Note 25 to the C idated Financial St

In line with best practice, the Remuneration Committee ensures that the number of new ordinary shares issued in
any 10-year period does not exceed 10% of the Company’s issued share capital under all the Company’s share plans
and does not exceed 5% under the SOP and the LTIP in aggregate.

of options
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The Directors of the Company present their report, together with the audited Ct

for Fy22. “

Financiat

Dividend

d Financial

This Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act. Additional information and
disclosures, as required by the Companies Act, are included elsewhere in this Annual Report and are incorporated
into this Directors’ Report by reference in the following table:

Disclosure Location Page(s)
Names of Directors during the year Board of Directors 411042
Review of likely future developments CEQ’s Review 8tol1
CFO's Review 12t014
Post-balance sheet events CFO's Review 14
. Note 33 to the C d Financial 105
Workforce engagement Our Stakeholders and Section 172(1) Statement 22
Sustainable Energy, Engineered Sustainably 281029
tnformation on the employment and training Sustainable Energy, Engineered Sustainably 29
of disabled people
Business relationships with suppliers, cuslomers Our Stakeholders and Section 172(1) Statement 181023
and others
GHG emissions Sustainable Energy, Engineered Sustainably 27
Corporate governance arrangements Corporate Governance Report . 441050
: Audit Committee Report : S1to 5S4
Remuneration Report 551067
Financial instruments and financial risk Note 30 to the C: li d Financial S 103t0 105
management
Related party transactions Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial Statements 105
Disclosure of information to the external auditor Directors’ Responsibilities Statement 70

The Directors do not recommend payment of a dividend.

Directors’ indemnity arrangements .

Qualifying third-party indemnities were in place throughout FY22, and remain in place as at the date of this Annual
Report. Under these indemnities, the Company has agreed to indemnify the Directors of the Company, to the extent
permitted by law, against losses and liabilities that may be incurred in executing the powers and duties of their office.

Political donations
The Group made no political donations or contributions during the year (2021: nil). It is our policy not to make political
donations or incur political expenditure.

Research and development (R&D)

Ouring the year the Group incurred core product research spend of £1.4 million {2021: £3.5 million), with a further
£7.0 miltion on development (2021: £1.5 million). The Group’s R&D is focused on achieving four main aims: (1) new
manufacturing processes for cost cutting and mass production; (2) improving cell efficiency; (3) improving stack life
and reducing degradation; and (4) scale up and product life cycle.

Domicile
The Company was incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act. It is registered at Companies House
under number 5059407.

Shares

Share capital

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Company’s share capital consists of 613,158,155 issued and fully paid
ordinary shares of 5 pence each. The shares are admitted to trading on AIM. Shares may be held in certificated or
uncertificated form. Further details of the Company’s issued share capital, including changes during the year, can be
found in Note 24 to the Ct lidated Financial S s on page 100.

Rights and obligations attaching to shares .

The rights and obligations attaching to the Company’s ordinary shares are contained in the Company’s Articles

of Association and the Companies Act. In summary:

—The ordinary shares allow holders to receive dividends and to exercise one vote on a poll per ordinary share
for every holder present in person or by proxy at general meetings of the Company

—Shares held in treasury are not entilled to vote or receive dividends

There is no ownership ceiling.
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on transfer of : .
There are no restrictions on the transfer or sale of ordinary shares and no requirements for prior approvat of any
transfers, except: . .
~Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors have the power to suspend voting rights and the
right to receive dividends in respect of ordinary shares and to refuse to register a transfer of ordinary shares in
circumstances where the holder of those shares fails to comply with a notice issued under section 793 of the
Companies Act
~The Directors also have the power to refuse to register any transfer of certificated shares that does not satisfy the
conditions set out in the Articles of Association

The Company is not aware of any agreements between shareholders that might result in the restriction of transfer
or voting rights in relation to the shares held by such shareholders.

Employee share schemes

Shares issued under the Company’s employee share schemes rank pari passu with the existing shares of the
Company. Voting rights attached to shares held on trust on behalf of participants in the BAYE are exercised by
the trustee as directed by the participants.

Significant shareholdings
Notification has been received of the following i of signifi sharehold
in the issued share capital of the Company:

that equal or exceed a 3% interest

At 30 April 2022 At 14 September 2022
Number of Number of

ordinary % of issued ordinary % of Issued
Investor shares share capital shares share capital
Linde UK Holdings No.2 Limited 100,000,000 * 16.31% 100,000,000 16.31%
JCB Research 48,485,764 7.91% 42,823,778 6.98%
Hargreaves Lansdown 33,556,979 ~5.47% 34,415,268 5.61%
DWP Bank 28,019,927 4.57% 34,325,117 5.50%
Mr Peter Hargreaves .27,686,070 4.52% 27,686,070 4.52%
Capital Group 21,983,340 3.59% N/A <3%
Interactive Investor Trading N/A . <3% 19,553,928 3.19%
Fidelity 19,296,154 3.15% N/A <3%

The Directors have been notified that 16.61% of |hé sharés in issue were not in public hands as at 30 April 2022 and
16.62% of the shares in issue are not in public hands as at the date of this Annual Report.

Share buy-backs

The Directors have not sought authority to buy-back the Company’s shares and the Company has not purchased any
of its own shares. No shares are held in treasury.

External auditor
Grant Tharnton UK LLP has expressed its willingness to continue in office as auditor. The Directors intend to .
recommend a resolution to reappoint Grant Thornton UK LLP at the Company’s next Annual General Meeling,

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:
Andy Allén

Chief Financial Officer
14 September 2022
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Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement

The Directors are responsibie for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations. Company taw requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financiat
year. Under that law, the Directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards and with the requirements of the C ies Act as I 1o comp:
reporting under those standards. They have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards
and applicable law), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs and profit or loss of the Company and the Group for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

- Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

~Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

~State whether applicable international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies
Act have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements

—Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company
and/or Group will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s and the Group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are also responsible for the maintenance and intégritv of the corporate and financial information -
included on the Group’s website.

Legislation, regulation and practice in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. -

The Directors, whose names and functions are set out on pages 41 to 42, confirm that:

-So far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group’s external auditor
is unaware

—The Directors have each taken all the steps they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s auditor is aware of that information

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:
Andy Allen

Chief Financial Officer
14 September 2022
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Ir{depender;i auditor’s répo'rt to the members of ITM Power PLC.

Opinion
Qur opinion on the financial statements is unmodified.

We have audited the financlal statements of ITM Power PLC (the ‘parent company’} and its subsidiaries {the ‘group’) for the year
ended 30 April 2022 which comprise the C income and Other Compi 1sive Income, C idated Balance
Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, Ct Cash Flow Company of Changes in Equity,
Company Balance Sheet and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financiat
reporting framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law and UK-adopted
International accounting standards. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent

pany financial i law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard
101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

tn our opinion:

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 April 2022
and of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

- the group financial statements have been properly prepared in acs ith UK-adopted i

- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinian
We c our audit in with on Auditing (UK} {ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
ibilities under those are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial

statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethicat
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial smemems in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to
listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical ities in with these il We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relaﬂng to going concern
We are " e ding on the appr of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evrdence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the group’s and the parent company’s abifity to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the group or the parent company to Cease to continue as a going concern.

Our evaluation of the directors” assessmem of the group’s and the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of ing included ‘s base case and sensitised cashflow forecasts to 30 September 2023, along with

challenge and assessment of the inputs into the forecasts.

Management’s going concern assessment is based on the expected costs compared to the cash held. We evaluated management’s
reverse stress test to check the extent of required to elimi all in the base forecast, as well as the available
mitigations to avoid such a scenario accurring. We inspected capital and lease commitments entered into and costs expected to be
incurred to check that these have been appropriately incorporated into the forecasts and that there was sufficient cash in hand to
cover these costs for the going concern period.

We assessed the projected cash flows in management’s forecasts for the going concern assessment period by reference Lo our
expectations formed from the audit work performed on contracts and by comparing forecast cash costs to those incurred in
previous years. We have confirmed the cash held by the group at 30 April 2022 and compared this to the cash requirements
indicated in management’s forecasts, noting that the balance held is significantly higher than forecasted costs.

1n our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks associated with the group’s and the parent
company’s business model including effects arising from macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19, we assessed and

the of made by the directors and the related disclosures and analysed how those risks might
affect the group’s and the parent company's financial resources or ability o continue operanons over the going concern period.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
or coltecty may cast signi doubt on the group’s and the parent company’s ability to continue as a golng concern
for a period of at least twelve months !ro!n when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing Lhe financial statements, we have cont!uded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
ion of the financial is

The responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the ‘Responsibilities of directors for the financial
statements’ section of this report.
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independent auditor’s report to the members of ITM-Power PLC continued*

Our approach to the audit

@ GrantThornton

Materiality

Scoping

Overview of our audit approach

Overall materiality:

_ Group: £2,335,000, which represents 5% of the group's loss
before tax.
Parent £2,100,000, which 0.4%afthe

parent company’s total assets.

Key audit matters for the group were identified as:

- thapproptiata recognition of revenue — Same as pravious year;

- ion of the foss iston in relation to
contract accounting - Same as previous year

No additional key audit matters were identified in respect of the
parent company.

Qur auditor’s report for the year ended 30 April 2021 indluded
one key audit matter that has not been reported as a key audit
matter in our current year’s report. Inappropriate recognition
of grant income is no longer considered a key audit matter, as
the level of grant income recognised in the current period

has reduced.

Scoping has been

Key audit matters
Xey audit matiers are those matters that, in our professional
were of most signifi in our audit of the

financiat statements of the current period and include the most
significant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or
not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included
thosa that had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy;
the aflocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts
of the engagement team, These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Description

Disclosures

Audit response

Key observations/
Our results

inthe graph below, we have presented the key audit matters, significant fisks and other risks relevant to the audit.

of the group significant risks, and key financial line
items, The coverage of key financial statement line tems
i as il .

~ Revenue 95% {2021: 98%)
- Loss before 13k 93%{2021: 94%)

Incomplete

High Going . )
concern Inventory and recognition
work in progress of the loss
provision
Parent only - ' in relation
investments to contract
accounting
Potential .
amanclal] Trade and grant . Inappropriate
Other . : . Management recognition
Impact provisions :::mge of of revenue
Grant
income
e Share based
payments.
Low '
Llow Extent of management judgement High

@ Key audit matter @ Significant risk ® Other risk



74 ITMPower PLC Annuat Report 2022

' Independent auditor’s repart to the members of ITM Power PLC continued

Key Audit Matter — Group

Overview  Strategic Report

How our scope addressed the matter — Group

Key Audit Matter - Group

How our scope addressed the matter — Group

Inappropriate recognition of revenue
We identified the inctusion of fraudulent transactions within
revenue, including completeness of deferred i income, as one of

In responding to the key audit matter, we performed the

following audit procedures:

~ Assessed whether the group’s accounting policies for revenue
from are in accordance with the financial reporting

the most significant assessed risks of material

Revenue recorded in the financial statements is £5,627,000
{2021: £4,275,000}. ‘

There is a significant risk of fraudulent reporting due to the
- judgemental nature of assessing revenue recognised, using the
‘over time’ principtes in IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’ (JFRS 15) and the motivation to meet market
expectations. Management's assessment includes a number
of estimates:
- Estimated total contract costs;
~ Estimated stage of completion derived from the total contact
costs; and
~ Forecasted margin which is also derived from tota!
contract costs.

Relevant disclosures in the Annual Report and Accounts 2022
- Financial statements: Note S, Revenue, Operating Sesmen\s &
Income from Government Grants.

framework, IFRS 15;

- Tested a sample of contracts to original signed agreements;

- Performed procedures over management’s contract forecast
models, testing mathematical accuracy and agreeing amounts
and terms to underlying contracts;

- For a sample of contracts, recalculated revenue recognised
over time using the input method of costs incurred to date as
a percentage of forecast costs;

- Challenged management’s estimate of total expected costs to
assess whether revenue had been properly recognised. We
did this by comparing costs expected with post year end
results and testing a sample of forecasted costs to supporting
evidence such as purchase orders and supplier quotations;

- Made enquires of the individual project managers to obtain
an understanding of their process for estimating cost to
complete. This was compared to the current progress of the
contract.  +

- For deferred contract income, using the sample selected
through our revenue testing, we confirmed that there was a
deferred income balance based on contractual terms,
recalculated the deferred income balance and agreed inputs
to supporting documentation, such as invoices raised and
cash received; and

~ For performance obligations recognised at a point in time, we
tested a sample to evidence of completion of those
performance obligations.

Qur results
Based on our audit work addressing the risk of improper

, recognition of revenue, we are satisfied that the assumptions

- Financial statements: Note 4, Critical
and key sources of estimation uncertainty

made by ine revenue were appropriate
and in accordance with, the financial reporting framework,
including IFRS 15, and we did not identify any material
misstatements in the revenue recognised.

in relation to

of the loss
contract accounting
We identified incomplete recognition of the loss provislon in

in responding to the key audit matter, we performed the
following audit procedures:

- Obla!ned management’s schedule of contract loss provisions;
- ied on-going at the year end where no loss

relation to contract accounting as one of the most si
assessed risks of material misstatement due to error. This is
because of the judgement needed to assess the contract
provisions.

The contract loss provision provided in the financial statements
Is £12,493,000 {2021: £4,820,000).

The majority of contracts that TM Power have entered into
have been loss making. There Is a significant level of judgment
in calculating future expected costs on the contracts as the
contracts have been bespoke in nature. The impact of incorrect
assessment of these costs is the potential for immediate

provision was recognised and challenged whether this was
appropriate by testing material costs to complete and
comparing to contracted revenue amounts;

— Made enquiries of the specific project managers to obtain an
understanding of their process and methods of estimating
costs to complete. We looked for indicators of managemenl
bias in their ions and d based
on prior experience to historic data;

~ Obtained post year end schedules for total expected costs to
identify whether the costs used in assessing contract fosses
were appropriate. We did this by assessing if the forecast
costs to wmplete had increased sngmﬁcantly and where they

recognition of future losses. As these are typically multi-y
projects, the estimate around forecasting losses is sensitive and
has the potential for material error.

Relevant disclosures in the Annuol Report and Accounts 2022

- Financial statements: Note 22, Provisions

- Financial statements: Note 4, Critical accounting judgements
and key sources of estimation uncertainty

did, corrob B for the
changes;

-~ Compared the total expected costs by contract from the year
endto rhe prevnous vear end and to costs incurred post year
end, for in order to test
the historical accuracy of forecasting;

- Obtained supporting evidence, such as purchase orders and
supplier quotations for a sample of forecast costs to
complete; and

~ Assessed and challenged the appropriateness of the financiat
statement disclosures.

Key observations
‘When assessing contract costs incurred post year end, we
identified a number of contracts where additionat costs had
been incurred which had not been included In the forecasts.

Iy recalculated the forecast contract
costs and the resulting loss provision.

Based on our audit work addressing the risk of incomplete
recognition of the loss provision, we are satisfied that
assumptions made by management in recording the foss
provision are appropriate, and its recognition is in accordance
with the financial reporting framework, including 1AS 37
‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’

and IFRS 15.

No key audit matters were identified in respect of the parent company.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of ITM Power PLC continued

Our application of materiality

Materiality measure

Group

Parent company

we apply o1 the audit, and ing the effect of identified Specifie materiaiity i aneor Classes of Uansactions, account
ifany, on the financial statement: the opinion In the balances or disclosures for which flesser iality for ¢
auditor's report. h o
decislons is of th i
Materiality was determined as follows:
i Tevel of speaiic We determined a lower level of specific
Materiality measure Group » Porent company _ - materiality for Related party transactions y for Related party transactions and
7 n and di 2 i
o
decisions of inanci we the a 3 porti justed dif audit committee.
nature, timing and extent of our audit work. misstatements to the audit
committee
Wateriaiity threshold £2,335,000, whichis 5% of loss before tax. _ £2,100,000, which s 0.4% of total assets.
£117,000and below that d
In detef v, we made the in our view, , in our view, warrant reporting on

Significant judgements made
by auditor in determining

following significant judgements:

following significant judgements:
- Identifying the primary abjective of the parent

on qualitative grounds.

qualtative grounds.

ootential

matesiafity ~ The shareholder perception that the value
ofthe group 2 company,
of the i i iality interacts with our
value that can be derived from these financing to use hmark;
assels; and and :
~ Materiaiityfor the current year is higher - Materiality for the current vear is higher than ~ Overall materiality —parent compam
than the level that we determined for the the level that we determined for the year Overall materiality - Group verall materiality - Parent company
year ended 30 A ended 30 April 2021 to reflect the increasein
increase in absolute foss reasedin 2022, assets held at 30 April 2022.
- Loss before taw: Total assets:
We set the financial
e set per e £46.7m £506.0m
of our testing aggregateof he financial

statements as a whole.

Performance mate; £1,400,000, which Is 60% of financia) £1,260,000, which s 60% of financial statement
threshold statement materiallty. materiaiity.

Significant j iality, we we
by auditor i i judgements:  made the following significant judgements:

performance materi

- Our exp auditing the financial

financial statements of the group,
adjustments have not been made to the
‘group’s financlal statements in prior years.

ot been made to the company's financial
statements in prior vears.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of ITM Power PLC continued

An overview of the scope of our audit
We performed a risk-based audit that requires an understanding of the group’s and the parent company’s busmess and in particular
matters related to:

the group, its and their group-wide controls
- the engagement team obtained an understanding of the group and its enviranment, including group-wide :nnuols and assessed
the risks of material misstatement at the group level; and
- the engagement team obtained an g of the effect of the g structure on the scope of the audit,
for example, the level of centralisation of the group control function and lhe use of service organisations,

Identifylng significant components

—the team the identified ol to assess their sij and the planned audit
response based on a measure of materiality. Significance was determined as a percentage of the group’s revenue and loss before
tax and qualitative factors, such as component’s specific nature or circumstances.

howit

Type of work to be performed on financlal information of parent and other the key
audit motters)
- the key audit matters identified in the key audit matter section of our audit report were addressed with the audit of the swuﬁcam

scoped locations. There were no key audit matters that related individually to the parent company, ITM Power PLC.

No. of % coverage
Audt approach components revenue
Audit of component financial information 2 3 88

% coverage loss.
before tax

Audit of specific financial statement line items. 7 22 g
Analytical procedures 3 5 3
Total 7 100 100
Performance of our oudit

- for the audit of specifical financial statement tine items, specific procedures were primarily desfgned to audit the key audit matters
but additional procedures were performed on cash balances and operating costs as well, depending on the quantum of these items;
and

— the primary team performed audit procedures across all components in line with the approach described. There were no
component teams engaged to support the primary team.

Changes in approach from previous period
— there is an additional component compared to last year as ITM Power PLC set up a new subsidiary in the year, which was partially
disposed in March 2022. This component has been included in the table above as an audit of specific financial statement fine items.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other i The other it the infi included In the Annuat
Report, other than the financlal statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Qur oplmon on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider.
whether the other i ion is materially i il with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such materlal inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we
are required to determine vshether there is a material misstatement in the financlal or a material mi of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Our opinion on other matters prescribed by the C Act 2006 is dified

in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the strategic report and the directars’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements,

Matter on which we are required to report under the Companies Act 2006
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to

you if, in our oplnion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

- the parent company financia! are not in ags with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

~ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair vievs, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary t ble the ion of financlal that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or ercor.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.



77 ITM Power PLC Annual Report 2022 Overview  Strategic Report

Independent auditor’s report to the members of ITM Power PLC continued

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a hrgh level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As (UK) will always detect a material
when it exists, -an arise from fraud or error and are considered materialif, individually or in the
they could bly be d to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description of our reswnsubﬂines fo lhc audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s

website at: www.lrc.org. . This forms part of our auditor's report,

Explanation as to what extent the audit was pable of  froud

Irregularities, including fraud, are i of non-cs with laws and We design procedures in line with our
responsibilittes, outlined above, to detect material in respect of irr ies, including fraud. Owing to the inherent

limitatians of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that material misstatements in the financial statements may not be detected,
even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with ISAs {UK).

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below:

— We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the group and determined that the
most significant are those related to the reporting frameworks (UK-adopted international accounting standards, United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and the Companies Act 2006), as well as the relevant tax regulations, health and safety
law, employment law and data protection laws.

~We assessed the suscepnb'my anhe group’s financial to material including how fraud might occur, by

and opportunities for ion of the financial This included the evaluation
of the risk of managemenx override of controls, We determined that the principal risks were in relation to:
= Journal entries that i s or that ified costs from the income statement to the balance sheet;
- i biasin ining especially in relation to their assessment of the valuation of
intangible assets; .
= transactions with related parties.
- In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of:
- the entity’s operations, including me nature of its revenue sources, products and services and of its objectives and strategies to
the classes of tr , account balances, financial discl and business risks that may
result In risks of material misstatement;
- the applicable statutory provisions;
- the entity’s control environment, including the relevant legislation, rules and other reau!anons of the regulator, the procedures
for authorisation of transactions, internal review procedures over the entity’s it with regulatory requi

~ These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud or
error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from
error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting those that result from error, as
fraud may involve coliusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed
non-compliance with laws and regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financlal statements, the less likety we
would become aware of it. .

e and capabilities of thy team

- Engagement partner’s assessment of the appropriateness of the
including consideration of the engagement team’s:
- understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a sumxlar nature and complexity through appropnme
training and participation;
- knowledge of the industry in which the client operates;
- understanding of the legal and legulalorv requirements specific to the entity including:
—the isions of the appli
- the regulators rules and related guidance, including guidance issued by relevant authorities that interprets those rules
- the applicable statutory provisions
- Team communications in respect of potential non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud included the potential for fraud
in revenue recognition through manipulation of deferred income. This is also reported as a key audit matter in the key audit
matter section of our report where the matter is explained in more detail and the specific procedures, we performed in response
to the key audit matter are described in more detail. .

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than lhe company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed. \Aﬂ

David White /\/\/"‘J—' W

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK tLP

Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Sheffield

14 September 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement and Other Com;;rehensive Income

2012 2021
Note £000 €000 €000 €000
Revenue 5,627 4,275
Direct costs. {29,109) {12,145)
Grant income against direct costs s - 1,356
Cost of sales (29,104} {10,789)
_Grossloss (23,077) (6,514}
Operating costs N
Research and development . (1,383) {3,489)
Production and engineering {7,931} {8.839)
Sales and marketing {1,920 (1,436)
Administration expenses {10,669) {7,404)
Expected credit loss 84 {165)
Other income - government grants S 560 1,190
Loss from operations 6 {44,736} (26,657)
Share of loss of assotiate companies and joint ventures 12 {10} {595)
Finance income 9 325 83
Finance costs 9 (532) (a79)
Loss on deemed disposal of subsidiary N 12 {1,7110) -
Loss before tax {46,663) (27.648)
Tax 10 (31) {49)
“Loss for the year - (46,694) (27,697)
Other total comprehensive income: .
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Foreig: rency ion di foreig (71) (78)
Net other total comprehensive income {n {78)
Total comprehensive loss for the year {46,765) (22.775)
Basic and diluted loss per share 11 (8.1p) {5.5p}

All results presented above are derived from continuing operations and are attributable to owners of the Company.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

2072

2021

Hote £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments in associate and joint venture N 12 1,662 259
Loan notes 13 1,548 -
Intangible assets R 14 9,081 3,269
Right of use assets 15 6,454 6,398
Property, plant and equipment 16 15,637 13,514
Financia) asset at amortised cast 30 1621 148
Yotal non-current assets 34,543 23,589
Current assets
Inventories 17 32,198 6,418
Trade and other receivables 19 25,542 22,981
Cash and cash equivalents 20 365,882 176,078
Total current assets 423,622 205,477
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables ’ 21 {34,296} (12,857)
Pravisions ' . p2) {15,207) (12,276)
Lease liability ) 2 (626) {204)
Total current liabilities {50,129) (25,337)
Net current assets > 373,493 180,140
Non-current liabillties
Lease liabllity 23 (6,522) (6,282)
Provisions ) 22 {6.561) -
Total non-current liabilities (13,083) {6,282)
Net assets 394,953 197,447
Equlty
Called up share capital 2 30,658 27,533
Share premium account 24 542,323 302,248
Merger reserve 2 {1,973) {1.973)
Foreign exchange reserve 24 12 83
Retained loss 24 {176,067) (130,444)

394,953 197,447

Total equity

The finanicial statemens of ITM Power PLC, registered number 05059407, were approved by the Board of Directors

and authorised for issfe on 14 September 2022. Signed on pehalf of the Board of Directors:

Andy Allen
Director




80 ITM Power PLC Annuat Report 2022 Overview  Strategic Report

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Calledup Share Forelgn

share premium Mesger exchange Retained Tozal
capital account reserve reserve toss equily
Director . . . Wote £000 000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At1May 2020 . 24 23,664 137,236 (1,973) 161 {103,342) 55,746
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares 24 3,869 165,012 - - - 168,881
Credit to equity for share-based payment - - - - - 595 595
Total Transactions with owners 3,869 165,012 - - 595 169,476
Loss for the year - - .- - (27,697} (27,697)
Other comprehensive loss : 24 - - - (78) - (78)
Total comprehensive loss - - - (78) (27,697} (22,775)
At 1 May 2021 24 27,533 302,248 {1.973) 83 {130.444) 197,847
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares - 24 3,125 240,075 - - - 243,200
Credit to equity for share-based payment ’ . - - - - 1,071 1,071
Tota) Transactions with owners . 3,125 240,075 - - 1,071 244271
Loss for the year - - - - (a6,694) {46,694)
Other comprehensive loss. . 24 - - - {n - (2]
Total comprehensive loss - - - ") (46,694) {46,765)
At 30 April 2022 24 30,658 542,323 {1,973) 12 (176,067) 394,953
1
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Consblidaied Cash Flow Statement

2022 2021
Note £000 £000
Net cash used in operating activities . 26 {38,155) {20,141)
Investing activities
in joint venture/: i 12 (1,838) {535)
Cashflows arising from loss of contro! of subsidiary (993) -
Loan notes {loan to joint venture) 13 {1,8989) -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment . . . {4,119) {14,422}
Capital Grants received against purchases of non-current assets 150 3,992
Proceeds on disposal of property, ptant and equipment 352 3
Payments for intangible assets (7,036} {1,524)
Interest received 3 304 83
Net cash used In investing activitfes {15,079) (12,403)
Financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital 250,000 173,835
Costs associated with equity raise ‘ (6,800) (4,954)
Payment of lease liabilities 27 (69) (156}
Net cash from financing activities 243,131 ‘168,725
Increase in cash and cash equivatents . 189,897 136,181
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 176,078 39,919
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes i (93) {22)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year ) 365,882 176,078
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial

1. General information

3. Significant accounting policies

ITM Power PLC i P Wales under the ies Act 2006. fi
28essemer Park, Sheffield, South Yorkshire 59 102. The nature of activities of the C: pled nd
arie the Group) are di i Report, with the requi f the Companies Act 2006
3 ption that i is and on the
the primary is the falr vatue of i d servi
2. Adoption of new and revised standards the price that would be received ta sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an orderly transaction between market
Iy eff ¥ t f ice s directly i i aluation

the fair f t

the asset or

I year, lied the foflowi to1FRSs issued by the
Board 1ASB) that are mandatorily: .
- Amendments to FRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 for Interest Rate Benchmark reform - phase 2 {effective for periods

the asset or liability at the measurement

date. Fair value

basis, except for share-based

beginning an or after 1 January 2021) paymer ithi 16RS ha el ‘but are ot fair
~ IFRS 16 Amendment for COVID-19 related Rent Concessions beyond 30 june 2021 {effective for periods beginni after lue, such 201 valueinuse in 145 36.
1 Aprit 2021)
in addition, for financi purposes, 11,2 0r 3based on
had L the entity i reporting period. ich the inputs to the | vable and the signi the inputs to the fair value measurement in
s entirety, which are described as follows:
yeteff - ~Level 1 i i the
Certai ¥ for 30 April 2022 reporting measurement date;
periods and have not y adopted by . onthe - Level 2 inputs, ather th d prices included within Leve! 1, that the asset or liabilty, either
entity or porting periods nor i directly or indirectly; and .
- IFRS 3 h Current {effective for periods beginning on or after - Leve! 3 Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or iabillty.
1 Janvary 2022)
- IAS 16 Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment ~Proceeds before Intended Use Current (effective for perlods beginning on | Basis of consolidation
i i (. v by the Company

or after 1 January 2022)

- 15 37 Amendments to Onerous Contracts ~ Cost of Ful
1January 2022)

~ Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020, affecting IFRS 1, IFRS , IFRS 16, IFRS 41 (effective for periods beglnning on or

'8 2 Contract (effective for periods beginning on or after

liles as Current or Non-Current (effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024)

- 1AS 1.and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policles from significant to material (effective for periods begin
on of after 1 January 2023}

~IAS8 i Accounting i after 1 January 2023)

~ 1AS 12 Deferred Tax related iies ar Singl for periods beginning on or after
1lanuary 2023)

tro

~ has power over the investee;
- Is expased, o has rights, to variable return from i
= has the abliity to use its power to affect its returns.

P
when the Company:

involvement with the investee; and

‘The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
maore of the three efements of control listed above.
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Notes to the C fidated Financial continued

3. Significant accounting policies continued

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it considers that it has power over the investee when

the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the selevant activities of the investee unilaterally, The Company

considers afl relevant facts and circumstances In assessing whether or not the Company's voting rights in an investee are sufficlent

to give it power, including:

~ the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

- potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company ceases
to have control of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the date the Company gains controf until the date when the Company ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or toss and each

of other compi income are to the owners of the Company. Total
income of the subsi

is attributed to the owners of the Company.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line
with the Group’s accounting policies.

Allintra-group assets and liabilities, equity, Income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between the members of the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Goling concern

The Directors have prepared a cash flow forecast for the period from the balance sheet date until 30 September 2023. This forecast
indicates that the Group would expect to remain cash positive without the requirement for further fund raising based on delivering
the existing pipeline, for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements.

By the end of the period analysed, the Group will still hotd significant cash reserves. This should give the business sufficient funds
to trade for the next 12 months if the business continues with its medium-term business plan.

The business remains in a development phase and continues in a cash outflow position, using funding generated from previous
fundraises. As such, this cash flow forecast has also been stress-tested. As a worst-case scenario, If all payments had to continue
as forecast while recelpts were not received at all, the business would remain cash positive for the full 12 months from the date
of approval of these financial statements.

The accounts have therefore been prepared on a going concern basis.

Revenue recognition

Product sales

ITM Power undertakes product sales of both whole systems and individual electrolyser units that involve manufacture followed by
varying degrees of installation and commissioning over a period of several months. Systems are usually guoted to an end user as a
single value but an intermediary may be quoted lor lndlvmual e|eclro)vser units. Both types of sale w-ll be splitinto agreed payment
milestones to facifitate cash flow. are i according to the ity of the items being provided.
Any ancillary requests, e.g. for training, will be treated as separate performance obligations if they can be separately identified and
measured and the revenue value is also quoted separately.

Under IFRS 15,2 performance obligation is satisfied over time if one of the following criteria is met:

a)the receives and the benefits provided by the seller’s performance as the seller performs;

b) the seller’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

) the seller’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the seller and the seller has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

on whether

Revenue from product sales, which do not meet the first two criteria, will

the product is standard or bespoke in reference to point (¢) above:

- Revenue from standard products will be recognised at point in time, only when the performance obligation has been fulfilled and
ownership of the goods has transferred, i.e, at the official handover of control of a working machine to the customer. This is due to
the “transferabifity’ of such products and their components up until handover, so the asset generated has an alternative use to the
Group up to the point of handover. In the meantime, income from progress billings and advances received from customers witl be
reflected In the batance sheet as contract liabilities (deferred income}. Costs incurred on projects to date will not be included in
lhe s(alement of comprehensive income but will be accumulated on the balance sheet as work in progress so long as they are

and only to cost of sales once the revenue apullcable to those costs can be recognised in the
atcuums Should costs exceed d revenues, a ision will be r d and the surplus costs expensed with
immediate effect;

- Bespoke contracts by their nature do not create an asset with an alternative use to the sefler; some have traceability requirements
attached to them that would prevent them being diver ted during production whilst others are simply bespoke to the customer’s
requirements and therefore would not meet the needs of, or be easily converted for use on, another project. There Is also an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date if the contract is terminated by the customer for reasons other
than ITM Power’s failure to perform as promised. Revenues for bespoke contracts will therefore be recognised over time
according to how much of the performance obligation has been satisfied. This is measured using the input method, comparing
the extent of inputs lowards satisfying the performance obligation with the expected total inputs required. Any changes in
expectation are reflected in the total inputs figure as lhey become known. The progress percentage obtalned is then applied to
the revenue with that performance obli view this as a much more reliable measure of progress
towards completion of the performance obligation than the output method as, despite contracting with milestone payments,
(hese 2re not reliable measures of progress or value to the customer but instead have been designed to aid cash flow. Any

between the ised and the mi billings will result in contract assets/liabilities {shown as
accrued or deferred income on the balance sheet).

be treated di y
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Notes to the C l Financial

3. Significant accounting policies continued
Toxation .
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax Is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantivety enacted by the balance sheet date. The resulting tax charge, where applicable, is shown within the tax line of the
income statement.

Research and tax credits are an accruals basis, and are reported in the income statement. By their
nature, they are similar to grant funding and are presented amongst other income.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tay. assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it Is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The carrying amount of deferred tax. assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liabifity Is setiled or the asset is realised.

. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity,

in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tay assets against current tax liabilitles, and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority, and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and fiabilities on a net basis.

Investment in assoclates and joint ventures

These are companies where ownership Is 50% or less but si is retained. Si influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operational policy decisions of the investee but is not control over those policles. Joint ventures will
allow for joint control as no one party has overall control, but where there is no control, the investment s referred to as an
associate. Both joint ventures and in i are for using the equity method.

The investment is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the investment entity, adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies of
the Group. When the Grougp’s share of losses of an investment exceeds the Group's interest In that entity, the Group discontinues
recognition of its share of further losses. iti losses are then ised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legat
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investment entity.

As per IAS 28, the investment will be subject to impairment review only with objective evidence of impairment from observable
data as a result of one or more events adversely impacting the expected future cash flows and where such impact can be reliably
estimated. Any such impairment will reduce the carrying value of the i and be ised i i In profit or loss to
the extent that it relates to the investment by the Group.

gains on between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in those entities. Where unrealised losses are eliminated, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment.

Intangible assets - software

Software purchased from external companies has been recognised at cost under the heading of intangible assets. Amortisation is

charged so as to write off the cost of assets over an estimated useful! life of three years (in-line with the Group policy for computer
i using the straight-line method. This is ri ised in inistratior

Internally-generoted intangible assets — research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred, except where the costs of
activities are consi for the of capitalisi costs.,

Aninternally-generated intangible asset arising fram the Group's product development is recognised only if all of the following

conditions can be demonstrated:

< the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it can be made avallable for use or sale;

~ the intention to complete the intangible asset to use or seltit;

- the availabifity of adequate technlcal, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset;

- an asset is created that can be separately identified for use or sale;

= itis probable that the asset created will generate future econamic benefits; and

= the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Once completed, Development Costs transfer into the category of Know-how. As these assets form the basis of the Group’s product
range (being the development of new processes, standard products or new product features that improve the capacity or efficiency
of the electrolysers) amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis in Research and development costs over their useful lives,
considered to be four years, in line with expected product life cycles. Each asset is assessed on an annua! basis to ensure that it still
meets the ¢riteria and will stiil contribute to the Group's products. If not, an impairment will be recognised. Where no internally-
generatedil ible asset can be 8! , penditure i ised as an expense in the period in whichitis incurred.
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3. significant accounting if an asset i reduced toits
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3. Significant accounting policies continued

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and on demand depaosits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Flnancial liabilitles

Financial habilities are obligations to pay cash or other financial assets and are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial iabilities are recorded initially at fair vatue, net of direct issue costs, and are
subsequently recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest-related charges recognised as an
expense in finance cost in the income statement. Finance charges are charged to the income statement on an accruals basis using
the eHective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the i lnsuumenl o lhe extent that they are not settled in the
period in which they arise, A financial liabllity is der ised only when the obti is guished, that is, when th i is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

Derivative financlal instruments

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk. These are not deemed
to be effective hedging instruments to be matched off against a refated asset or liability but rather as stand-alone financial assets or
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. Within the financial fore, this portfolio of contracts will be shown as
either an asset or liability on the balance sheet, with a corresponding gain or loss through the income statement, depending on how
the contractual rate of exchange compares with the year-end rate,

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset - and oblain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset - for a period of time in erchange for consideration. in this instance
the contract should be accounted as a lease.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease fiability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is recognised
at cost and is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method over the lease term.

The lease fiability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments and discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease or, if that rate cannot be determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate or best estimate of the same. The lease
liability continues to be measured at amartised cost using the effective interest method. Il is remeasured when there is a change in
the future lease payments. When the lease liability is in this way, a cor is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset.

The Group has efected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of less than 12 months and leases of low .
value assets. These largely relate to short-term rentals of equipment to undertake our field activities. The Group recognises the
lease payments associated with these leases, together with any property service charges and storage fees, as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term (see Note 6).

Provisions N
lsions are r d when th p has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and itis
prebabh that lhe Group will be required to settle that obligation, and that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of that

are at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect Is material,

Warrantles
Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legislation are recognised at the date of sale of the
relevant products, at the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s obligation.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-b: tocertain Equity- senled share-based payments are measured at
falr value at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity d share-based is in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate ol shares that will eventually vest.

d

The Group also recognises a provision for Employer’s National Insurance Contributions {NIC) that becomes payable on the exercise
of share options granted under the Group’s non-tax advantaged share plans, to the extent that the liability has not been transferred
to the employees. Where a liability Is due, the provision has been calculated using the Intrinsic value of the share option which is the
difference between the Group's share price at the balance sheet date and the evercise price. The actual amount of Employer’s NIC
that will be payable will be determined on the difference between the exercise price and Group's share price at the date of exercise.
For share options that have not vested, the provision for Employer’s NiC is calculated on the same basis and is accrued over the
vesting period.

For option grants prior to 2020, the Group has agreed that settlement of the Employer’s NIC liability arising on gains made on the
exercise of unapproved share options be capped at the exercise price of the options. Any excess liability for Employer’s MIC would be
recovered fram the option holder. For option grants from 2020, the employees have agreed to pay any Employer’s NIC liability that
is due on exercise of their options. As such a separate reimbursement asset is recognised for this recoverable amount.

Pension costs N
The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The amount charged to the income statement in respect of pension
costs is the contributions actually payable in the year. Differences between the contributions actually payable and those paid are
shown as accruals or prepayments in the consolidated balance sheet.
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4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the Oirectors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumpnons about the cavrvmg amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estit and are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results mavdvffer from these estimates.

The and are on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, of in the period of the revision and future periods
if the reviston affects both current and future periods.

Cllﬂcalludgemenls in applying the Group’s accounting policies

ing are the critical ji apart from those involving estimations {which are dealt with separatety below), that the
Dlrer.lors have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements,

Capitafisation of development costs

The Group undertakes 2 number of internal projects for the of gur core gy, the design of our standard
products and improved efficiencies around our business. Whilst these will be timebound and involve specific groups of staff, time
and costs can be tracked through our reporting and accounting systems. Management must decide at what point such efforts
become development work that will result in future economic benefits to the Group and thus, at which point they meet the criteria
for capitalisation. See Note 14.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Contract accounting, including consideration of contract balances and loss provisions

Management have assessed sales contracts in accordance with the 5-step principle laid out by IFRS 15 to confirm whether 3
contract should be recognised over time or at a point in time. Contract balances are reviewed to ensure that they reﬂea lhe status
of the project and that amounts remain recoverable. Rolling forecasts of costs to the per

malntained so that onerous contracts can be recognised and provided for at the point where costs are predicted to exceed the
expected income. Risk registers are also maintained and regular discussions with project managers highlight whether any further
provisions are required, e.g. for liquidated damages. See Notes 5 and 18.

Provisions
Note 22 gives details of the amounts currently recognised under lour different ies of
particularly considered the following:

have

Warranty pravisions are based on management's current best estimate of the potential costs involved in diagnosing and correcting
faults and the likelihood of such faults occurring within the first year (or duration of the warranty period) of operation of a unit.
These assumptians are built upon historical data of units in the field so are likely to be reviewed and revised as more information
becomes available wilh a higher quantity of machines in operation. If it becomes known that additional work i required, then the
provision Is immediately extended.

A provision for onerous contracts {contract losses} has been recognised in fine with the requirements of I1AS 37, given the expected
costs 1o complete legacy projects exceeding the headroom In contracted sales values. Cost forecasts produced by project managers
are monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that such potential losses are recognised immediately in the accounts. As quotes are
finalised with suppliers these estimates may fluctuate but the provision will be adjusted accordingly and ultimately used to offset
the future costs of the project as it nears completion. Furthermore, the Group uses software to track the risks and opportunities

of each project. This gives a noxential cost and risk rating for active risks and has been reviewed by management at year end to
determine if any additi ingency shoutd be r ised on projects. A analysis was performed on the current
provision and future forecasl costs, If form:asted costs were to increase by 10%, the provision would need toincrease by

£4.3 million (2021: £1.8 million}. .

Changes in accounting estimates

Useful asset lives .
The Directors have reconsidered the useful fives of the Group’s fixed asset categories to reflect a change in the Group's purchasing
habits over recent months. As plant and lab equipment is now being bought brand new, rather than second hand, this has resulted
ina change to the expected usefut lives of some categories of plant and equipment as follows:

New estimated useful fife

Categoty. Previous usclul ife

Labaratory and test equipment 4years Sto8years
Production plant and equipment 4years Sto8years
Computer equipment 3years R 3years
Office furniture and fittings 4years - 10years

4 years or the remainder of the lease term 10 years or lease term

Leasehold improvements

The change has been treated prospectively and has impacted profit and loss in the current periad to reduce losses by £499,000.

forinventory
With the increase in inventory and the move towards more standardised products, the Directors have reviewed and refined their
policy for the provision of stock obsolescence. Previously stock was assessed by Its age and usage in the business, writing it down by
60% if parts were over 12 months old but still being used on products or else by 100% if parts were over a year old and seemingly
not In use on products,

However, it is recognised that parts can now be held in the business for a number of reasons, not least the contractual requirements
of our warranty and aftersales provisions and this needed to be reflected in our treatment. In the current year therefore, stocked items
have been ified into four different categ those actively in use in our bills of material, those that can be used for product
development work, discontinued items that may not be part of active blills of material but still have demand through maintenance
and aftersales work on legacy equipment, and finally redundant parts. The first three categories still hold value for the business and
have been maintained at cost, whilst red: stock has d to be fully written down. The initial effect of this change was
not material In the current year. Going forward, this categorisation of stock will allow us to review our holdings to ensure that they
are sufficient to meet our contractual obligations, whilst also allowing us to refine the provision further, for example if the
discontinued category began to exceed our contractual obligations.
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5. Revenue, operating segments and income from government grants

An analysis of the Group's revenue, by major product (or customer group), is as follows:
-

Ali revenues are derived from continuing operations. An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: - o o
. 1
202 2071 . £000 £000
£000 7000 (000 Power-to-Gas 207 210
Revenue from product sales recognised over time ' 808 1,697 {of which product sales recognised over time £56,000)
Revenue from product sales recognised at a point in time 1,231 - Refuelling 1,704 38)
Consulting contracts recognised over time 2,948 2,108 {of which product sales recognised over time £245,000) *
Maintenance contracts recognised at a point in time " a3 112 Industrial 507 1,870
Fuel Sales 229 153 {of which product sales recognised over time £507,000}
Other (e.g. scrap sales) ! 368 205 Other . 3,209 2,233
in the C Income 5,627 4,275 Revenue in the Consolidated income Statement 5,627 4,275
Grant income shown against cost of sales - 1,356
Grant Income {claims made for projects) 7m 761 In the prior year, the negative sales revenue on refuelling was caused by the effects of foreign exchange as well as actual and
Other government grants {RED claims) P 289 s 404 forecast overruns (affecting stage of completion) on the product sale therein.
Other go 1 VID-19 furlough scheme] - : "
F vernment grants (CO! urlougt ] 2 The Other category contains a large consultancy project, involving design and FEED studies for larger scale product manufacture.
Other income — government grants 560 1,190
6,187 6,821 Geogrophical analysis
The United Kingdom is the Group's country of domicile but the Group also has subsidiary companies in the United States, Germany -
N NN . . o . - iled i ited Ki R have been generated as follows:
At 30 Apri] 2022, the aggregate amount of the transaction price © ining performance of build and Aulstralia. All non-current assets were domiciled in the United Kingdom or Germany. Revenues have F:{ s follows:
contracts was £42.0 million (2021: £16.7 million). The Group expects to recognise 73% of this within ane year, with the remaining 2023 2021
27% expected the following year. €000 £000
United Kingdom 3,359 2,505
Segment information Germany
1TM Power PLC is organised internally to report to the Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker, the Chief Executive Officer, . 1\ " . .
: y ognised over ti ,000] 770 1,966
on the financial and operational performance of the Group as a whole. The Group's Chief Operating Decislon Maker is ultimately {of which product sales recogn er time £563, )
ibte for entity-wide resource ion decisi ing performance on a Group-wide basis and any elenents within Rest °f Europe . . . .
itona ination of i from the in charge of the Group and Group financial information, {of which produict sales recognised over time £245,000) 26 {196)
United States 22 -
has p: identified three target markets for our products {P to-Gas, ing, and Industrial). Revenue Australia 1,230 -
reporting has begun to look at these three sectors to assess the commerciality of those sales. However, decisions for 5.627 2275
cannot be made by reference to these segments. The Group operates a single factory that builds units for use across all sectors. 4 4
It would be hard to assign overhead costs to particular product segments as builds all occur in that one facility and can run
concurrently. Similarly, fixed assets and suppliers’ batances cannot be assigned to the production of one specific segment. included in revenue are the following amounts, which each accounted for more than 10% of total revenue:
For overhead costs and net asset resources, therefore, decisions are taken on a group basis. Sort o
: : £000 £000
Customer A Industrial <10% 1,870
Customer B Other 2,840 2,027
Customer C Refuelling 673 -

Except where extended warranties have been purchased and treated as separate performance obligations for the purpose of IFRS 15

Revenue from tontracts with customers, warranty commitments are covered under Note 22 Provisions.
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6. Loss for the year

Whilst costs have been shown on the income statement by function within the Group, the following table shows costs grouped

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging / (crediting): by nature:
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) 386 (53} Direct costs.
Fair value gain on forward contracts N (136) - Materials 3,862 4,241
Fair value loss on Idan notes 344 - | tabour 4,303 707
Share-based payment charge {Note 25) 1,429 799 Other boughtin items. 17,738 6.987
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,628 1,576 Contract provisions 3,201 210
Depreciation of right of use assets 711 745 Yotal direct costs 29,104 12,145
Impairment of non-current assets - 1nm3
Amortisation of intangibles 849 274 Operating costs
Research and non-capitalised Development costs 1,383 3,489 Staff and employment costs 4,315 9,594
credit loss {trade ) 1 (3) | consultancy and consumables 11,225 5,666
(Reversal of) expected credit toss on prepaid suppliers {100} 168 Building overheads 2,564 1,650
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 173 Depreciation 2,340 2,321
Loss on disposal of Motive 1,710 - Amortisation 849 274
Rentals under short-term leases: Impairment - 1,713
= Land and buildings 58 8 Other 525 115
= Other equipment 219 142 | Yotal operating costs 21,818 21,333
Government grants receivable (560} {2,546)
Staff costs {Note 8) - 14,482 11,434 Calculation of Adjusted EBITDA
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 5,690 4,241 In reporting EBITDA, management use the metric of adjusted EBITDA, to better reflect underlying performance and remove the
Movement on aged stock provision 1,417 84S effect of the following items:

1027 2021
£009 £000
Loss from operations (44,736} {26,657)
Add back:
Depreciation 2340 231
Impslrment - 1,713
Amortisation 84y 274
Loss on disposal - 173
Fair value loss on loan notes 349 -
Share-based payment charge (Note 25} 1,429 799
{39,779) (21,377)

e
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7. Auditor’s remuneration More detail is provided for directors’ remuneration and share options within the Remuneration Report. No share options were
The following amounts were payable to the Group's auditor and have been charged within the loss before tax: exercised during the year, although four directors participate in these long-term incentive plans {2021: 4) and benefited from
exercises in the prior year.
2022 2021
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for £000 £000 Gains made by directors exercising share options in the prior year:
~The audit of the Company’s annual accounts 137 120 Typeofshare  Number of sharcs Market price at Gain made
- The audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation ’ 33 33 Ll aption sreched Exerclue orice date ol exerche L000
S8ourne EMI 123,596 67p - 283.05p 267.3
Total audit fees 179 153 SBourne Unapproved 276,404 67p 283.05p 597.9
Other services pursuant to legisiation SBourne &M 100,000 50p 283.050 2332
~ Interim agreed upon procedures/review work (audit related services} 55 13 SBourne Unapproved 250,000 27 283.05p 641.4
- Assurance fee on coyporate finance transaction 125 - $Bourne Unapproved 583,333 30p 283.05p 1,476.1
Total non-audit fees . 160 13_ | GCooley Unapproved 800,000 67p 283.05p 1,730.4
G Cooley " EMI 250,000 S0p 283.05p $82.6
8. Remuneration of directors and employees G Cooley Unapproved 750,000 27 283.05p 1,924.1
2022 2021 RSmith Unapproved 416,666 30p 283.05p 1,054.4
£000 oo | AAlen EMi 50,000 S5p - 283.05p 1143
Oirectors AAllen Unapproved 333,333 30p 283.05p 798.9
Fees/Basic salary plus bonuses earned in the year 1,576 1,436 - g
Pension contributians 7 55 Four directors also participate in the Group BAYE scheme {2021: 4) and receive matching shares, Three directors were members
Aggregate emoluments 1,647 1,491 of money purchase pension schemes during the year {2021: 3).
‘Other key management personnel N o5 T
Fees/Basic salary plus bonuses 116 = | Remuneration of the highest paid director €080 £000
Pension contributions 6 - Aggregate emoluments 472 500
Aggregate emoluments 122 - Money purchase pension contributions - -
Employer’s NIC 224 169 472 500
Share-based payment expense . 686 549
Total costs for directors and key management personnel 2,679 . 2,209
Salary figures detailed here are after salary e for pensions. C: the pension figures are employer contributions
inclusive of those salary exchange amounts.




N\
92 ITMPower PLC Annual Report 2022 Overview  Strategic Report Financial
.. A)
Notes to the C fidated Financial continued
8. Remuneration of directors and employees continued 10. Tax
Galns made by the highest paid director exercising share options in the year were £Nil (2021: £4.2 million).
7022 200
032 W £000 £000
Monthly average number of persons employed Number Nymber Current taxation
- Research and development 86 54 Tax charge in the year 31 25
- Prm?ucrion and engineering 184 13 Tax charge relating to prior years - 24
- Sales and marketing 20 13 31 49
- Administration 48 30
338 210 Corporation tax Is calculated at 19% (1021:‘]9%). Taxation for other jurisdictions is at the rates pi iling in the
jurisdictions.
2022 2021 .
Staff costs during the year {including directors) £090 £000_ | The charge for the year can be reconciled to the income statement as follows:
Wages and salaries 14,893 8,687
Soclal security costs . 1,694 1,988 ::;; égg,
g:he. :nsi:n costs 1,259 ;59 Loss before tax 146,663) (27,648)
are-based payment expense ) 1,429 99 Tax on loss ot 19% {2021 15%) {8,866) {5.253)
19,275 12,233 .
Less: staff costs capitalised in development casts (4,793) {1,430) Factors affecting {chargel/credit for the year:
Staff costs expensed in the year 14,482 10,803 not ible for tax purposes 332 204
Fived asset differences 485 1,510
As at 30 April 2022 pension contributions of £123,000 (2021: £72,000) due in respect of the current year had not been paid over Tax charge on current year RDEC claim 31 25
to the scheme. These were paid over in the following month and within statutory deadlines. Adjustments in respect of prior years - 24
9. Finance Income and costs Unrelieved tax losses carried forward 8,089 3.539
3 49

2022 2021
£000 €000 7000 €000
Finance income
Interest received on cash deposits 325 83
finance cost
Interest paid {a1) (60)
Lease liability interest paid (491) (419)
) (532) {479)
Net finance costs {207) {395)

Tax charge for the year

Factors affecting future tax chorges

The Group has tax losses of approximately £99.8 million (2021: £65.6 million) available to carry forward against future taxable
profits, subject to agreement with HM Revenue & Customs. Deferred tax would have been calculated at a rate of 25% following
substantive enactment in May 2021. However, a deferred tax asset has not been recognised so this change is immaterial to the

current financial statements.
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12. Investments in associates and joint ventures continued
Below we provide Information regarding the performance of the joint venture within the period:

2022
Motive Fuels Limited £000
Cost . -
Additions (fair value of net assets retained) 1,434
50% share of loss recogrised In the period 168

1,602

The above amounts relate to Motive Fuels Limited {Motive) which is incorporated in the UK, with registered office: AMP Technology
Centre, Brunel Way, Caicliffe, Rotherham, S60 SWG. Motive commenced trading from 1 May 2021 as a wholly-owned subsidiary,
However, in March 2022, Vito! Holding SARL matched our shareholding in the entity and interest in Motive therefore became split
50:50, with no single party having control. ITM Power has significant influence and joint control in Motive due to its equal
representation on the company’s board of directors and rights to the net assets.

The investment is therefore treated as a joint venture that is equity-accounted and subject to Impairment review. In the current
year, there were no triggers to warrant an impairment review. .

ey financial data of Motive (income statement Rigures shown are for the period since the transaction with Vitol when Motive was
trading as a joint venture):

30 Aprit 2022

. €000

Non-current assets - 1112
Current assets 7,864

Current liabilities (862)

Non-current liabllities {3,410)
Revenue 22
Profit from continuing operations ) 334

The Group has also recognised a loss of £1.7 million on the deemed disposal of 50% of the net assets of the former subsidiary and
including the cost of grofessicna! fees relating to the transaction.

ITM Power (Trading) Limited continues to pay for and recharge some of the overheads of Motive. This has resulted in charges of
£183,000 n the period, alt of which remained outstanding at the year end. it has also received payments from Motive’s customers.
{total £2,000) which have been shown as 2 liability (sitting within accruals) for repayment to Motive post-year end.

13. Loan notes
1TM Power PLC and Vitol also each granted loan notes to Motive Fuels Limited. These are accruing interest at 1.5% above SONIA,
Loans are granted for a period of 10 years without expectation of repayment for at least three full inancial years.

2022 2021
i £000 £000
Loan notes 1,548 -

As the interest rate takes into account the time value of money but not the potential credit risk, a fair value adjustment has been
made. The foan has also been subject to a provision for expected credit loss under IFRS 9 of £15,000.

Further cash injections are planned, equating to £30 million by each party over the next five years. These will be based on proposals
being subject to approval by both parties for new hydrog ing !
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16. Property, plant and equipment N 17. Inventorles
Production  Laboratory Assetsinthe 2022 2021
plant and andtest  Computer furaliuresnd  teasehold course of £000 £000
cqmpr(n&; Nu(mmeon‘; Eﬂum'(“;oﬂol "‘é'gno“; Imnlbvie"z%ﬂol‘; aonnm:g;; [1:;: Raw Materials 24’311 3,879
Cost at 1 May 2020 5,466 1,993 916 213 7,585 seas 22018 | Workinprogress 7,887 2539
Additions 893 309 376 244 7,463 5140 14,425 32,198 5418
Grantincome - = - - - (3.857) {3.857) ;
Transfers 1,657 - - - - {1,657) - inventories have been stated after a fori of aged-stock of £2.7 million (2021: £1.3 miliion). Stocks have
Disposals {a37) (45} {9) (135} {1,534) - (2,160) increased as we have ramped up production to meet demand and have taken on new sales contracts that refocus the business as a
, 3 ‘
Foreign Exchange - - - - - (84) (@) manufacturer.
Cost at 1 May 2021 7579 2,257 1,283 322 13,514 5387 30342 18. Contract balances and performance obligations
Additions 452 423 500 27 692 1,956 4,240 Contract revenue recognised through release from deferred income was £3.2 million {2021: £1.5 million).
Grantincome - - + - - - - 1022 2021
Transfer to Motive Fuels Limited {3,311} - {35) (23) - {a,021) (7,390) | Contracts with customers in progress at the bafance sheet date £000 €000
Disposals {393) @n 322) - {1,089) {1,675) (3,506) | Amounts due from contract customers included in trade and other receivables 2,897 5,727
Foreign Exchange {1) - [§V] - [$ VI - 3) Contract assets {accrued income) 1,189 873
Cost at 30 April 2022 4326 2,653 1,425 516 13,116 1,647 23,683 | Contract liabllities (deferred income) (17,258) 16,740)
Balance sheet position of sales contracts (13,172} {140)
Depreciation at 1 May 2020 4,997 1,674 747 197 3,507 4,394 15,516
Disposals {268} (44) 5) (126} {1,533) - (1,976) The contract position will change according to the number or size of contracts in progress at the year end as well as the status of
Charge for the year 325 191 140 39 881 - 1,576 payment milestones towards those contracts. The Group witl continue to structure payment milestones to cover the up-front costs
g of materials for cash flow purposes. The variance between these and the per ions for revenue re ition under
Impairment 841 - - - - 872 1,713
N : 4 IFRS 15 (typically acceptance of the product by the customer —at factory or 3t site — for all slandard products), will cause m:reasmg
Foreign Exchange S - - - - - (1) | values to remain In deferred income for longer as the Group move away from bespoke projects.
Depreciation at 1 May 2021 5,894 1,821 882 110 2,855 5,266 16,828
Disposals (393) 27 322) - {1,089} {1,675) {3,506}
Charge for the year 277 120 283 35 913 - 1,628
Transfer to Motive Fuels Limited {3,311) - (4 - - {3,591) 6,906}
Foreign Exchange 1 - 1 - . - - 2
Depreciation at 30 April 2022 2,468 1,914 840 145 2,679 - 8,046
Net book value at 30 April 2022 1,858 739 585 37 10,437 1,647 15,637
Net book value at 30 April 2021 1,685 436 401 212 10,659 121 13,514
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19. Trade and other receivables Trade recelvables are measured at amortised cost. Thelr ageing is analysed as folfows:
2022 2021 2022 2021
€000 €000 €000 £000 £000 £000
Amount receivable for the sale of goods 638 100 Less than 30 days 2,066 4,955
Amounts due from contract customers (Note 18) 2,897 5,432 31-60days 243 220
Impairment for credit risk {60) {59) 61-90 days - 245
Total trade receivables 3,475 5,473 Greater than 91 days 1226 12
Restricted cash balances 297 1,050 3535 $,532
Other receivables 2,459 503
Forward contracts 127 - i wn o1
Movement in expected credit loss £000 £000
R&D relief ctaims receivable 426 550 Brought forward balance at 1 May 59 62
Prepayments 11,972 6,526 | Impairment losses recognised ’ 17 -
A i from 2,186 3183 Movement on credit risk provision * (16) (3}
Accrued sales income ' 1,189 873 Balance at 30 April 60 59
Accrued grant income 3411 4,823
_ 25,542 22,981 Our payment terms with customers are generally 30 to 60 days so items falling beyond those terms are chased up and monitored

Prepayments include amounts paid up-front by way of pro forma and stage payments to suppliers for the long-lead time items
required on our build projects.

from l relates to the
cover this cost upon exercise.

‘s NIC on share options where, under the terms of the offer, staff will

Other receivables répresent indirect taxes reclaimable by the Group.

Restricted cash balances refer to monies received from customers that are currently sat on bank guarantee until specific
performance milestones are met on product sales contracts.

for potential default. A specific bad debt provision may arise.

The movement on the doubtful debts provision in the year related the IFRS 9 credit risk provision that recognises a potential loss of
1% on the company’s trade debtor and accrued sales income balances.

20. Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021
£000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 365,882 176,078

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The .
Directors consider that the carrying amount of these assets approyimates to their fair value. Cash has increased since the previous
year end due to the fund raise that took place in November 2021.
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21. Trade and other payables

Strategic Report [

continued

22. Provisions

2022 201 Employers’
£000 £000 Leasehold Provision Natonal
Tade poyabies a6 1131 [T L R .
Other taxation and social security N 726 511 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Forward contracts - 8 Balance at 1 May 2020 (750} {848) (3,645) - {1,647} {6.890)
Accruals . 3,323 2,112 Provision created in the year (584) (210) {2.574) {677) (3,871} {7.916)
Deferred Sales income 17,258 6,740 Use of the provision 140 252 1,399 - 560 2,351
Deferred Grant income 3,752 1,751 Release in the year 170 9 - - - 179
Grant income received against pro forma 521 544 Balance at 1 May 2021 (1,024) (797) {4,820) 677) (4,958) 112,276)
34,296 12,857 Provision created in the year 36) {2,163) (15,052) (1,330) - (18,581)
Use of the provision 206 18 7379 S09 - 8,112
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value. Release In the year - 4 - 168 805 977
Balance at 30 April 2022 {854) (2,938) (12,493) {1,330} {4,153) {21,768)
As discussed in Note 18, the increase in deferred sales income is due to the move away from bespoke projects where revenue is
recognised over time, to standard products with revenue recognition at point in time.
R In the balance sheet:
Overall, grant projects have reduced in number and deferred income against pro formas continues to reduce as those ongoing Expected within 12 months (current) - (3,145} (9,453) {456) {4,153) {15,207}
projects reach their conclusion. Expected aRer 12 months {non-current} (854) (1,793} (3.040) {874) - {6.561)

Thell hold property pi

‘s best estimate for the dilapidations work that may be required to return

our Ieased bulldmgs tothe Iandlords at the end of the lease term. During the year we vacated another property. In the prior year we

provision for

Parkata

quoted by our Employers Agent for stripping the work back to the original

at

from thy

discounting has stasted amortising in the current year and will continue over the remaining 13 years of the lease.

value. Thvs is for the present value of the cost of warks
dlords. The )

The warranty provision represents management’s best estimate of the Group's liability under warranties granted on products,

based on historical knowledge of the products and their components. As with any product warranty, there is an inherent

uncertainty around the likelihood and timing of a fault occurring that would trigger further work or part replacement. Warranties
are usually granted for a period of one year, although two-year warranties are the standard within some jurisdictions.



99 1TM Power PLC Annual Report 2022 Overview  Strategic Report

Notes to the G lidated Financial continued

22. Provisions continued
included within warranties is the cost of extensive refurbishment of a system due to extrame weather conditions. The effect of
removing this one unit from the provision would be:

23. Lease liabilities .
The following table describes the types of right of use asset owned by the Group and shows the movements on lease liabilities
within the year: .

Leasehold

Vdarranty Office Motor
£000 property  Eauipment Vehicles Total
Batance at 1 May 2020 (ass) | 2022 £000 £000 £000 £000
Provision created in the year (210) Br?ugh! forward at 1 May 2021 6,383 L 54 6,486
Use of the provision 20 Ad;\{s}ments 03 - ) 301
Release in the year ) g | Additions e Fuels Ui ::: 8 123 :2;;
Balance at 1 May 2021 1636) o Motive Fuels Limited {258) - - (258)
e . « | Interest applied 483 3 5 491
Provision created in the year (1,965) P " 167) ) 82 (560)
Use of the provision 18 avmenls‘ made
Release in the year a At 30 April 2022 . 7,006 a3 98 7,148
Batance at 30 April 2022 (2,579) so
- - plit:
The provision for contract fosses is created when it becomes known that a commercial contract has become onerous. Project Within 1 y-ear ) o 12 56 979
Managers provide rolling spend forecasts, updating these as quotes are obtained. The provision is therefore based an best 2:5 years (inclusive) 3,660 38 a7 3,745
estimates and information known at the time to ensure the losses are ised i diately through profit and loss. Over S years 5,913 - - 5913
.This provision will be used to offset the costs of the project as it reaches completion in future periods. Less:
Provision is ok de at the point whe oct f N nat the el for liquidated d 1ahtb Future finance charges {3,478) (6) (5) (3,489)
rovision is also made at the point when project forecasts suggest that the contractual clauses for liquidated damages might be Present value of Ioase obligations 7,006 @ r 7,148

triggered. The other provisions category relates to potential liquidated damages for overruns on contracts with customers. In the
prior year there was also a provision for contractual breach by a supplier. However, an agreement was reached in the current year
and the payment plan has been adhered to.

There is a provision for Employer’s NIC due on share options as they exercise (see share-based payment Note 25).

Inthe balance sheet:
Due within 12 months {current) 564 10 52 626
Due after 12 months {non-cusrent) 6,442 34 46 6,522
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23. Lease liabllities continued

24. Called up share capital and reserves

Leasehotd Office Motor Calied up, allotted and fully paid: {ordinary shares of Sp each) Number of shares 1000
201 e s IR oo | AtTmay 2028 550,658,155 27,533
Brought forward at 1 May 2020 6,492 _ £ 6,526 | fundraise November 2021 - 62,500,000 3.125
Adjustments 15 - 1 16 | At30April 2022 613,158,155 30,658
Additions - 48 52 100
Interest applied 454 - 1 455 Holders of ordinary shares have voting rights at General Meetings in proportion with their shareholding.
Payments made 573) @ 34) (611) The share premium account represents the amount paid in excess of the nominal value when shares are issued.
i U Ul Il Xt n il value wi 1 8
AL30April 2021 5,388 2 54 648 P P P
The merger reserve arose on the acquisition of ITM Power {Research) Limited in 2004.
Split:
Within 1 year 430 1n 30 a71 The foreign exchanse reserve arises upon consolidation of the foreign subsidiaries in the Group, and accounts for the difference
N N created by of the income at average rate comp with the year-end rate used on the balance sheet as well
2-5 years (inclusive) 3,169 41 27 3.237
as the effect of the change in exchange rates on opening and closing balances.
Over 5years 6,711 - - 6,711 .
Less: The Group's other reserve is retained earnings which represents cumulative profits or losses, net of any dividends paid and
Future finance charges (3.922) (8} (3) {3,933) other adjustments,
Present value of lease obligations 6,388 a8 54 6,486
in the balance sheet:
Due within 12 months {current) 168 8 28 204
Oue after 12 months (non-current} 6,220 36 26 6,282
refers to foreign and contracts that have changed their length of duration or their value during

the year, e.g. following a rent review or 3 change in decision regarding potential break clauses. In the current year, the latter situation
arose at one of the properties where we had previously intended it to be a stop-gap measure so had only recognised up to the break
clause but have since decided to continue in residence.

The interest charge appears with other interest at the bottom of the income statemnent and is the only value described above that
affects profit or loss. Each liability is matched by a corresponding right of use asset, upon which depreciation is also charged to the
income statement (see Note 15). The two amounts together replace the previous accounting treatment of expensing rentals
payments.

Total lease payments for capitalised leases and short-term leases was £816,000 {2021: £762,000).
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25. Share-based payments ¥ i ding the EMI, unapproved and LTIP options} were as follows:
i i portunity Gt a
proprietary in the Group as an ir i it services as follows: 2022 2000
= An afl-employee Share Incentive Plan {referred to as the Buy As You Earn or BAYE scheme):
—An pris Option Plan, 1 be granted
share options; and Number Number
- AlongTe opt ding at the beginning of the year 7,501,854 10,486,500
Granted during the year 1,431,837 1275172
Share incentive Plan Exercised during the - -
. . year (4,183,333)
InFY21, the Comp: w Share {the BAYE schem: hich JX Group
empl ) . Py o . which aliotted Explred during the year 3235711) Sp (76,485)
monthly. awarding Outstanding at the end of the year 8,610,120 28p 7,501,854
Exercisable at the end of the year 5,666,667 30p 3,333,333
At 30 April 2022 the SIP held 102,1: Power PLC, of which 99,122 have been conditionally
awarded to employees and 3,017 remain unallocated. . 30 Apeil 2022 had o weighted price of 24p and
Ilife of f
€161, this scheme In 2022 (2021: £75,000]. contractual e of four years.
The fair value of hons i 1o optior i d
 Schotes model a5 opti i ons and 0% based
In 2010 the Ce an EMland Plan to by lied issues .. This is  change from our i prior yi
Under price of London Stock Exchange AIM the Monte Car d in the prior year were subject solely 102 TSR performance
market at the close of grant of i aperiod of three to five ' model, Wh include 3 TSR
i the i . The last of th ised in the prior RS 2 S enodel ? 0 "
l rute ised i oth pre- and post-vesting, being achieved of the Monte C: for i the
e forfeited. In the event a participant leaves as a result of a qualifying reason, they unexercised “ 8 !
but forfeit unvested share options. .
. The assumptions used in the models are as follows:
The Option Pl " 2020, ise price for awards P! "
granted the nori hares. . subject i of Welghted i) 2001
conditions set at grant, over a period of 3 isable up iversary of the grant. f o Share price. a5.4p 356p
o » "
b s prior ta vesting will be forfeted. i the eventa partcipant fesves 353 15U | ¢ ercie price > %
: Expected volatility 89.5% B4.7%
b Expected ife 3years 3years
Risk-free rate 0.5% -0.06%
. usedin the madel 's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferabity,
o s best est s of m ¢
3
the Company a period term of the options.

ting period.

par i i the
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25. Share-based payments continued
The Group has recognised a share-based payment expense in the income statement for the year, made up of three

27. Net cash reconciliation

7022 2621

£000 £000

Share-based payment expense {as seen through equity) 1,071 595
Purchase of partnership shares under the BAYE scheme 200 75
Provision for Employers’ NIC on potential gain 161 129
1,432 799

For options granted prior 10 2020, the Group has elected to pay Emplover’s NIC on gains made on unapproved share options
exercise, to be capped at the proceeds the Group would receive from the exercise. Any further Employer’s NIC would be recovered
from the exercising party. For options granted from 2020, the Group have agreed to transfer the full Employer’s NiC liability to the
employee share option holders.

26. Notes to the cash flow statement

Lease

tablities Cash 10231

£000 £000 £600

Net debt as at 3 May 2020 (6,526) 39,919 33,393
Adjusted {16) - (16)
Cash flows | 611 136,181 136,792
Acquisition - leases {100) - (100)
Other changes - Interest expense {455) {22) (477)

Net {debt)/cash as at 1 May 2021 (6,486) 176,078 169,592
Adjusted (302) - (302)

Cash flows 552 189,897 190,443
Acquisition - leases (a36) - (436)
Other changes ~ interest expense (a76) {93) (569)

fcash as at 30 April 2022 {7,148) 365,882 358,734

2022 2021

£000 €000
Loss from operations {a4,736) (26,657) | 28, Capital commitments
Adjustments: The Group had capl(alcommﬂmems of £0 6 mllhon at lhe balance sheet date (2021: £1.1 million). There was also 3 further
Depreciation 2.340 2321 £1.9 million of costs 8 5! qf p to Motive as part of the shareholders agreement for the

" g joint venture.
Share-based payment 1,071 595 !
Foreign onl tr (a3} - | 29.Contingent liability .
Fair value adjustment and expected credit ioss on loan notes 359 - Receipt of government grants
Loss on disposal . - 173 The Group participates in a aumber of grant funded projects. Income is recognised in the accounts as receivable based on the grant
Impairment - 1712 contract and the levels of expenditure incurred on the project. Itis clalmed periodically according to a timetable laid down by each
A - g coordmamr The claims are audited before any money is awarded. However, grants are ultimately funded by government or EU

mortisation 849 7 and can be subject to further scrutiny at later dates. This leaves grant income in the accounts subject to potentiat recall.

Operating cash flows before movements in working capita! : (40,160) (21,582)
{Increase) in inventories (25,780) {1,987) Management do not know which grants will be subject to such audit nor the time that they are likely to arise and as such woutd be
{Increase)/decrease in receivables {2,550) 185 | unable to quantily the potential financial impact of any subsequent recall of funds. To the best of their knowledge, claims are made
Increase/{decrease) in payables 21,037 (1,156)" for expenditure agreed ahead of any project undertaking and in accordance with grant procedure.
increase in provisions 9,492 4,857
Cash used in operations (37,561) (19,683}
Interest paid (532) {479)

Income taxes {pald)/received {62) 21

Net cash used in operating activities {38,155) {20,141)
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30. Financial Instruments o o
Capltal isk monagement . €0 £000
The current capital i ject cash pay 8716 1191
management expectations. Aceruals 332 2112
- Lease fabiites 708 6486
The Group ba iz , euros and with natural hed; for most case
inder revie Torot A i 1o Cophal 19,186 5,789
The capital ha: (he fast year for the Group. Larger T ing aining »
through the fund raise have led management to put some of the funds on fy it to g i 3 repayment periods. based on the
150 been spl i ing Given the COVID-19 situati ing volumes of raw materials | earliest date on which the Group can be required to nay.
i our credit checks have been performed and bank om
1p-fi ‘Within 1.5 years Over Totalnet
o) Sy povble
Iy i ed " " 2022 £000 £000 £000
Externally imposed copltol equbiement ith . ~Trade and other payables - - 1o
8 the ve: 3 9 ¥ y Lease labilties 3745 5913 10637
Categories of financlol Instruments 13,017 3,745 5913 22,675
iz Tom
ised cost o0 o0 = —
Financial asset at amort 161 148 et S et
Long-term foan notes 1,548 - | 202 £000 €000
Trade receivables (excluding IFRS 9 impairment) . 3,534 5532 Trade and other payables X - - 3,303
Resuricted cash balances 297 1050 | tease fabiliies 473 3w 671 10420
Other receivables 2459 455 P 377 3% 6711 1373
Accrued Sales income 1189 sa1
Accrued Grantincome san 4823
12,59 12549

. The latter refates to

inder non-

ity deposit on our leasahold property at Bessemar Park. The res
by ! Sesserme

in
f the Group's financial assets consist of cash and
areincluded as

astrong credit history.

that will result in inflows. ITM Power PLC do not consider there

financial 3 hey rel

to be undue risk associated with receivables.
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30. Financlal instruments continued

Falr value through profit and loss

in both years, the Group held foreign currency forward contracts that were measured at fair value through profit or ioss. The figures
shown in Notes 19 and 21 represent the difference between their contract value and the exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
These financial instrurnents would sit within Level 2 of a fair value hierarchy, being derived from other inputs - other than quoted
prices in active markets - that are observable. However, as they are the only financial instruments measured at {air value, no fair
value hjerarchy table has been presented.

*The carrying value of all other financial instruments at 30 April 2022 and 30 April 2021 approximated to their fair value.

risk d policles
The Group's finance function monitors and manages the financiat risks relating to (he operations of the GroupA The Group's activities
expose it prumarﬂv tothe financial risks of changes in interest rates.

Liguidity and interest risk management .
The Group is exposed to lhe interest rate risks associated with its holdings of cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposns

Ultimate for liquidity risk rests with the Board of Directors, which regularly monitors the Group's short,
medium and long-term funding, and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves and banking facilitles, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

Kdrelqn currency risk management
At year end, the Group did not hedge its exposure of foreign investments held in foreign currencies.

The table befow shows the Group’s currency exposure at year end. Such exposure comprises the monetary assets and monetary
liabilities that are not denominated in the functional currency of the operating unit invotved. The Group’s exposure to currency fisk
predominately arises on trade (lransacnons with both suppliers and cuslomers) in a variety of locations and denominated in

The Group also receives and spends money in different currencies. Significantly, contracts are often in the currency of the
As such, the Group has exposure to foreign exchange variation. This is naturally hedged where possible by paying for supplies in the
currencies in which they are invoiced, but this does not eliminate exposure. Management look to use forward contracts as a means
of mitigating exposure to exchange rate volatility on long-term contracts.

The Group seeks Lo minimise the effects of these risks. The Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors provide wrmen

principles on interest rate risk and the investment of excess liquidity. Compliance with policies and exp
continuous basis.

The treasury activities are reported to the Group’s Board as requlred.

Credit risk management .

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. Sales invoices are expected to be paid within 30 to 60
days under our usual contractual terms. At the year end, there were receivables totalling £1.0 million (2021: £0.4 million) that were
overdue but considered fully recoverable. Most of our sates income is sub]ecl to contractual terms and therefore largely protected
from defaul(

The credit risk of lquid funds {cash, cash equivalents and short-term deposits) is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

other than the f ! currency of the op g unit balances.
These exposures were as follows: ’
Uabllities Asyets

. 1012 7071 2022 7071
£000 €000 €000 £000
fimits is dona EUR a6 1,504 1,961 4,175
"usp 268 32 8 596
SEK : iii) 33 - - -
AUD (iv) - 9 307 285
. 347 1,545 2,276 5,056

Euro to Pound Sterling receivables and payables in the Group at the

(i} This is mainty to the expe t

balance sheet date.

{i#) This is mainly attributable to the exposure 1o outstanding US Dollar to Pound Sterling receivables and payables at the balance
sheet date.

{iii} This is mainly attri ble to the 1 Swedish Krona to Pound Sterling receivables and payables at the
balance sheet date.
{Iv} This is mainly attril 1o the exp: to ding Australian Doflar to Pound Sterling receivables and payables at the

balance sheet date.
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30. Financial instruments continued

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The table below assumes an increase/decrease of 109 change of the Euro to Pound Sterling exchange, the US Dollar to Pound
Sterfing exchange rate and the Australian Dollar to Pound Sterling exchange rate.

The sensitivity analysis is based on the subsidiaries” profit or loss for the year.

32. Controlling party
As at the date of these accounts neither the Directors together, nor any individual shareholder, owned more than 50% of the issued
share capital of the Company and hence, in the opinion of the Directors, there is no controlling party at this date.

33. Events after the balance sheet date
After the balance sheet date, the Group announced that ITM Power had been awarded a comract by BEIS, under its Net Zero
Portfalio Low Carbon Hydrogen Supply 2 C to of the S MW

EURGimpact 3D impact B AUD impact

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Profit or foss 78 70 a2 61 62 37

Ifinterest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables had remained constant, foss for the year would have decreased/
increased by £181,000{2021: £168.000).

The Group’s ﬁnéncial liabilities consist of trade and other payables as shown on the batance sheet. No interest Is paid on these
balances and alt amounts are due within three months,

Falr value of financial instruments

Carrying f financiat of the fair values of those instruments.

area P

31. Transactions with related parties

the
platform and its manufacture. The award for the Gigatest project is for £9.3 million and follows initial designs developed through
previous BEIS funding The award is d to be spread over a three-year period and is also expected to be
back-end loaded.

In addition, at the time of the trading update in June, we announced the development of ITM Power Service, an aftermarket focused
customer support business based in Germany designed to pravide full product life cycle support of deployed electrolyser systems.
All existing aftermarket operations, including the Group's 24/7 UK Remote Support Centre, will be merged into one focused
organisation with new headquarters in Linden in Germany.

in September 2022, we reviewed our plans to open a second UK factory at Aviation Park, given the current business climate and
general cost escalation. Our ambitions remain as strong as ever, but we need to be nimble and flexible, and we want to ensure
investment decisions are correct and right for the business and considered fully before capital is wmmmed Inthe near term

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been on¢ idation and are
not disclosed in this note. All related party transactions which were not intra-group have been conducted at arms’ length.

Tom Rae Consulting Limited, owned by director Tom Rae who was a Non-Executive Director of the Company during the financia!
year, has been engaged to carry out consultancy work equating to £2,000 in the current year. This was fully paid by year end.

During the year, purchases from Linde/BOC Group, represented on the Board by J Nowicki, totalled £0.5 million (2021: £3.5 million}
with £114,000 outstanding for payment at year end (2021: £256,000). Furthermore, an amount of £0.6 million refates to stage
payments made for goods but not yet received. There were also milestone billings on sales contracts of £7.0 million (2021: £0.4
million) with £1.7 million remaining outstanding at year end (2021: only £13,684).

Balances and transactions with ILE and Motive are discussed in Note 12 Investments.

The i f the dil and key Pt of the Group is shown in Note 8.

extending the total capacity at Bessemer Park up to 1.5 GW is a better use of capital with ¢ y imp!
term cash flows.
n ber 2022 Or Graham Cooley decided to step aside from his position as CEO of the Company after 13 years in post,

The Company has commenced a process to select a new CEO. Dr Cooley will remain In position until a successor is appointed,
and thereafter assume a senior strategic role in the Company, reporting to the Chairman and the new CEO.
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Corr;paﬁy Statement of Changes in Equity

Calledup Share Retained Total
share premium foss equity
capitat accouns  RESTATED  RESTATED
£000 £600 £000
At 1 May 2020 : 23,664 137,236 {74,480) 86,420
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares 3.869 165,012 - 168,881
Credit to equity for share-based payment - - $95 595
Total transactions with owners 3,869 165,012 595 169,476
Profit for the year and comprehensive income i ‘ - - 7515 7,515
Total comprehensive income - - 7.515 7,518
At 1 May 2021 . 27,533 302,248 {66,370) 263,411
Transactions with owners . : .
Issue of shares 3125 240,075 - 243,200
Credit to equity for share-based payment - - 1,070 1,070
Tota! transactions with owners 3,125 240,075 1,070 244,270
Loss for the year and comprehensive loss . - - {5,621) (5,621)
Total comprehensive loss - - - {5,621) (5,621)
At 30 April 2022 . 30,658 542,323 {70,921} 502,060

Retained losses have been restated for a prior year adjustment to reverse the impairment on an investment (see Note 6).
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Company Balance Sheet
1022 2071
RESTATED
. Nate £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets a 21 8
tntangible assets. S 12 8
tnvestments 6 162,563 112,252
Loan notes 6 1,548 -
164,144 112,268
Current assets
Debtors 7 1,479 2117
Cash at bank and in hand 340,809 152,556
341,888 154,673
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other payables 8 (1,709) (611)
Provisions 9 (2,268) (2.919)
(3,972} (3.530)
Net current assets 337,916 151,143
’
Net assets 502,060 263,411
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 10 30,658 27533
Share premium account N 0 542,323 302,248
Retained loss 10 {70,921) (66,370
502,060 263411

Shareholders’ funds

The Company reported a loss for the financial year ended 30 April 2022 of £5.6 million (2021: a restated profit of £2.5 million).
The financial statements of {TM Power PLC, registered number 05059407, were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue 14 September 2022,
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Andy Allen
Director
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Notes to the Com;.)an-y Financial Statements

1. Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation -
The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006,

The Company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reporting Standard 100) issued by the Financial
Reporting Council. Accordingly, financial have been prep:
101) ‘reduced disclosure framework’ as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken of the di avaxlable under that standard in retation
to share-based payments, financial Instruments, capital of ion in respect of
non-current assets, pi i f a cash flow and certain relaled party transactions,

Where required, equivalent disciosures are given in the consolidated financial statements.

1n accordance with s408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has taken the exemption from presenting the parent company’s
individual profit and foss account.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the re-measurement of certain financial
instruments to fair value. The principal accounting policies adopted are the same as those set out in Note 3 to the consolidated
financia! statements except as noted below. .

Tanglble fixed assets d .
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less lated iation and any re i i 10ss. D is charged
50 as to write off the cost, over an estimated useful life of three years, using the straight-line method. The gain or loss arising on the
dispasal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised inincome.

Intangible assets - software

Software purchased from 1 ies has been 1 d at cost under the heading of intangible assets. Amortisationis
. charged so as to write off the cost of assets over an estimated usefu! life of three years using the straight-line method and is

recognised in income.

in accordance with FRS 101 {Financial Reporting Standard .

Investments
Balances are stated at cost less a provision for any permanent impairment in value,

are consil forany under the IAS 36 impairment of assets. leen that the subsndxaues
arein the early stages ofcommerclal trade and lhat the C t tits as they build Up trade,
allinvestments have been compared with their net asset value and where lhatdoes not provide any immediate prospect
of rep ially if assets are not suffici liquid, i values are Impaired down to nil value.

The Company previously invested in ILE, which is owned equally by both investors {50% shares), although control is deemed to fie
with Linde for the purposes of consolidation as lhev appoml the managing drrer.lor who also has the casting vote at meetings of the
iLE board of directors, ITM Power has its rep: onthe board. As such, ITM Power accounts for this
investment in associate using the equity method. This means that the investment is originally recognised at cost, with subsequent
movements to reflect {TM Power's share of the profit or loss after the date of acquisition. This share of the profit or loss is
recognised in ITM Power’s profit or loss. Should any adjustments be necessary for changes in propornonare interest arising hom
changes in ILE’s other comprehensive income, ITM Power's share of those changes would be ised in the other compi
income. Any distributions received will reduce the carrying amount of the investment.

The Company holds 50% of the share capital of Motive since a partnership deal was signed with Vitol. There is no outright control by
either party but [TM Power still has significant influence due to its representation on the board. As such, ITM Power accounts for
this joint venture using the equity method. This means that the investment is originally recognised at cost, with subsequent
movements to reflect ITM Power’s share of the profit or loss after the date of acquisition. This share of the profit or loss is
recognised in {TM Power’s profit or loss. Should any adjustments be necessaiy for changes in proportionate interest arising from
changes in Motive’s other comprehensive income, ITM Power's share of those changes would be recognised in the other

ive Income. Any distributions received will reduce the carrying amount of the investment.

comp
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ompany Finan d

1. Significant accounting policies continued

2. Critical g d key 1 esti
Financlal instruments i h 1
£ 1] i the pany porty of are not from other sources. i i i i d
the instrument. Thev are irally measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not at air value through profitorloss, | other factors i i
" i isition of the financial asset
ai fitor | in profit or loss. Subsequent i ps ing basis. Revisi
i t istics of the asset. i b i i that perlod, or
which the Group halds financialnstruments i two: i both " There were no ritical tat the
. process of apalying the Company's accounting policies.
Amortised cost N
Assets that collection of incipal and
interest are. i . A gain or i that d i ir tment
not part of i i ip i i or assetis i impaired. Interest The Company tests Ihe net , or more frequently if there are indicators of
these financi i i using ive interest rate method. impairment. Duris in subsidiary companles, which are
aloss, whichi v
Fair value through profitorloss ’ i most of idlary o -
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or Fair c D L With a net asset posiion at the year il ith the
ievalue it orfoss. A gain or investment that i at fair val erest that that for ,thei i ing) Limited was not impaired. Any
and s not part of a hedging relationship i fiLor loss and d netn the profiL o loss statement wil i i is entity has Both the associate i ILE and the | with
i i iod . interest recei i isi in income. Motive were also left un-impaired.
impairment 3.5taff numbers and costs
The Group fc d- I is, the fit I ied tised cost. The
mpaifment endson wheiher there has b i in in credit riskin i esar ot oy
ontrs or trade pany app! oach p VIFRS S, | CAontbly average number of persons employed O G
1%of sales over The
i ing data Is monitored there are
o significant changes to this percentage. oo oo
Share option charges Wages and salaries 1504 1007
qui h the fair value of the equity | Sotialsecurity costs 25 131
instruments at the grant date. The far of diti i i ther - 3 El
i ‘the fair value of ity t out in Note 24 of 1,774 1,172
The air he grant date of the equity i fine basis over the
vesting period, /s estimate of equity i (other than fo based — -
tons). date, th i the number of equity i 00 %
tovest asa result of the effect of nom-mark ’ i the revision of the originalestmates, fany,is | pecreoio o m ol ] 500
profitorfoss such that the . © = e
cauity reserves. .
Pension costs AsaL30 April 1 £2,000 2021 €2, f the current year had not been pald over to the
The Ce i i Th ged 10 fit and lo: i f scheme. paid over i i lines.

. ; o Nty
Ppaid are shown as eilher accruals or prepayments in the bafance sheet.
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4. Tangible fixed assets
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cial Statements continued

6. Investments

The amortisation period for externally purchased software has been set at three years (in line with our palicy for computer equipment).

. Computer toansto Tavestment Investments
equipment subsidiary  insubsidlary  in assoctates
£000 undertakings  undertatings and joint
Cost RESTATED ventures Tozal
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 May 2021 205 Cast
Addi Z]

" ditions 2 At 1 May 2021 11,091 149,327 259 160,677
Disposals U28) | it 50,088 1,500 338 5192%
At30April 2022 101 Waiving of Motive intercompany loan (akin to capital contribution) {4,685} 4,685 - -
Depreclation ' Oisposal of ITM Metive Limited - (6.185) 1,500  (4,685)
AL May 2021 197 1 foreign exchange - {1) 22) {23}
C!ﬁl ge for the year n Share options granted to subsidiary employees - 789 - 789
Disposals (128) | 50% share of loss - - (10) 1o
At 30 Aprit 2022 80 Transfers {48,255) 48,255 - -
Netbook value At 30 April 2022 8,239 198,370 2,065 208,674
At 30 April 2021 8
At 30 April 2022 21 Pravisions for impairment

. At 1 May 2021 (restated} 11,091 37,334 - 48,425
S. Intangible assets Movement in year (2.852) 5,222 - 23711
T Disposal of ITM Motive Limited - (4.685) - (4,685}
£000 At 30 April 2022 8,239 37,872 - 46,111
Cost
At 1 May 2021 2 Net book value
Additions 14| At30 April 2021 (restated) - 111993 259 112252
. At30April 2022 36 | At30April 2022 - 160,498 2,065 162,563
Amortisation
At 1 May 2021 14 )
Charge for the year 10
At 30 April 2022 24
Carrying amount
At 30 April 2021 8
At 30 April 2022 12
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

6. Investments continued The Company holds 100%of the ordinary 1FM Power, I tornia and its
interest te of 19% over the Bank of England base rate. During the year, incipal activity is that of the sale of 3
previous i : Shepcote Lane, Sheffield, 59 102,
2022 202 | Yhe Compa ITM Power Pty Australia and its.
- 2000 £000 incipal i Unit 2 Level 1,
1TM Power GmbH 5 3579 | 33 Main Street, Samiord Village, Queensland, Austealia 4520,
YTM Power (Trading) Limited 48,000 32699
8,255 36,278 | The Company holds 100% of it  Hydrog pa
Scotland and s princi ity s that of the sale of hydroge g the vear.
. . ; . " . 2, Ground Floor, Orchard Brae House, 30 Queensferry Road, Edinburgh, EHA 2HS.
Asin previous years, a provision for cred 0 hat loss-making ang
i 1o pay their debt inth term. 1 P " dlolnt but
N . in 1M Linde
i wosell i tment
amount d 5 The f itat of ITM Linde Electralysis GmbH, a comp: i
toreflect ITM Power ] Thisu d year adjustment of £74.7 mill Suity s that of the sale of larg ¥TM Power and. GmbH both have
The net book value rer on ! beidiary bothinhls deemed to e with Linde for the purp: the
¥ vear, Managing Director. (T Power does have significant i . and as
sur i i i 1,80,
As a resut, figures have been rest note and the Company ent of Changes in Equity. The opening
747 milion, The opening balance on retained earningsin | 022/ O"esden. Germany.
the prior year was adjusted by £50.3 dthe lo v fously rep £16.9 mi heCo . 1o0%of . .
‘ A pany pr v o
£24.4 million 10.3 reported profit of £7.5 miion. and Wales and it principal activity i the retail sal tojast vear
end, il 1 May 2021 when the
The Comp: 100% of 1TM Power T Pouer rading] Limited. EE ; 2022, whena ot u o
and o signed with Vitol, As pa d  ITM Power PLC waived the intercompany
loan of £4.7 miflon. This v
The C inary 1TM Power (Research) Limited, a company which isincorporated in loan of £4.7 millon. ey
England and Wal inci of scient; f the Vitol ransactian. ITM Powe fthe
was dormant during the year, - aits nan v : me > A e
. . . . of directors and rights over its share of the et assets of the business. The C injoint
1TM Power (Trading) Lim 100% of v 1TM Power S , comp venture at cost, including the f share capital i fees. ITM Power PLC quity
in thatof share of the proft or loss.
the year,

Al of the above are registered at 2 Bessemer Park, Shepcote Lane, Sheffield, South Yorkshire, $9 102.

100% of
f the sale of

The Comp: ITM Power

solutions.

35410 Hungen, Germany.
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7. Debtors: amounts falling due within one year

Governaneo

10. Share capital and reserves

. 7o T
£o00 coso . )
The Company's other d Tosses,
Prepayments 389 318 | other adjustments. .
‘Amounts recoverable from employees 1,002 1711
Other debtars 88 28 | 11.Related party
1475 3317 | The Company has taken advantage of the exemption included in FRS101 ‘Related Party Disclosures” for wholly-owned subsidiaries
not is with entities that are part of the Group qualifying as related parties.
tothe extent T prions are . 4 Mot i 1@ andioint i ransact
exércised and willoff-set the provision in Note 9. with i y 12 financial statements. v
made witk'those entities in the year. K
8, Trade and other payables
o T
oo cooo
Trade credilors. 3 19
Payrollcreditors @ B .
Intercompany creditor 1,253 -
Accruals and deferred income 01 459
1,704 611
9. Provisions
i
e oprars
a0
Balonce at 1 May 2021 @919
Proiision created n the vear -
Use of the provision -
Release in the year 651
Balance ot 30 Apri 2023 : (2.268)
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Term Meaning Term ‘Meaning Term Meaning
AIM the Alternative investment Market operated by the London Stock ESG i I, social and g Motive Mative Fuels Limited (formerty ITM Motive Limited, our
Exchange EU European Unlon ]alnl;en;\;rzegwg;lgaviml), reglstered in England and Wales
i i i i i numbe:
AQRT the Auqn Quah(v'Rewew Team from the UK Financial FCH-IU EU Fuel Cells and Hydrogen Joint Undertaking mber _
Reporting Council - - ~ mMw megawatt (one million watts, 10® watts)
FEED front end engineering design -
BAYE ITM Power PLC Buy As You Earn Plan {a SIP} — ~ NED Non-Executive Director
FID finalinvestment decision
BEIS UK Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy ffo Fretin firet oot NIC Nationa! Insurance Contributions
rstin,
blue hydrogen  hydrogen derived from natural gas through the process of steam ~ - NOMAD norminated advisor
methane reforming - however, this produces CO, which must Fvoc Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
PEM proton exchange membrane
then be captured and safely stored Fio freedom-to-operate oM yore i)
im group metal(s)
BMBF German Federal Ministry of Education and Research FY21 the financial year ended 30 Aprit 2021 Q€A Code (the) :: gu 15; :: e Al 2 = Gon Tode 2018
— - ode (the] e Quoted Companies Alliance Corporate Governance Code
Baard (the) the board of directors of ITM Power PLC . FY22 the financial year ended 30 Aprit 2022 RED hand g DI . pol
research and developmen
«s carbon capture and storage FY23 the financial year ending 30 April 2023 — e. p ~
— - RIDDOR UK Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences
CEO Chief Executive Officer GEP current generation 2.5 MW stack platform y
Regulations 2013
cfo Contract for Difference GHG greenhouse gas(es) SDGs UN Sustainable Development Goals
CFO Chief Financial Officer green hydrogen hydrogen created solely {rom renewah‘le energy and wa(ef llhrough sP share incentive plan, a type of tax-advantaged all-employee share
<o, carbon dioxide the process of electrolysis; this results in a clean, zero-emission fuel plan offered to eligible UK employees
Companles Act UK Companies Act 2006 grey hydrogen  the most common form of hydrogen, produced by reforming SMR steam methane reformer
- - natural gas ); this results in sub: ial carbon emissi -~
Company (the)  1TM Power PLC, registered in England and Wales number 5059407 - SONIA Sterling Overnight Index Average
~ o Group {the) the group of companies headed by ITM Power PLC -
COoP26 26th session of the UN Climate Change Conference of the Parties that W ~ Tt = ats, 10° watts) sopP ITM Power PLC Share Option Plan: EMI and Unapproved
i igawatt {one billion watts, 10° w:
took ptace from 31 October to 13 November 2021 in Glasgow, Scotland = ::a’m e - stack 3 stack of cells that perform electrolysis
T . ronment
coP27 27:]" session of the UN Climate Change Cofuferenr.e of the Parties Y © STEM science, technology, engineering and maths
1aking place from 7 to 18 November 2022 in Egypt 1EA International Energy Agency — = —
- — — - — TCFD Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
COVID-19 the coronavlrus disease-19 M (EEFA Institute for Energy Economics and Financial Analysis R Tt shareholder return
Otal sh
(0] Chief Technology Officer ILE ITM Linde Electrolysis GmbH, our joint venture with Linde I United Kingd
- nited Kingdom
EBITDA earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 4 intellectual property Y m fl 3N gons
nitet a1
EDY equity, diversity and inclusion IPCEI EU ‘important project of common European interest’
auity. diversity slon_ portant prol i USIRA US Inflation Reduction Act of 2022
EMI enterprise management incentive (31 IT™ Power PLC Long Term Incentive Plan wie o Saress
wWOrk-in-progre
EPC engineering, procurement and construction MEP current generation 0.7 MW stack platform prog
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Ofﬁcers,' Professional Advisors and Useful Contacts

€o.uk

Officers Useful contacts
Directors: See biographies from page 41 Registered office: 2 Bessemer Park.
Sheffield
Executive Committee:  Dr Graham Cooley, CEQ $9102
Andy Allen, CFO .
Dr Simon Bourne, CTO Registrar: Link Group
Or Rachel Smith, Services Director 10th Floor
Tim Calver, Commercial Director Central Square
Martin Clay, Operations Director 29 Wellington Street
Chris Yewdall, Projects Director Leeds
Ls140L
Investor Relations: James Collins, Justin Scarborough
. Telephone: +44 {0)371 664 0300"
Marketing and Press: Sharon Poulter Email: shareh: qui i
Advisors
Nominated advisor investec Bank plc
and broker: 30Gresham Street
London .
ECav7arP
External auditor: Grant Thornton UK LLP
1 Holly Street
_ Sheffield
51267
1 call ] ravider. Callk the UK are charged at the applicabl

by pi
Lines are open between 09:00 and 17:30 Monday to Friday, excluding public hokidays in Engiand and Wales.
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